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TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 1966
U.S. SENATE,

SUBCOMMITTEE oN EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION,
ComyrirTEE 0N (GOVERNMENT PERATIONS,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittes met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in room
1318, New State Office BuiFding, Senator Abraham Ribicoff (chair-
man) presiding. :

Present ; Senators Ribicoff, Kennedy of New York, Jackson, Harris,
and Simpson. ‘ .

Also present: Jerome Sonoslcy, staff director and general counsel;
Philip Cook, professional staff member ; Robert Wager, assistant coun-
sel ; and Esther Newberg, chief clerk. - '

STATEMENT OF HON. ABRAHAM RIBiCOFF, U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE 0F CONNECTICUT

Senator Riercorr. The comnmittes will be in order.

When the Subcommittes on Executive Reorganiaztion began its in-
quiry into the Federal role in traffic safety exactly o year ago today, we
werse aware that we were dealing with a controversial topic. The
safety of motor vehicle travel is a matter of vital concern to the Ameri-
can people as & whole, as well as to the millions whose livelihoods -
depend upon our transportation system and automotive idustry.

As o matter of fact, currently there are 91 million registered motor
vehicles in the United States, and 98 million licensed drivers.

Soon after the hearings began it was clear that the controversy was
likely to become more heated as old theories were snbjected to serutiny
and established positions came under attack. _

I think our inquiry has been helpful. Ithas shed light on important
matters that have long been only dimly understood. It has shown us
areas of controversy where we must look further for the right answers.
At the same time, the hearings have quickened the determination: of
experts in ‘many quarters to make highway travel as safe as possible,
as soon a8 possible. ,

The hearings have resulted in the introduction of a variety of new
safety features on our new automcbiles without the passage of any
specific legislation. Further, it has led to & national highway safety
bill, forwarded to this Congress by the President. o

Much of the subcommittee’s success has resulted from the willing-
ness of experts in this important field to express their views vigorousfy
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and frankly. This right to testify freety without fear or intimidation
is one of the cornerstones of a free and demoeratic socicty. Any at-
tempt to jeopardize this right is a serious matter.

I have called this special meeting today to look into the circum-
stances surrounding what appeared to be an attempt by General Motors
Corp. to discredit Mr. Ralph Nader, o recent witness before the sub-
committee. This large company whose principal executtve officers
appeared before this same subcommittes last July, has admitted re-
sponsibility for undertaking a determined and exhaustive investiga-
tion of a private citizen who has criticized the auto industry verbzﬁlv
and in print. ’
. There is no law which bars a corporation from hiring detectives to
investigate a private citizen, however disiasteful the idea may seem to
some of us. There is a law, however, which makes it a crime to harass
or intimidate a witness before a congressional committee. One of our
purposes here today is to inquire into the purposes and effects of the
action initiated by (Feneral Motors.

_Personally, I don’t like to see anyone subjected to harassment, in-
timidation, or character assassination. But I am particularly dis-
turbed when this sort of activity is injected into the eﬁ%rts of a legisla-
tive body to deal with a vital public issue, like traflic safety.

I am concerned because I know that the subcommittee will never be
able to complete its work successfully if witnesses belicve their per-
sonal lives might be investigated and their rights to privacy infringed
by the auto industry or other interested parties.

This situation cannot be allowed to go unchallenged. It goes to the
very heart of the legislative process. If this hearing does nothing
else today, it should reaffirm the right and duty of every citizen to
speak his mind on matters of public interest and concern.

Would you, Senator Simpson, or Senator Harris, like to make any
comrent ?

Senator Staeson. I haven’t anything.

Senator Hlarwss, I have no opening statement. Thank you, M.
Chairman,

_ Senator Ripicorr. The first witness is Ralph Nader. We will stand
in recess until the witness comes.

(Short recess.)

Senator Rimycorr. The committee will be in order.

It had been my intention to call Mr. Nader as our first witness, but
Mr. Nader has not arrived, and it is now 10:15. Would you object,
Mr. Roche, to giving your statement at this time? |

Mr. Rocrx, I will he very happy to give my statement, Mr. Chair-
man.

Senator Ristcorr. Mr. Roche, as a matter of formelity, in keeping
with the rules of the committee, may I ask you if you would be willing
to take an oath, please?

Will vou raise your right hand ?

You do solemnly swear that the testimony you shall give before this
Senate snbcommittee shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, so help you God ? ‘

My, Rocwe. T do.

Senator Rrercorr. For the purposes of committee procedure, we
will allow each witness to give his entive statement without interrnp-
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tion. After the witness has given his statement, each member of the

committee in turn will be confined to asking questions for a period

of 10 minutes. After every member of the committee has had an

opportunitf;' to ask questions, then those members of the committee

who may have other questions may proceed beyond the 10-minute
riod.

peThsmk you, Mr. Roche. You may proceed.

TESTIMONY OF JAMES M. ROCHE, PRESIDENT, GENERAL MOTORS
CORP.; ACCOMPANIED BY THEODORE C. SORENSEN, COUNSEL

Mr. Roour. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. )

For the record, my name is James M. Roche and I am president of
General Motors Corp., Deiroit, Mich. T am here today at the chair-
man’s invitation issued in conjunction with his March 10 statement
to the Senate. That statement ordered hearings concerning this cor-
poration’s responsibility for a private investigation of Mr. Ralph
Nader, a witness before this subcommittee who has been critical of the
automobile industry’s efforts on traffic safety and particularly the GM
Corvair. I immediately stated our intention to cooperate with this
subcommittee in every possible way.

Let me make clear at the outset that I deplore the kind of harass-
ment to which Mr. Nader has apparently been subjected. I am just
as shocked and outraged by some of the incidents which Mr. Nader
has reported as the members of this subcommittee, .

As president of General Motors, I hold mysclf fully responsible
for any action authorized or initiated by any officer of the corporation
which may have had any bearing on the incidents related to our in-
vestigation of Mr. Nader. I did not know of the investigation when
it wasdinitiated and I did not approve it.

APOLOGY TO SUBCOMMITIEE AND NADER

‘While there can be no disagreement over General Motors’ legal right
to ascertain necessary facts preparatory to litigation, as I shall discuss
in a moment, I am not here to excuse, condone, or justify in any way
our investigating Mr. Nader. To the extent that General Motors
bears responsibility, I want to apologize here and now to the members
of this subcommiitee and Mr. Nader. I sincerely hope that these
spologies will be accepted. Certainly I bear Mr. ader no i1l will.

To the bost of my knowledge—and I have made every effort to
obtain all the facts since learning about this some 2 weeks ago—the
investigation initiated by General Motors, contrary to some specula-
tion, did not employ detectives giving false names, did not employ
Allied Investigation, Inc., did nof use recording devices during inter-
views, did not follow Mr. Nader in Iowa and Pennsylvania, did no¢
have him under surveillance during the day he testified before this
subcommittee, did not follow him m any private place, and did nof
constantly ring his private telephone number late at night with
false statements or anonymous warnings.

At the time the investigation was initiated last November, Mr.
Nader's book had not yet been published, he had not appeared nor
was he scheduled to appear as a witness before this subcommittee and
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he was nel regavded Co anyone’s knowledge as o consultant fo this
subcommitiee. 1In short, this investigation was wholly unrelated to
the proceedings of this subcommittee and Mr. Nader’s connections
with them.

There has been no attempt by, and it has at no time been the inten-
tion of, General Motors Corp., or any of its officers or employees to
annoy, harass, embarrass, threaten, injure or intimidate Mr. Nader, to
invade his privacy, to defame his character, or to hinder, impugn,
coerce, or prevent his testimony before this or any other legislative
body. Nor was any attempt made along those lines with respect to
anf' other critic of GGeneral Motors.

personally have no interest whatsoever in knowing Mr. Nader's
political beliefs, his religious beliefs and attitudes, his credit rating
or his personal habits regarding sex, alcohol, or any other subject.
Nor for the record was any derogatory information of any kind along
any of these lines turned up in this investigation.

‘While T do not personally know Mr. Nader, T am informed that he
is an articulate attorney and citizen who is dceply interested in traf-
fic safety and has written and spoken extensively on the subject.

We in General Motors certainly wounld not want any private citizen
to think for one moment that he was not free to criticize our corpora-
tion or products, before this subcommittee or anyonc else, without
fear of retaliation or harassment of any kind. While we do not
agree with many of the opinions and allegations Mr. Nader has put
forward, (zeneral Motors has responded to his public criticisms not
by responding in kind or ignoring the problems but by inviting him
to meet with us to discuss those questions of safety which concern us
all. Mr. Nader spent a day at the GM Technical Center, Warren,
Mich,, early in January visiting with GM executives and engineers.
‘We hope we will have the opportunity te meet with him again in
the future. :

CORVAIR CASES PROMPTED INVESTIGATION

Under the circumstances, I belicve we owe this subcommittée an
explanation of exactly what happened and why it happened, as best
as T have been able to ascertain. As of November 1 of last year,
General Motors Corp. was a defendant in over 100 lawsuits involving
potentially about $40 million in damage claims relating to the design
of Corvair cars of the 1960 through 1963 models. Although the only
two cases actually tried and decided on the basis of the Corvair’s de-
sign resulted in verdiets in our favor, both State and National legis-
lative bodies have respected our wish not to discuss in public any
issues involved in pending litigation. While T am not a lawyer, I
am certain that the learned lnwyers on this subcommittee understand
that practice in keeping with the canons of ethics. As the U.S.
Supreme Conrt has aptly put it, “it is impermissible to litigate by
day and castigate by night.” (In Re Sawyer, 360 U.S. 622, 635.)

Suffice it to say that the general counsel of our corporation has a
responsibility to the stockholders to defend all snch suits with all
his strength and ability and with every proper method and measure.
T understand that both State and Federal courts have consistently
held that most lawsnits, and particularly product liability cascs of
this kind, necessarily and customarily require considerable investiga-
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tion—investigation of the accident, the damages, the parties, the
witnesses, the qualifications of experts and related facts.

Troubled by what appeared possibly to be a concerted effort on the
part of a few trial attorneys handling most of the Corvair cases to
stimmlate both additional cases and the kind of sensationally adverse
publicity that might influence juries against the Corvair—and
troubled further by requests from shareholders as well as from both
satisfied and worried Corvair buyers that the corporation counteract
the harsh attacks on this produef which had been continuously made
outside the courtroom—our general counsel felt called upon, first, to
ascertain whether any actions for libel of the corporation or 1its prod-
nets or bar association prievance procedures, based on violations of
the canons of ethics, shonld be instituted against members of the bar
(including Mr. Nader) whe publicly discussed pending or anticipated
litigation ; second, to ascertain whether any witness, or author of any
book or article which might be offered as evidence in any (i?urt (1{,1—
cluding Mr. Nader) was entitled to the legal definition of “expert”™;
and #hird, to ascertain whether any of the individuals (including Mr.
Nader) who were most often said to be cited or consnlted by these
attorneys, ot to be publicizing their allegations, could properly be
cross examined in any trial in which they might appear as expert
witnesses to show bias, lack of reliability or credibility, if it were a
fact that they had a self-interest in the litigation or had been at-
tempting deliberately to influence public opinion.?

In Mr. Nader’s case, and only in Mr. Nader’s case, the general coun-
gel felt that he could not ascertain the answers to these questhns—a_nd
they were only gquestions, not charges—without using a private 1n-
vestigating agency to check on Mr. Nader’s credibility, reliability,
and qualifications as an expert witness and his ties, if any, with these
attorneys. A brief inquiry in Mr. Nader’s hometown 1n Connecticut
revealed nothine. Inasmuch as he gave a Washington address on a
brief filed against General Motors in a product liability case, but could
not be found in any Washington telephone or legal directory, the gen-
eral counsel requested 1 Washington attorney, Mr. Richard Danner, to
secure an investigation of the facts needed. At that time Mr. Nader
had not yet been announced as a witness before this subcommiitee;
and the general counsel, treating this like all other investigations ot
fact related solely to pending and anticipated litigation, did not con-
sider it necessary to inform the other officers of the corporation.

ROCHE DID NOT KNOW OF INVESTIGATION

This investigation was initiated, conducted, and completed with-
out my knowledge or consent, and without the knowledge or consent
of any member of our governing committees. To say that I wish 1
had known about it earlier is an understatement—and I intend to make

A [ the teatl-

1 Mitler v, United Statea (192 ¥, Supp. 218, 222} : “The welght and value o 2
mor:y ofrthe expert witness depends largely upon the qualifications (of) sucl; expghtﬁs%{lg
fhose anatiignans Ay be e bl O e peatricty o me Rrentonnd i

i . Me 4 Pac, 2 H d ity o 2
Tn\{fsrlllrii t‘;mDIOin;i' a detective to shadow, investignte, nnd otherwise che&l‘:l ?RE ml(t!iot;lthg;"
party and potential withesses: “Anyone has n right, when threatenedl\i: o tguﬂ fhe
dosiring himself to sue, to employ assistance with a view of ascerialning facta ng ¥
I rateh te, Investigation

2 1 . 69 F. Supp. 788, af’d. 388 U.8, 318), for example, Investig
l'evgr?le{l{%;:t ?moif;"ﬂilé ‘b_v o supppl::)sedly disinterested person had actually been neranged
by the attorneyn for one slde.
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certain that we are informed of similar problems of this magnitude
in the future.

Mr. Danner secured the services of Vincent Gillen Associates, an
Investigation agency in New York City, a decision which was not
ratified by or made known to me. Nor was I informed of the preem-
ployment investigative methods which would be employed by Mr. Gil-
len and his associates. Most of the information gathered in this effort,
which was terminated last month, was, not surprisingly, irrelevant for
the very narrow purposes which our general counsel had originally
intended.

When I first read in the press on March 6 that Mr. Nader was ap-
parently being shadowed and investigated, and his friends questioned
about his beliefs, I was just as surprised and disturbed as all of you
must have been. T'wo days later, in the process of ordering a formal
statement denying our involvement, I discovered to my dismay that
we were indeed involved. Iimmediately ordered an investigation and
release of the facts as we then knew them. .

We earnestly hope, Mr. Chairman, that you will not interpret this
episode as reflecting GM’s response to the issues raised by your sub-
committee and by others concerned with traffic safety. e deeply
share that coneern. We want to consider all complaints and sug-
gestions on their merits, not on the basis of personalities. We know
that any automobile is subject to accident and that we must be con-
stantly devising and improving ways to protect the occupants and
others. If our concern for safety hes not always come through with
sufficient clarity and vigor in previous statemenfs, including our state-
ment before this subcommittee last summer, then I can assure you that
we regret that failure.

Without straying too far from the purposes of today’s hearing, I
do want to stress that General Motors is expanding its research, en-
gineering and testing in all areas of safety, including that of the
second collision and the causecs of both accidents and Injuries. We
are stressing safety in our advertisements and consumer contacts,
and adding new safety features to our cars as fast as they can be effect-
tively developed, carefully tested, and thoroughly proven to be prac-
tical. ‘We nre in every other way devoting more time imagination,
attention, manpower, and statistical studies than ever before to this
all important safety factor. We are, in ghort, in all our plans and
calenlations, giving safety a priority second to none. And we con-
sider this to be our duty.

In every endeavor at General Motors, we are always striving to do
better, and this includes safety. But we take great pride, Mr. Chair-
man, in your recent comments on GM’s leadership in introducing the
collapsible (energy absorbing) steering column and in providin
for cs)mﬂ braking systems on all cars. Other safety features WhicE
need not be detailed now are also being provided as standard, as well
as optional, equipment for 1966 and 196% CATS,

The traflic toll, of course, is still tragically high. As the President
has pointed out, the car, the driver, and the highway environment all
have a role in accidents, and all must be improved. Automotive de-
sign. 35 our responsibility. T am urging our engineers and experts on
to greater heights, to be pioneers in automotive safety. But in this
broad effort the entire antomobile and insurance industries, the uni-
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versities and research centers, the various voluntary organizations,
and the State and Federal Governments all have important roles to
play. General Motors will cooperate fully in all these endeavors, in-
cluding the support of constructive State and Federal legislation., It
is in that spirit of cooperation that I have come before you today not
only to report on this unha.pi)y cpisode, but also to pledge our con-
tinuing erFort to work with all those concerned with 1mproving traf-
fic safety.

FREQUENCY O PERSONAL INVESTIGATION BY GM

Senator Riercorr. Mr, Rache, I appreciate your forthright state-
ment, What concerns me is this: Here you are the head of one of the
largest companies in the world. I can understand your desire to find
out if there is a connection between Mr. Nader and other attorneys
involved in litigation, But how widespread is it, in corporations such
asyours, to have people who are involved in controversies or who might
make a derogatory remark about General Motors to have their entire
life investigated { ] )

Mr. Rocue. It is a very uncominon occurrence in our corporation,
Mr. Chairman, and to my knowledge this is the first one of this kind
that has ever been undertaken. On the contrary, I think that we solicit
the comments and the criticism of our products. We spend a great
deal of money and time through consumer research and other methods
to find out what people think about our products, what they like
about them, and what they dislike about them. An episode of this
kind is certainly a very rare and unusual occurrence in General
Motors. o

Senator Risicorr. Do you lmowl't}_lu,t :}Egls rare or unusual or does
this take place without you even realizingitt
Mr. ROI(;HE. No, sir ;Ji would know about it if it did take place, and
we have been making very careful checks to ascertain what other
investigations have been made, and other investigations have to do.
only with minor affairs, such as preemployment checks of individuals.
who are joining us, perhaps internal problems we might have with
employees, and perhaps problems in connection with embezzlement,
and purchasing activities, or other activities of the corporation.

There have been very few of them. I have had the records checked
very carefully over the past few years, and I can assure you that there
is nothing except very minor investigations along the lines that I have

mentioned.
r
POLICY DETERMINATION IN GENEHRATL, MOTORS ON INVESTIGATIONE

Senator Rimtcorr. How many employees does General Motors have?
Mr. Rocre. Worldwide we have approximately 740,000 employees
and of that, approximately 540,000 are in the United States. )
Senator Rinrcorr. Who is responsible for policy to determine
‘whether an individual is to be investigated, whether he is within your
corporation or someone outside the corporate employ? Who makes
that decision ? o ) .
Mr. Rocap, The primary responsibility for making that decision
depending on the nature of the case would be the general counsel.
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Under ordinary circumstances the decision would be made in consulta-
Lion with other executives of the corporation who may be familiar with
the particular problem involved, But were it a serious enough matter
then it would be called to the attention of other officials in the corporn-,
tion, or perhaps some of onr tep committees,

enator Rinicorr. How do you explain the lack of communication
or the communication gap, so to speak, between whoever ordered this
Investigation and the detectives who were doing it? The reports
were being sent back to General Motors as fast as the investigators
were making them, showing up the invasion of Mr. Nader’s personal
life, the question of what his sexual behavior may be, whether or not
he was anti-Semitic, what his grades were in high school, what his
grades were in college, what his employment activities were, and all
throughout the investigntion, very little was showing up concerning
his connection with other lawyers involved in litigation with the
Corvair,

POSSIBLE NADER LINK WITIL CORVAIR LITICATION

Mr. Rocur. I am familiar with that now, Mr. Chairman, and 1
understand that very, very little was indicated. The investigation
was undertaken by the geneml counsel in the belief that Mr. Nader did
have some connection, did have a possible connection with the Corvair
litigation.

He had been identified throngh the ATT.A Gronp as a Corvair ex-
L)ert and it had been stated through the ATLA organization, that any-

ody having an interest in Corvair should contact Mr, Ralph Nader.
I think this h-a.IlJ( ened back in the summer of 1965, Subsequently,
Mr. Nader’s book, or previews of his book, appeared in publications,
One I think was in the Nation and the other was in the Charleston
(Gazette, in which the chapter he devoted to the Corvair was com-
mented upon very extensively. Baclk in November the general coun-
sel’s office believed that it was necessary to (ry to determine what
connection, if any, or interest in the Htigation Mr, Nader might have.
They first, went to his hometown which was in Winsted, Conn., and
they were unable to find him in Winsted. They were told at that
time that possibly he was in Washington, and made the nsnal checks
through Washington through legal directories as I indicated in the
‘statement, and were unable to find out anything about him. Tt was
after that senrch had proved fruitless, Mr. Nader's comments, press
Interviews, TV appearances, and so forth, continued to be very critical
of the Corvair, and I think that our general counsel felt that it was
his responsibility and duty to attempt to determine whether or not
there was any association between Mr. Nader and the Corvair litiga-
tion. It was on that basis that the investigation was undertaken.
. .l%ngtor Ris1corr. Is your general counsel in this room with you
oday?

Mr. Rocue. Yes; he is, Mr. Chairman.

: Senéxtm‘ Rmrcorr. So he will be available for questioning as we go
along?

Mr. Rocue. Yes.

RIBICORET INVESTIGATED

. Senator Risicorr. By the way, were you aware, Mr. Roche, that the
mvestigators that were hired, when I stated when Mr. Nader appeared
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before our subcommittee on February 10 that the first time T had ever
seen Mr. Nader was when he walked in to the committee room, was
also subject to investigation, as to whether the chairman was telling
the truth when he said that he had never seen Nader before ?

Mr. Rocre. 1 am not aware of that, Mr, Chairman. I am aware of
the remarks that you made at your hearing, but I did not know of the
other circumstance; no, sir.

IN RE SAWYER CITATION

Senator Risicorr. You mentioned on page 3, and I think it is im-
portant, the case of : In re Sawyer (360 U.S. 622). 1 do not suppose
you are a legal authority and that your counsel must have put in the
quote from that case:

It is impermissible to litizate by day and castigate by nigbt.

Let me read what Justice Brennan, speaking for the Court, really
sald :

The verbalization ig that it is impermisalble to litigate by day and castigate
by night, * * * but to us it seems totally to ignore the charges made and the
findings. (360 U.8. 622, 635-636.)

Then the Court concludes:

But it hardly needs elaboration to make it clear that the question of the. total
insufficiency of the evidence to sustain a serlous charge of professional miscon-
duect against the backdrop of the claimed constitutional rights of an atterney
to speak freely as any other citizen ig not one which can be subsumed under the
headings of local practice, customs or law (360 U.S, 622, 640).

Now T think what the court had in mind in the 1959 Sawyer case,
Mr. Roche, was what Louis Brandeis once said :

Wo hear much of the corporation lawyer and far too little of the people's taw-
yer. The great opportunity of the American Bar is and will be to stand again as
it did in the past rendy to protect also the interests of the people.

Now the question that you raise in General Motors of your desire not
to have your products discussed in public during the course of litiga-
tion fails to take into account that the American people do have a right
to know, to have discussed, any product or any issue which may affect
their lives, their well-being and their health, and Mr. Nader, whether
he be a lawyer, a newspaperman, or just any individual, certainly does
have the right to write articles, to write a book, to testify before a com-
mittee, or to get on a soapbox in the middle of a public park to make a
speech. about a matter that he believes concerns the well-being of our
country. And I do not want you to feel, or want the country to feel,
the Supreme Court has laid down a rule that a member of the bar, once
he is involved in litigation, is forgclo?ed frtgm discussing matters of

ublic policy that might be involved in litigaton. )
P Mr. 120011}1;. Iam s%re that is right, Mr. Chairman, and I think that
the purpose of this in the mind of our general counsel, and he will be

lad to speak for himself when the proper time comes, was simply to
geterrnine. whether or not Mr. Nader had any intcrest beyond acting as
an impartial critic of our product. Canon 20 of the Canons of Ethics
states that “Precluding newspaper discussion of pending lifigaiion
applies not only to discussion in newspapers but to any discussion in a
magazine including legal magazines or other publications intended or
calenlated to influence the decision in a pending case in which the
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| :ﬁéf% X;Sbigggiilét:%d would also include by implication similar radio
enator Rinrcorr, Yes, but there was no evidence that you
that Mr. Nader was counsel in any Corvair litigation, wa.g thegrttéhered

Mr. Rocue. Not at any Corvair litigation as I mentioned earlier.
The American Trial Lawyer’s Association’s publications were refer-
ring to Mr. Nader as an expert in Corvair affairs, and were suggesting
‘that anybody who had an interest in Corvair litigation contact Mr.
Nader and gave his address as I recall it at Winsted, Conn. I think
that was the primary reason for our general counsel’s feeling that
‘there was a possibility of Mr. Nader having an interest in the Corvair
litigation.

Scnator Risicorr. I have taken up 10 minutes. The rules apply to-
the chairman, as well as to the members of the committee., I will have
some other questions later.

Senator Simpson, do you have any questions?

ROCHE COMMENDXD

_Senator Srmpson. Mr. Chairman, I want to join with you and asso-
ciate myself with the remarks made by this testimony of Mr. Roche’s.
He has been very forthright and helpful. This committee tries so
hard to find from the facts and investigation that leads to construc-
tive laws with respect to the United States of America transporta-
tion, and it is a little difficult to have to be called outside to trace a
side issue down like this. I hope when we have this behind us that
we get on with our constructive work.

Mr. Roche, are you still conducting the traflic safety investigation
at your various plants that you testified to?

Mr. Rocue. The traffic safety activities?

Senator Smarpsow. The research.

Mr. RocuE. Yes; wo are engaged in very extensive research, Sena-
tor Simpson. ’

Senator Stveson. That isall T have.

Mr. Rocie. At our proving grounds, and through our engineering
and research activities; yes, sir.

Senator Stmeson. That isall Thave, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Rietcorr. Senator Kennedy ¢

Senator Kuwnepy. First, Mr. Roche, let e commend you on your
statement.

Mr. Rocar, Thank you.

. Senator Kenneny. 1agree with Senator Simpson and the chairman
it is n most forthright statement. ’

Mr. Rocue. Thank you, Senator.

. Senator Kenwepy. lit is very helpful to the committee. I am sure
it was diflicult to malke, and therefore all the more commendable.

Mr. Rocue. Thank you, sir.

Senator Kex¥epy. [ extend my appreciation to you for your efforts
to come before the committee and give us all of the facts in connection
with this mater, and I commend your candor and your honesty in
doing so.

Mr. Rocue. Thank you,str.
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GENERAL MOTORS BTATEMENT OF MARCH 9, 13G6

Senator KenwnNepy. There are a few questions that I would like to
ask. First, going back to the General Motors statement that was made
originally, that is a matter of some concern to me. At the time this in-
vesfigation originally was written about in the newspaper, a statement
was put out I believe by you. Would you agree that the statement
that was put out on, I guess, March 9, 1966, a statement issned by Gen-
eral Motors, was misleading about the facts in connection with this

matter ?
Bxuieir 116

STATEMENT OF GENERAY, MOTORS CORPORATION

General Motors said today that following the publication of Mr. Ralph Nader’s
criticisms of the Corvair In writings and public appearances in support of his
book “Unsafe at Any Speed,” the office of its general counsel initiated a routine
investigation through a reputable law firm to determine whether Ralph Nader
was acting on behalf of litigants or their attorneys in Corvair design cases
pending against General Motors, The investigation was prompted by Mr,
Nader's extreme criticism of the Corvair in his writings, press conferences, TV
and other public appearances. Mr, Nader's statements coincided with similar
publicity by some attorneys handling such litigation,

Tt is A well known and accepted practice in the legal profession to investigate
claimg and persons making cloims in the product liability field, such as in the
pending Corvair design cases.

The investigation was limited only to Mr. Nader’s qualifications, background,
expertise and association with such attorneys. It did not include any of the
alleged harassment or Intimidation recently reported in the press. If Mr.
Nader has been subjected to any of the incidents and harassment mentioned by
him in newspaper stories, such incidents were in no way associated with General
Motors’ legitimate investigation of his interest in pending litigation. :

At General Motors' invitation, Mr. Nader spent a day at the GM Technical
Center, Warren, Michigan, early in January visiting with General Motors
executives and engineers. He wag shown a number of engineering and research
testing nnd development programs in the field of automotive safety. A number
of the accusations in his book were discussed at length, and & presentatlon was
made of the evidence nsed in the successful defense of the only two Corvair
laweunits tried.

Mr. Nader expressed appreciation for the courtesy in providing him with
detailed information, but he nevertheless continued the same line of attack
on the design of the Corvair in a number of subsequent press conferences, TV
and other appearances. This behavior lends support to Generat Motors® helief
that there ig a connection between Mr. Nader and plaintiffs’ counsel in pending
Corvair Jesign litigation.

Mr. Rocue. I suppose, Senator Kennedy, that had I known or had
we known at the time what I know now, I suspect that the wording
of the statement might have been somewhat different.

Senator XenNepY. My point is that if we just take this statement,
that had been made by General Motors, and take the newspaper articles
which first brought this matter to light, then taking the statement
had the chairman not called a hearing, really the public and the news-
papers would have been misled. Mr. Nader’s honesty and integrity
would have been seriously questioned, if we had not gone on with this
hearing, and if you had not made this frank and for right statement
which you have made before this committee. There would have been
serions questions raised about not only the newspaper articles and
the individuals who wrote those articles, but also Mr. Nader’s integrity.
Do you agree with that?
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GENERAL INTEN'T OF INVESTIGATION

Mur. Rocme. Possibly that intepretation could be placed upon that,
Senator., However, I think the statement represented the general in-
tent, of the investigation at that time.

Now, since then, I have learned that in the approach to the investi-
gation, there had to be some basis for making the investigation. Tt
was the judgment of the people who were arranging the investigation
that a preemployment type investigation would be made, and that is
the kind of an investigation that was undertaken. In the course of
that investigation, apparently some areas were probed in a very un-
fortunate way as it tarns out. To that extent I would say that had we
known and had I seen the reports at all at the tune this was made, the
full detail of all the reports of the investigation, that possibly this
wording could have been changed to—-

Senator Kenyepy. Can I just give you—for instance—what was
said and what was put in the Congressional Record, and what was
broadeast all over the country. It statesthat:

General Motors said today that following the publication of Mr. Ralph Nader’s
criticiems -of the Corvair in writings and public appearances in support of his
book “Unsafe at Any Speed,” the office of ifs general counsel initiated a routine
investigntion throngh a reputable law firm to determine whether Ralph Nader

wias acting on behalf of litignnts or their attorneys in Corvair design cases pend-

ing ogainst General Motors,

It was certainly an investigation that went quite beyond that.

Mr. Rocur. Well, as I have indicated, Senator Kennedy, to our
Imowledge many of the items of harassment which had been alleged
did not oceur as a result of any investigation that was made by——

NOT A ROUTINE INVESTIGATION

Senator KEnNEDY. Would you say now that this was a routine in-
vestigation to determine whether Mr. Nader was acting on behalf of
litigants or their attorneys?

Mr. Roone. I would say, Senator Kennedy, that it is not a routine
investigation insofar as General Motors is econcerned, but it is my
understanding that this is eonsidered a routine investigation of poten-
tial witnesses in connection with litigation that may Ee of interest to
a defendant.

Senator Kexnepy. There is some inconsistency, it seeme to me, if
you say in this statement that it was o routine investigation on behalf
of litigants or their attorneys in Corvair design cases pending against
General Motors, and then in your statement today admit tﬁat there
was 8 good deal of harassment, and that the investigation went beyond
what you had thought should take place, and apologize to Mr. Nader.

Mr. Rocme. That is right.

Senator Kenwepy. This statement isinconsistent with that?

Mr. Rocue, I think that it is inconsistent to that extent; yes, sir.

Senator Kenxepy. Then your release states:

The investigation was limited only to Mr. Nadcr's gualifientions, background,
expertise and nssociation with such attorneys,

That statement really as it turns out is net accurate.

Mr. Rocre. That was the intent of the statement, and the intent of
the investigation.
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Senator Kunneoy. Tunderstand, but that isn’t in fact what occurred,
Mr. Roche? It went far beyond that, did it not?

Mr. RocuE. As I have indicated, Senator Kennedy, whether or not
in the eourse of preemployment application investigations this is the
type of information that s ordinarily solicited, I can’t answer.

senator IKENNEDY. Let me ask you now based on the facts that you
know at the present moment, the investigation was really much more,
far beyond what the original statement of Greneral Motors indicated
on March 9% - .

Mr. Roce. I would say that is true; yes, sir. _

Senator KENNEDY. Let me just say, and I am not going to keep
pressing this, but I think it is a matter of concern to this committee and
to the Congress of the United States as well as the newspapers.
Where your release states that if Mr. Nader has been subjected to—

sment mentioned by him In newspaper storigs,
ggghofng&igglggzs iﬁngoh\%;!;rs ngsociated with General Motors' legitimate -
vestigation of his interest in pending litigation.

That is a fact that is also not accurate, is it ¢
GM ADMITS SOME HARASSMENT

Mr. Rocue. Well, I think it depends on the interpretation of acts
of harassment, Senator Kennedy. I think what we meant by that
statement was that certainly we had been assured that our investiga-
tion had not had anything to do with the harassing telephone calls.
‘We had not followed Mr. Nader in some——

Senator Kennepy. Wasn't Mr. Nader in fact called by — _

Mr. Rocue. He was called twice to my knowledge, both times in the
morning, once about 10:30 and aguin about 1:00 1n the afternoon.

Senator Ken~Epy. Isn’t it correct that he was followed? '

Mr. Rocne, He was under surveillance in Washington for a period
of about 1 week ; yes,sir.

Senator ]{ENI::TEDY,. Well, it says, here the statement says that—

has b piected to any of the incidents and harassment men-
tic}rfeg{f)'yNh?ge;n 1&3%3‘;:;;: sgoegies, guch incidents were in no way agsocinted with
General Motorg' legitimate investigntion of his interest in pending litigation.

That statement, really, Mr. Roche, as it is being developed before
the committee, is not aceurats. .

Mr. ROCHE.,WBH, again I think, Senator, that it gets back to what
is an element of harassment. ]

Senator KenNepy. Can you hold up? Maybe I will take back what
I said about your statement. I thought your gtatement indicated that
you thought that there had been harassment.

Mr. Rocur. I think that there has been sone harassment.

Senator KenwEDY. But you say In here, the original statement on
March ¢ says that— t
_ Nader has becn subjected to any of the incidents and harassmen
mgitinr){;ed l?y elfimaiel n?:wspnper stories, such incidents were il no wiy as?loici-
ated with General Motors’ legitimate juvestigation of his interest in pending
Hitigntion, _
Mr. Rocar. Perhaps our initial press release was too broad, Senator,
but I think that the intent of the release referred to some of the inec1-
dents which had been described in the press, but as to the use of girls
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accosting Mr, Nader, the employment. of detectives who were giving
false names, and the constant ringing of his telephone at night, and «s
reported in the press and accounts I read, his telephone was continu-
ally being rung during odd hours of the night, and disturbing his rest.

enator Kexnepy. Well, Mr, Roche

Mr. Rocre. And in that sense we did not conduct any of these items
of harassment.

Now to the extent that this went into private affairs and other ques-
tions, which is regrettable, that those are acts of harassment and I
believe that they are, then to that extent the statement is not clear.

Senator Kunneny. I think that is a mild way of putting it, if T may
say so, Mr. Roche. 1 commended you on your statement, and I com-
mended it because T thought it was frank and honest, and T think that
it 13 frank and honest. Buat as I gather from your statement today,
you said that there had been acts of harassment by representatives of
those who were associated with the General Motors Corp., and you
apologized for it. This statement of March 9 quite clearly indicated
that no such events or incidents ever occurred. My point was that the
statement of March 9 it seems to me is inaccurate, not becanse of state-
ments that are made by Mr. Nader, but because of your own statement
here.

Mr. Rocae. 1 think that the statement on March 9, Senator Ken-
nedy, represented what you might term the intent of the investigation
aIS—

Senator Kxnweoy. Don’t you think that the General Motors Corp.
has a responsibility to be accurate, full, truthful, and honest in connec-
tion with these matters?

Mr. Rocrz. I certainly do, and to the best of our ability that is what
happened. T think we have this to bear in mind. 7That I first. found
out about this investigation late in the afternoon or early evening of
March 8, as I indicate in the statement, and my first responsibility was
to attempt to learn what did happen, and 1 immediately returned to
Detroit and endeavored to find out specifically what happened. I
have learned a great deal more in the intervening time. But I thought
our first responsibility was to put out a statement that admitted our
responsibility for conducting an investigation, and that is this
statement. :

As T indicated earlier, were I writing this statement this press re-
lease today, I think it would be in different language.

Senator Rmrcorr. Senator Kennedy, your 10 minutes are up and
you will have another opportunity, Senator Harris.

ROCHE LEARNED O INVESTIGATION ON MARCH &

Senator Harris, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Roche, I believe
from your statement on page 5, you say that it would have been on
March 8 by adding 2 days later to March 6 when you were in the proc-
ess of ordering a formal statement denying the involvement of GM,
you discovered to your dismay that GM was indeed involved. To
what degree did you discover GM’s involvement in the investigation
at that time?

) Mr._ROOHE. Well at that time I learned that we had conducted an
investigation
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Senator Hanmis. Did you learn that it was a preemployment as you
1 ?

ca]l&i[lrt.,ﬁbcy)g?m. No, sir, I did not. I did not learn that it was that type
of an investigation. All I learned at that time was that we were
involved, and when I asked for the name of the investigating agency
that was used, I was informed that it was Vincent Gillen Associates,
and that of conrse was the name of the agency that was deseribed in
the story in the New York Times on March 6, which I read. I hap-
pened to have been in New York that day. =~

Senator Hagris. The New York Times article indicated that mat-
ters extraneous to prepnrﬁntion of lawsuits had been involved in the
j igations, did it not? _
Jnﬁiﬁlgkj}ﬁ:}?ﬁs? It said that certaig inqiﬁries h%fl.d been made with re-
§ Mr. Nader’s sex habits and problems, 1f any. ) )
Sp%c;nfﬁ:or Harrys, And you learned that GM was in fact involved in
the investiga,tioir} on March 8.

Mr. Rocue. Yes, sir.

lScna.tor Harrrs. And then did you approve the press release on
March the 9th which Senator Kennedy has previously alluded to?

. Rocur. Yes, I did. .

%E-n:t{gf Harrrs. Did you feel no responsibility to delve further
into the investigation before approving the press release which said
that it had only to do with preparation of the lawsuit?

Mr. Rocms. I thought, Senator, that our first obligation was to
adwmit our responsibility in connection with the investigation. We dis-
cussed this phase of it, and I was assured that this was an }nvestlgat;on
made solely for the purpose of determining Mr. Nader’s connection
with the Corvair litigation.

Senator Harris. Who assured you of that

Mr. Rocue. I was assured by our legal staff.

Senator Harris. Who are they ] ) ) )

Mr. Rocar. I was nssured by Mr. Bridenstine who is assistant
general counsel and was working on the problem at the time.
© Genator Flarris. He assured you of something, one of your people
assured you of something that was not in fact true theni

Mr. Rocus. Well, it was not true at the time; yes, sir. )

Senator Harrws, What do you mean it was not true at the time?

Mr. Rocue. Well, I think that our people were not aware of all of
the things that had happened, and I think maybe there was some
‘misunderstading between a preemployment investigation and what
“might be considered to be a routine investigation. I have been told,
‘and I have no basis for knowing other than that, that 1t 1s 31111:&; com-
‘mon practice in making preemployment investigantion—an this was
‘a preemployment investigation pretext that was used—that questions
‘ofp background and questions of this kind with respect to the drink-
ing and the moral habits of an individual are part of that kind of u,ri
investigation. If that is so, then I presume that this is not an unusut

ening.
haggnatog Harris. You are saying then that your own legal staff—
no one in GM to your knowledge knew in advance that this investiga-
-tion would go into facts gthat were not tequired to prepare the law-
:sult; is that what yousay®
‘Sui&rl.sﬁottﬂn. Tg nmy kflowledge T don’t think that was contemplated ;

mo, Sir.
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INVESTIGATING AGENCY DECIDED ON PREEMPLOYMENT PRETEXT
WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF OM

Senator Harrrs. And then who did make that decision? Who made
the decision that extraneous matters would be investigated?

Mr. Rocre. I think that that decision was made by the people who
were conducting the investigation.

Senator Harris, They, just on their own, decided to do more than
was required ?

Mr. Rocue. I have been informed that the preemployment pretext,
as it has been referred to, was decided to be the basis for the Investi-
gation, and that decision, insofar as I know, was made by the inves-
tigating agency.

Senator ITarris. And no one else knew about that before they did
it on their own.

Mr. Rocuz. Not to my knowledge; no, sir.

Senator Harris. Nobody within GM ?

Mr. Rocue, Not to my knowledge.

Senator Harrrs. Nobody within your general counsel’s office?

Mr. Rocne. Not to my knowledge.

Senator Harris. And not in the office of the Washington law firm?

Mr. Rocie, No, the Washington office had nothing to do with it.
Our Washington office knew nothing about this.

Oh, I am sorry. Mr. Sorensen says you.said the Washington law
firm. I thought you said the Washington office. .

Senator Harmis. No, the Washington law firm I meant.

Mr. RocrE. I am sorry, sir.

Senator Harris. They did know that other matters were going to be
investigated ?

Mr. Rocue, Idon’t know whether they did or not.

Senator Flarris. Haven’t you made any attempt to find out? Who
ordeqred the investigation, isn’t that a matter of some concern to you
now:

Mr. Rocne. Yes, sir; I know who ordered the investigation.

Senator ITarris. All right, who did pass on what was required for
the lawsuit ; that is the question.

Mr. Rocus. Well, I am not aware that anybody ordered an inves-
tigation into these matters. I think that the investigation that was
made into these areas resulted solely by their interpretation of what
constituted a routine reemployment pretext investigation.

Senator Harrrs, ]gy “they,” you mean the investigators?

Mr. Rocue. The investigators; yes, sir.

Senator Harris. And have you attempted to determine why they
decided to go into other matters? Have they given you any reason
why they did that?

Mr. Roonx. Yes. I think the reason that has been given me, the
explanation has heen given me that this is a part of that type of in-
vestigation, and that if they had simply gone out on the basis of try-
ing to determine Mr. Nader’s interest in Corvair affairs, that they
wouldn’t have gotten very far in finding the answers to the problems
they were seeling.  So it was decided that this preemployment type
investigation would be made, and in the conrse of that type of inves-
tigation again Tam told that questions of this kind are fairly common-
place, as a part of such investigation.
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Senator Kenxeny. Would the Senator yield?
Senator arrrs. Yes,

ROLE OF MIS3 MURPIY

Senator Kexxepy. Not for a question but because I think maybe
there is information in connection with this of which you were un-
aware, while the Senator is. I have Mr. Danner’s statement, which
gives some of the information on which this investigation wag begun
and he talks about & Miss Murphy who I understand is in the legal
department of General Motors Corp.

Mr, Rocue. That is right, Senator Kennedy.

Senator I{eNnwEpY—

A disenssion in some depth ensued at which time Miss Murphy went into
details ag to the type of information needed, including the date and type of
government employment, sources of income, type and locale of law practice,
if any, business associates, movement, and, in short, 2 complete background in-
vestigation of Mr, Nader's activities.

Senator Harris. Were you aware of that, Mr. Roche ?

Mr, Rocur, Yes, I have been aware of that since we started—since
I first knew of the investigation ; yes, sir.

Senator Harnrs. This 1s not news to you to learn of it this morn-

ing?

%Ir. Rocue. Ahout the background investigntion ?

Senator Harrts. Yes.

Mr. Rocuae. No. I would construe background to include some of
these things we are talking about. ‘

Senator Harris. So you think this is different from extraneous
matters, investigating extraneous matters?

Mr. Rocue. T think what we were interested in, Senator, what our
general counsel’s office was interested in, was some knowlecige of Mr.
Nader’s baclkground, expertise in the area of automotive design, his
background as an attorney, and his possible interest in Corvair litiga-
tion, and those were the only areas that were of any interest to ns.
They are.the only areas that I can coneeive would have any value
whatsoever to us, because certainly as I have indicated in my state-
ment, neither I personally or General Motors has any other possible
interest in Mr. Nader.

Senator Harris, Were you aware of these facts of Miss Murphy's
instruetions about how the investigation was to be conducted, and into
what areas? Were grou aware of that at the time you issued the
March 9 press release?

Mr. Rocue. No, sir, I was not. I was given to understand it was a
routine investigation into the areas that I have mentioned. )

Senator Elarris. So it seems to me you would be rather upset with
Miss Murphy then not disclosing those whole facts and let you go
ahead and issue a press release which didn’t state the whole facts.

Mr, Roouk. Senator, I am very much upset about the whole affair.

Senator Kennepy. Let’s not focus on Miss Murphy, whoever she is.
I am sure Miss Murphy works for

Mr. Roonw, Miss Muarphy is a very eapable young lady and a mem-
ber of our legal staff.

Senator Kexxrpy. We just got over St. Patrick’s Day.

Seuator Risicorr. Senator Jackson. )

Senator Jacrson. I have no questions at this time.
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RIGFT OF THE INDIVIDUAL TO PRIVACY

Senator Riercorr. Mr. Roche, there is no question in my mind that
you are an honorable man. There is no guestion in my mind that you
are upset at what has taken place. But I think what we have in front
of us is a question of policy not only of a congressional committee
but a question of policy on behalf of the large corporations, the large
employers of this Nation. There is too much snooping going on in
this country. Privacy, which everyone cherishes as having great
meaning, seems to be downgraded. People don’t feel that others have
the right to invade their private lives, to besmirch their character, and
yet, we have here & situation where you, the leader of one of the biggest
corporations, apparently has incidents going on of which you were
not aware. There is no question in my mind that this was done with-
out your knowledge. I take everything you say and I do not ques-
tion your integrity, Mr. Roche, but I do think it highlights the respon-
sibility of the leaders of American business, and that goes for leaders
of American labor and the leaders even of American Government, to
malke sure that they do everything they can to preserve the individual’s
right of privacy and the integrity of each individual in this country.

ow, let’s sce what happened in this case. I have the detective
reports that were sent apparently to your general counsel. The detec-
tive who was following Mr. Nader reported very frequently. This is
a very thick book Witﬁ daily reports. It runs to manﬁ pages. It is
apparent, as you thumb through and read this report, that practically
none of the investigation had anything to do with what you contended
your investigation was for in your news release of March 9. Prac-
tically no questions were asked of other litigants or attorneys involved
in litigation concerning the Corvair. There was very little inquiry
concerning Mr. Nader’s legal activities. I know Winsted, Conn. Tt
js a small town, in the northwest section of my State. Detectives
invade this small town, They go to the high school principal and start
making personal inquires about a young man of the town who went to
high school.

They ask questions of private citizens. They go to his boyhood
friends and start asking pertinent questions. They go to a small town
like Winsted and ask questions whether a man like Ralph Nader was
anti-Semitic. They ask questions about his sex habits. They go into
questions about his employment, who his friends were, why isn’t a man
like this at his age married ? What grades did he get? Would you hire
him? Now it doesn’t take very long for people to start repeating
that. Before you know it, you have a man who has led a private an
honorable life having reflections cast upon his entire character, and
that of his family, because of these questions that detectives, who
basically aren’t sensitive, ask about a man by the name of Ralph Nader,
and this must be happening all over America with many other Ralph
Naders,

EXTENT OF SURVEILLANCE

Now, are you also aware of the fact that after it was announced on
January 17 that the committee would resume its hearing on the Federal
role in traffic safety and that Ralph Nader would be one of the wit-
nesses, that at that point the detective agency employed by General
Motors placed Mr. Nader under constant surveillance.
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No longer was that just a question of nsking questions in his home-
town and at the university that he went to and among his friends and
assoclates in Hartford, Conn., were he had been associated in the
Er_actxce of lnw. But now he was placed under surveillance. He was

eing followed.

When he went into o restaurant to eat, detectives saw who he was
eating with and what he ordered for lunch. They got the names of
the taxicabs he was riding in. They followed him when he went
into a bank to make a deposit or make a withdrawal. They tried to
determine what hours he kept in the roominghouse where he lived.
Waere you aware then that once it was announced that he—that we
were to resume hearings—that suddenly Mr. Nader was placed under
constant surveillance which terminated at about the time the press
discovered by accident that Mr. Nader was under surveillance? Were
you aware of all that?

Mr. Rocue. No, sir, T was not aware of it, Mr. Chairman. I am
aware now of all of the things that you mentioned, but I certainly
wasnot awgre of it at the time.

Senator Risicorr. And would you say that this, on behalf of Ameri-
can business, to say the least, is most unworthy ¢

Mr. Rocue. Ismost what?

Senator Risrcorr. Is most unworthy?

Mr. Rocue. Yes, I would agree with you, Senator.

Senator Riprcorr. Senutor%ennedyg

Seantor Kennepy. Just a couple of questions, Mr. Roche.

At the time that the press release was put out on March 9, did the
general counsel approve of the press release ?

Mr. Rocue. No, Senator Kennedy, he did not. It was read to him
over the telephone. He was not in the city at the time.

Senator KENnepy, Did he make any objections to the fact that it
wasn'’t completely accurate?

Mr. Rocue. No, sir; he did not.

Senator Kennedy. Was he aware—he must have been aware of these
other reports that he had, since he had ordered these investigations.
Mr. Rocar. He was aware of the reports and the investigation, yes,
sir.

Senator Kexxwpy. Have you found any explanation as to why,
therefore, he did not make any effort to give the accurate and eom-
plete story to the public?

Mr. Rocue. I think that the only explanation, Senator Kennedy,
that again gets back to the preemployment type of investigation, and
whether or not questions of this kind are considered to be commonplace
in that type of an investigation.

Senator Kexnvepy. I gathered originally from the discussion with
Senator Harris that this was decided and determined by the investiga-
tlve agency.

Mr. Rocue. By?

Senator Kenweoy, That this kind of informtaion, the gathering of
these kinds of facts, that this decision was made by the investigating
agency. In fact, it was made by General Motors, was it not?

Mr. RoceE. I think that the preemployment-type investigation ap-
proach was determined by the investigative agency.

Scnator Kennepy. Yes, but all of the kinds of information that
you wanted to gather which the chairman has spoken of and Senator
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Ilarris has touched on, the interest in oblaining that imformation
was indicated by General Motors,

Mr. Rocur. I don’t think that it was ever spelled out in that detail,
Senator Kennedy, andl I can’t conceive of any reason why General
Motors would want any information of this kind with respect to Mr.
Nader.

MIS3 MURFPILY SUGGESTED BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION

Senator KeNnepy. Let me just give you what, according to Mr.
Danner’s testimony, he said, talking again of poor old Miss Murphy.
Ie suys:

Discussion at some depth ensued at which time Miss Murphy went into de-
tails as to the type of information needed, :

Then she spells it out—

including the date and type of government employment, sources of income, type
and locale of Iaw practiee, if any, business associates, movenment—-

She is the one that suggested the preemployment pretext—
and, in ghort, a complete backgrouwud investigatiou of Mr. Nader’s activities.

Now, let me just make my own position clear. I think that you
were justified, if you felt the protection of your own company, your
stockholders and the good name of your automobile, the Corvair, re-
quired it to conduct an investigation of the kind to determine whether
Mr, Nader was in fact in the employment of some of these litigants.
Apparently there was an effort, a conscientious organized offort to try
some of these cases in the newspaper rather than to try them in the
courts. From what I have learned, there has been some of that effort
in the Midwest and some on the west coast rather than just doing it
through the court.

There have been a good deal of public statements in connection with
this matter. So, I understand your concern. I can understand the
fact that you would feel an investigation to determine about Mr.
Nader’s connection and association with these individuals, particu-
larly if he was going to be an expert witness, was completely justi-
fied. That partof it I don't find any fault with.

What I think we are concerned about is whether that investigation
then went on to the area of harassment, intimidation, and possibly
blackmail. These are some of the questlons that werc raised by the
investigators. I think this is a matter that is of concern to us and a
matter of concern to the general public.

It appears to me there ave two points. TFirst, despite the initial
exchange with Scnator Harris, it would appear, and I don’t want to
be unfair about it, but it would appear that the investigation, the
thorough and complete kind of investigation was in fact ovdered by
the representatives of the (General Motors Co. And second; that
when the explanation was put out to the general public prior to your
very candid and honest testimony before the committee; when that
explanation was put out to the general public, it misled and in fact
was really, I might say, false in connection with some of the state-
ments that have becn made.

Now, those two points are of concern, I think, to the committee and
to the general public.
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Mr. Rocnz. Cerpa.in}y that wasnot the intent, Senator Xennedy, and
as I indicated earlier, I think were we writing this release in the iight
of the things that we have learned in the last 10 days

RESPONBIBILITY OF GENERAL MOTORS FOR CONDUCT OF 1NVESTIGATION

Senator Kenwepy. And I can understand why you did it. But
what I don’t understand is why people in your office would permit the
release of a false statement. I mean when you call in someone and say,
we want to put the facts out, we want to be candid and honest with the
general public. DBecause nobody has a greater responsibility really
than General Motors. They are the leading corporation in the United
States, they stand for something not only m this country but all over
the world.

Mr. Rocre. This is certainly not like General Motors, Senator Ken-
nedy, and T understand what you mean. This is a new and strange ex-
pertence for me. It is a new and strange experience for most of the
people with whom I am associated. And we do not like this kind
of an approach to a problem of this kind. And I appreciate the re-
marks you made about our right to investigate in connection with
litigation in the protection of the good name of our product, and I am
satisfied that in all good faith this is why we may have strayed from
the path. I am satisfied that in all honesty and good faith that that
was the sole purpose of attempting to fmg out something about Mr.
Nader’s interest in the Corvair cases,

Senator Kenwepy. Mr. Roche, maybe we are going to develop more
information in connection with this, but it certainly appears to me
from the investigation that was ordered, according to the investigator,
the investigation that was actually conducted, the obvious fact that the
people in General Motors were receiving reports as to what was taking
place, that there were those in General Motors who knew fully and
comp?letely what kind of investigation you were trying to conduct.

Mr. Rocre. I agree with that, Senator Kennedy. There were cer-

tain people on the legal staff who were receiving these reports, had
access to them, and knew the type of investigation.
. Senator KennEpy. I don’t think you could say that it is just the
investigators, but it was really in fact General Motors that directed
this, whether it was you or some of those who worked within the com-
pany—and I agree completely with what the chairman said regarding
your own testimony. I believe that.

Mr. Rocue. Thank you.

"Senator Kewnevy. There is no question about that. But it was a
fact that there were those in General Motors who were conducting the
investigation and there were those, it appears from your own testi-
mony, there were those in General Motors who were conducting the
investigation, knew what the investigntion was all about, and yet per-
mitted the statement which to be charitable about it, was inaccurate,
permitted that statement of March 9, which was inaccurate, which was
placed in the Congressionnl Record, which was relied upon all over the
eountry, permitted that statement to go out. Not only do T think that
the investigation itsclf was serious, the kind of investization that was
conducted, but I think it is terribly serions, almost equally unfortunate
if not, more unfortunate, that General Motors permitted this statement
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to go out on March 9 which so misled the general public and misled
Members of Congress and the press of the United States in connection
with a very serious matter.

WAS MARCH 9 STATEMENT MISLEADING?

Mzr. Rocme. I can assure you, Senator Kennedy, that there was no
intent on the part of anybody to mislead anybody. The all important
consideration on March 9 again was to admit our responsibility.

Senator Kennepy. Mr. Roche, T am going to have to disagree with
that except on your own part. I don’t think that you can argue the
guestion that if the individuals within your legal department knew
of the investigation, knew of the extent of the investigation, ordered
the investigation which would cover “movement,” reccived reports,
and examined the statement that went out on March 9, that they can
then say that they were being eandid or honest with the general public
or with the Congress of the United States. Wouldn’t you say this
raises serious questions about that? :

Mr. Rocme. I think it raises a question, Senator Kennedy, but again
I think when we get back to the interpretation of what would be re-
garded as a commonplace investigation under the circumstances of a
preemployment-type cheek versus some other kind of a check.

Senator KenNEDpY. Noj that is not what the question is, Mr. Roche,
if I may disagree with you. Again, I am not geing to prolong this,
but my point is that the investigation was ordered by the legal staff.
They stated quite clearly what they wanted to cover. They received
reports as to what they wanted to cover, No. 3 and 4, and after receiv-
ing those reports, approved of a statement that went out on March 9.
Somebody within the General Motors structure was not being honest
and candid with the public. Would yon agree?

Mr. Rocusn. Or perhaps the communications were not as good ns
they shonld have been, Senator.

Senator Kenxepy. Mr. Roche, T have got the statement. Are we
going to go through this?

Mr. Rocur. No. That isn’t what I meant.

Senator Kenwepy, I mean it is not a question of communications.
Both of us can read.

Mr. Rocue. No, no.

Senator Ken~Epy. You mean within General Motors ?

Mr. Rocap. I mean within the analysis of the reports, yes, sir; within
General Motors, sure; yes, sir.

Senator Kenweny. { understood you said it was read over the phone.
I can’t believe Gencral Motors——

Mr. Rocue. No, Senator Kennedy.

Senator Kenweny. I can’t believe that with the record that General
Motors has made in the United States, that theK would run something
like this, that they would be so inefficient that that kind of a statement
went out earclessly.

Mr. Rocmn. No, the statement did not go out carelessly, Senator
Kennedy. I assure yon it is one of the most difficult statements that
Lever had anything to do with. .

Senator KenNenY. So, therefore, you must have talked to the people
who knew about it, and the people who knew about it, knew it was
1naceurnte.
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Mr. Rocui. We talked to representatives of our

Senator Kexxepy. But they must have known it was inaccurate at
the time the statement was put out.

Mr. Rocne. They can answer that only for themselves, Senator
Kennedy.

Senator Iunwepy. Have you asked them yourself since then, since
you have learned more facts about this yourself?

Mz, Rocue. T think that some of them did not know about it; yes,
8iT,

Senator Krnweny. Wait o minute. Tt is not the question of some-
one not knowing about it. Did you ask them whether they knew it
was inaccurate at the time? Did you raise a question about the fact
that they permitted you to put out a statement that was itself
inaccurate.

Mr. RocuEe. Yes; we have discussed that., We have discussed that.

Senator I{ennepy. Did they have some reason for it ?

Mr. Rocue. I think in the minds of the people who were working
on the statement, they believed it was a proper statement at that point;
yes, sir. '

Senator Kenwepy, I like my General Motors car, but you shake me
me up o little bit.

Mr. RocsE. T am not trying to shake you up at all, Senator Ken-
nedy. Again I think that thisthing, that this whole affair was under-
taken by our legal staff and:

Senator Kenvepy. Let me just say this closing, I don’t see how
you can know the facts, I don’t see how you could order the investiga-
tion as the representative of your legal department did, order, the
investigation to be conducted as it was, that you received periodically
or your legal staff receive periodic reports as to what was taking
place, including what the chairman deseribed, and then put out a
statement like this, which is not accurate, which you agree is not
accurate, and which was reviewed by the very people who knew the
facts and who ordered the investigation.

That, Mr. Roche, disturbs me as much as the fact that you con-
ducted the investigation in the way that it was conducted in the
beginning. Isn’t it equally as disturbing to you?

Mr. Rocue. Yes, sir; it 13, and I agree that if we were rewriting the
statement in the light of what we have learned since, that the state-
ment would be changed.

Senator Ripicorr. Senator Harris, do you have any more guestions?

Senator Harnrrs. Mr. Roche, you say that in the Yight of the facts
the statement would have been changed?

GM EMPLOYEES ENEW MARCH 9 STATEMENT WAS NOT COMPLETE

Mr. Rocue. Yes, sir.

Senator Harrrs. And do you agree that there were those within
(zeneral Motors—and the corporation of course has to assume responsi-
bility for its employees—there were those within General Motors who
knew that extraneous matters were regularly being investigated, and
that that was not reported in this statement of iIa.rch 9 issued by
General Motors,

Mr, RocrE. There were people in General Motors who were receiv-
ng copies of this report, yes, Senator, and some of the things that
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were included in that report, including the type of investigation that
was undertaken, was not covered in this statement, yes, sir,

Senator Harms. I want to say, too, I appreciate your personal
candor, but I trust that there are lessons to be learned for everybody
in this situation for the future?

Mr. Rocue. I can assure that that lesson has been learned,

Senator Risrcorr. Senator Jackson?

Senator Jacksow. No questions,

TIMING OI' PRESS RELEASE

Senator Rmrcorr. I am just curious, Does General Motors usually
issue press releases at 10 o’clock af night?

Mr. Rocue. No, sir; it does not, gcnator Ribicoff. First of all, it
was released a little ahead of that. T wasin New York on the duay that
I first lenrned of this, as I think I indicated, and I left New York that
night and returned to Detroit. I had an important meeting the next
morning at our technical center and did not get back to the office until
the afternoon, the early afternoon. In the meantime I had instructed
our legal department to go to work on the kind of statement that we
conld make, with our public relations people, and for my review at
the time when I returned to the office. I returned to the office in the
early afternoon, and we worked on the statement and different versions
of it from approximately 2:30 in the afternoon, I wounld say until
about 8§ :30 that night when I left the office and saw the statement, and
from then on it was the mechanics of preparing it that resuited in
the timing of it. '

Senator Riercorr. Mr. Roche, I assume that when you learned about
this and the statement was issned that you relied completely on your
legal staff. You probably had not seen the detailed reports from the
detective agency, had you?

Mr. Rocwue, No, sir; I did not see any of the detailed reports.

Senator Risrcorr. And therefore you felt that you could rely upon
your general counsel to issue a statement that would reflect what had
taken place.

Mr. Rocue. I relied on the assistant general counsel who was han-
dling the affair for the general counsel who was not in town yes, sir.

Senator Risrcorr. Was this matter—the whole matter of Nader—
handled by your general counsel or by your assistant general connsel ?

Mr. Rocre. The whole matter of Nader, the investigation was ap-
proved by our general counsel.

Senator Rieicorr. And his name is?

Mr. Rocue. Aloysins F. Power.

Senator Rinrcorr. If there arc no other questions of Mr. Roche, 1
think we onght to have Mr. Power testify so we can get an idea just
actnally what did take place.

Senator Kennepy, Could T just say, Mr. Roche, the announcement,
the timing of the announcement reminds me a little bit. of an incident in
which T wag personally involved when President Kennedy was about
to name his first Attorney General to his Cabinet. When asked how
he would announnce it, he said, “I will open the door at 2 o’clock in the
morning and say he is my brother.,” [Laughter.]

ISenf;tor Rrzrcorr. Is Mr. Power here? Would you come forward,
please?
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Mr. Rocuk. May I thank you, Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen for
your courtesy ?

Senator Risrcorr. Thank you, Mr. Roche. Mr. Power, would you
bring with you Mr. Bridenstine and Miss Murphy. We might as well
have you all appear at the time time.

Mr. Roche and Mr. Sorenson, I think it would be preferable if you
stayed during the rest of the hearings. Mr. Nader might have some-
thing to say. Certainly, if there is anything you gentlemen would
lilce to rebut, you will have the opportunity to do so. We would like
to have the hearing as complete and as fair as possible.

Would there be any objection on the part of you, Mr. Bridenstine,
Mr. Power, for you and Miss Murphy to be sworn and take the oath?

You do solemnly swear that the testimony you shall give before
the Senate subcommittee shall be the truth, the whole truth and noth-
ing but the truth, s help you God ?

Mr. Power. Ido.

Mr. Bripenstive, Ido.

Miss Mureny. Ido.

Mr.Daxwer. Ido.

Senator Risrcorr. You may proceed with your statement. Do you
Power, or would you prefer to be questioned? Do you have a state-
ment ? :

Mr. Power. Yes, I would like to make a statement.

Senator Risicorr. You muoy procced with your statement. Do you
have any copies by any chance ?

Mr. Powgr. That is the only copy that they have here. We will get
together additional copies and file them.

Senator Riricorr. All right you may proceed.

TESTIMONY OF ALOYSIUS F. POWER, GENERAL COUNSEL, GENERAL
MOTORS; ACCOMPANIED BY LOUIS H. BRIDENSTINE, ASSISTANT
GENERAL COUNSEL, GENERAL MOTORS; MISS EILEEN MURFHY,
GENERAL MOTORS LEGAL DEPARTMENT; AND RICHARD G.
DANNER, ATTORNEY

Mr. Powzr. The decision that an investigation of Mr. Ralph Nader
should be undertaken was made by me in the discharge of my re-
sponsibilities as the general counsel of General Motors. This decision
was arrived at and the investigstion was commenced in the month
of November 1965 which was some 2 months prior to the time when
I or any other representative of General Motors first learned that Mr.
Nader was scheduled to appear as a witness before any congressional
or legislative committee.

The investigation was undertaken as a prudent and appropriate
measure in the preparation of the defense of a series of major lawsuits
then pending against General Motors. It was not undertaken for
the purpose of harassing or intimidating a witness before any congres-
sional or legislative committce.

In the light of the sitnation existing at thal time, I could not have
arrived at any other decision consistent with my resopnsiblities as
the general counsel of General Mators.
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LEGAL DASIS OF NADER INVESTIGATION

As of November 1965 the design of the Corvair automobile was
under a concerted attack in 106 suits pending in 28 different States
throughout the United States. Before reviewing the background
of these lawsuits and the factors which led to our belief in the need
for information about Mr. Nader, I would like to refer briefly to the
well settled legal basis for such an inquiry.

In lawsuits involving the design and safety of complex products like
an automobile, the testimony and writings of purported experts are
not. incidental kinds of proof but are of the utmost importance. The
outcome of such Titigation very often turns entirely upon the testi-
mony of such witnesses. It is, therefore, axiomatic as Senior Federal
District Judge Rodney has said in 1961, that—
the weight and value of the testimony of the expert witness depends largely
upon the qualifieations [of] such expert and these qualifications may be the
subject of intensive investigation by the opposing ecounsel. (Miller v. U.8,, 102
F. Supp. 218, 222 (D. Del. 1961).)

How knowledgeable is the expert? What is his background? How
reliable and worthy of belief is he? Does he have a personal interest
in the outcome of the litigation or any similar litigation? Have his
writings been arranged for by the attorneys for an adverse party
rather than constituting the anthor’s own independent and disinter-
ested work? (Cf. Hatch v. Ooms, 69 F. Supp. 788, Aff'd, 338 U.S.
318.) TUnless the relevant facts can be determined and brought out, the
court and jury may be misled and the cause of justice thwarted.

Tt is essential that such matters be investigated in advance of trial so
that any bias or self-interest may be exposed by eross-examination or
in argument to the court. And of course, a party need not do the
investigating himself but may employ others to do it for him. As the
California Supreme Court said in Hare v. M efiue:

Anyone has a right when threatened with litigation or desiring himself to
sue, to employ assistance with a view of agcertaining facts as they exist. (171
Pac. 663, 664 (Cal. 1918).)

Another consideration which has been in the forefront of our mninds
has been canon 20 of the Canons of Professional Kthics of the Ameri-
can Bar Association. This canon condemns publie discussion or state-
ment by a lawyer concerning pending or anticipated litigation.

The scope of and the reasons for this rule having been clearly articu-
lIated in two (E)inions of the American Bar Associntion Committee on

{

Professional Fthics and Grievances:
Canon 20.
(and I am quoting)

Precluding newspaper discussion of pending litigations, applies not only to dis-
cussion in newspapers, but to any dicussion in o magazine, including legal maga-
Zined or other publications intended or calculated to influence the decision in a
pending case in which the writer is eounsel, and would also inelude by implien-
tion similar radio and television broadesst. (A.B.A, Opinion 256 A, in Drinker,
Legal Bthics 208 (1953).)

Our fundomental concepts of justice and our Ameriean sense of fairplay
require that the petit jury shall be composcd of persons with fair and hmpartial
minds and without preconceived views as to the merits of the controversy and
that it shall determine the issnes presented to it solely upon the evidence addneed
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at the trinl and according to th v given i instructi i

eyl e acsaiding Lo the law glven in th insteuctions of the trint e
Grievances.)

. As the Supreme Court has so aptly put it, “it is impermissible to
litigate by day and castigate by night. ~ (/n re Sawyer, 360 U.S. 622,
635.) When an attorney is confronted with activities by op-
posing counsel or his agents, which indicate a possible violation of
canon 20, and which may be prejudicial to his client’s right to a fair
trial, he obviously has the duty to seek to ascertain the facts.

1 might also refer in passing to canon 27 of the Canons of Profes-
sional Ethics of the American Bar Association, which condemns the
solicitation of professional employment “by circulars, advertisements,
through touters or by 1personal communications or interviews not war-
ranted by personal relations,” and specifically refers to “indirect nd-
vertisements for professional employment such as furnishing or in-
spiring newspaper cominents,”

RELATION OF CORVAIR LITIGATION TO INVESTIGATION

With these legal aspects in mind, let me describe those circumstances
relating to the Corvair litigation which led to the conclusion that there
should be an investigation. In order to place in proper perspective
this conelusion arrived at in November of 1965, it is first necessary to
review the developments which had occurred during the several years
immediately preceding, The Corvair automobile was introduced in
the fall of 1959. In October of 1962 there were 15 cases ending, 14 of
which had been filed by a single Los Angeles law firm, %arney, Ford
& Schlottman. In that month the following advertisement placed
through the Los Angeles News Service, Inc., appeared in the legal
newspapers of Los Angeles and a number of other cities across the
country, such as Chicago, New Orleans, Baltimore, and Pittsburgh.
I am quoting now from the advertisement:

Attention attorneys: Council representing plaintiffs in suits against General
Motors Corp. regarding alleged breach of warranty of fitness and negligence in

design of Corvair automobile desires to exchange information with other attor-
neys representing plaintiffs in similar suits,

Copies of these ads are attached as exhibit 117.

Exursit 117
[From the Chicago Law Bulletin, Oet, 17, 19621

Notice 10 I.AWYERS !

Counsel representing plaintiffs in suits against General Motors Corporation
regarding alleged breach of warranty of fitness and negligence in design of Cor-
vair nutomobile desires to exchange information with other attorneys represent-
Ing plaintiffs in similar snits.

Please write Box 0-8, Law Bulletin.

[(From the Chicago Daily Law Bulletin, Cct. 15, 1962]
NoOTICE To LLAWYERS !

Counsel representing plaintiffs in suits against General Motors Corporation
regarding alledged breach of warranty of fitness and negligence in design of




1406 FEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFLETY

Corvair automobile desires to exchange inforntation with other attorneys repre-
genting plaintiffs in gimilar suits. .
Please write Box -8, Law Bulletin.

[From the Daily Record, Baltimore, Md., Oct. 15, 1062]

Counsel representing plaintiffs in suits against Genernl .Motors_COrpo‘ration
regarding nlleged breach of warranty to fitness and negligence in design .of
Clorvair automobile desires to exchange in.fm:matlon with other' attorneys repre-
genting plaintiffs in similar suits. Please write Box 23, The Daily Record, Balti-
more 3. o0l5-5t

[From the Los Angeles Dally Journal, Oct. 19, 1962]
PERSONALS

Counsel representing plaintiffs in suits agninst General Motors Corporation
regarding alledged breach of warranty of ﬁtneg«s unc_l negligence in design .of
Corvair automobile desires to exchange informgtlon with other Attorncys repre-
genting plaintiffs In similar suits. FPlense write Box 133, Los Angeles Daily
Journal,

{From the OMecial Datly Court Record, New Orleans, La., Oct, 19, 1982]
ATTENTTON ATTORNEYS

Counsel representing plaintiffs in suits against General Motors Corpn_ratlol;
regarding slleged breach of warranty of ﬁtness_ﬁ and' negligence in design o
Corvair automobile desires to exchange information WItl} other attorneys repre-
genting plaintiffs in similor suits. Please write Box 511, The Offictal Daily Court
Ttecord.

[I'rom the Pitteburgh Legal Journal, Oct. 19, 1642]

Counsel representing plaintiffs in suits against General Motors Corporation
regarding alleged breach of warranty of fitness and negligence in design of Cor-
vatr Automobile desires to exehnnge information with other attorneys represent-
ing plaintiffs in similar snits. T'lense write Box 402, % Pittsburgh Legul J ournal,

Exiisrr 118

Tue Lisrary OF CONGREBS,
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE SERVICE,
Washington, D.C., March 16, 1968,

To : Senate Subcommittee on Executive Reorganization.

From : American Law Division,

Subject: Legal lithicy.

{ Attention of Mr. Wager). ) .

Thig ig in response to your inquiry of Mareh 11, .1966}, for mfgrmqtlon 01'1 the
practice of attorneys placing notices in legal publications seeking mformatit}a}n
from other attorneys as to legal cases, especially in regard to the ethics of the

1‘1 : = . » 'Y . N
P :\L ggsgrch of the ethics opinions of the Amnerican Bar Agsociation’s Committe¢
on Professional Ethics has falled to turn up any ruling on the questlon. .

At your request we telephoned the Chicago officeg of the :}.H.A. (312~H1;3—
0333) and talked to a Mr. Rivers, He advised us that to his knowledge _t‘ '1
practice wag not widespread and indeed was rare and_ th_at he was nofamilior
with auy relevant opinions. He will, however, check hig files and forward to us
by mail any retevant material which he finds. i

Such material will be forwarded to you upon receipt.

JounnNy II. KILLIAN,
Legislative Attorney.
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THE LIERARY OF CONGRESS,
LEGISLATIVE REFEEENQOE SERVICE,
Washington, D.C.,, March 17, 19686,
To: Senate Subcommliitee on Executive Reorganization.
From: American Law Division,
Subject : Legal Ethies Question,
(Attention of Mr. Wager),

This ig in further angwer to your inquiry of March 11. We enclose a copy of a
letter from the Assistant Director, Division of Commitiee Services, American
Bar Asspciation in response to cur ingquiry.

Jounny H. KrLrranw,
Legislative Attorney.

AMERICAN BAR ABSSOCIATION,

Chicago, IH., March 15, 1966.
Mr, Jounw H. KILLIAN,

Legislative Reference Serviee,
Library of Congress,
Washington, D.C.
Dear Mu. KiLtzan: As I understand the question which you posed in our tele-
phone conversation today, it is the propriety and prevalence of an atiorney

soliciting ndvice and information through legal periodicals. from other attorneys
who have handled similar cases,

With reference to the prevalence aspect of the question, I have discussed.the
matter with our Division of State and Local Bar Servicea ns well as the staff of
the American Bar Journal. Both of these sources of information do not recall
ever sceing such a request in a legal periodical and indicate that although the
practice possibly exists, it i3 not likely very prevalent. . '

With regard to the ethical propriety of such a request, I have researched the
Opiniong of the Committee on Professgional Ethics but have been unable to find
any Opinion dealing with this subject. In this connection, however, you may
wish to know that any member of the Association is eligible to request a separate

Opinion of the Ethics Committee on any ethics question which does not involve
past conduet.

Sincerely yours, g

: JaMES E. REMMERT,
Assistant Director, Division of Commitiee Services.’

Thereafter, the number of such lawsuits increased, and in June
1964 there were 30 cases pending, of which 25 had been filed in south-
ern California by the Harney firm. During that month, the case of
Rose Pierini v. Washburn Chevrolet, o Chevrolet dealer and General
Motors came to trizl in Santa Barbara, Calif. Both defendants were
fully insured by the Royal-Globe Insurance Co. and represented by
counsel retained by Royal. Mr. Harney represented the plaintiffs.

At the outset of the trial there was testimony that shortly before
the accident in which Mrs, Pierini’s arm had been completely severed,
her car had been serviced by a student who was an inexperienced part-
time employee of the codefendant dealer. A police officer testified
that, at the scene of the accident, Mrs. P'ierini had asked him to re-
trieve her wedding ring and wrist watch from her severed arm which
was lying some distance away. The jury was permitied to view
colored pictures of the stump of Mra. Pierini’s arm. These pictures
had been taken in the hospital when the wound was raw and bleed-
ing, and they were gruesome in the extreme.

PIERINTI CASE BETTLEMENT

In the face of these developments, and conscious of the axtent to
which the emotions and compassion of the jury had inevitably been
49-950—66—pt. 4—3
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aroused, the Royal claims manager discussed the case with plaintift’s
counsel, and offered to settle the $300,000 claim for the sum of $70,000.
This offer was accepted, and as a result of the settlement, the defend-
ant’s evidence was never presented.

The settlement of a lawsuit either before trial or after trial has
started does not constitute any admission of liability on the part of a
defendant, and, in fact, courts will not permit any reference to a
settlement for this purpose. Nevertheless, within 2 hours of the settle-
ment, Mr. Harney appeared on a local Santa Barbara TV newscast
during which the settlement of the lawsuit was hailed as a victory for
the plaintiff.

One of the most startling aspects of Mr, Harney’s television appear-
ance—and most prejudical to the fair trial of the other Corvair cases—
was the showing of a movie which Mr. Harney had caused to be made
prior to the trial. The film showed a Corvair automobile being driven
and finally turned over by a racing driver named Paul O’Shea, who
was one of Mr. Ilarney’s proposed witnesses at the trial. As a result
of the publicity generated by the settlement, and Mr. Harney’s tele-
vision appearance, the wire services picked up the story of the settle-
ment and it appeared in a number of newspapers throughout the coun-
try the next day.

The settlement of the Pierini case was publicized on a nationwide
basis as a vietory for the plaintiffs in the first in a series of some 30

ending cases involving the design of the Corvair automobile, this,
ges ite the fact that not a single engineering witness had testified
at the trial, and despite the fact that the case had been settled before
any of the defendants’ evidence had been introduced.

Following this publicity, General Motors began to receive letters
from stockholders and Corvair owners all over the country. Some who
assumed that the truth of the charges with respect to the Corvair had
been established, expressed fears for their own personal safety, and
demanded to know why General Motors had manufactured such a car.
Others reported the completely satisfactory performance of their
own Corvairs, and their indignation at the charges which were being
made against General Motors.

After the settlement of and publicity in connection with the Pierini
case, the Harney firm filed an additional 24 cases bringing their total
to 48 cases.

Senator Kenxeny. Could I interrupt a minute? I understand that
this was about Mr, Nader. I didn’t know Mr. Harney was going to
be——

Mr. Power. We are trying to show what our motive was in making
the investigation of Mr. Nader. Mr. Nader comes into this picture
very strongly in connection with this very Péerini case that we are
talking about, and I would like the opportunity to present this.

Senator Kexnepy. I have no objection to listening. T just didn’
know what the connection was.

Mr. Power. That is what we are coming to.

Senator Kennepy. I didn’t know what we were leading to.

Mr. Power. Some 9 months later, in March 1965, a feature article
appeared in a tabloid called Midnight, which is distributed on many
newsstands. Emblazoned over the entire front page was “150 Law-

suts Charge: GM Cars Are Death Traps—Hushed-Up Evidence
Revealed in Court.”
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The center spread article was headlined “GM Sued for Unsafe
Autos. Womoen Awarded 70 G's for Loss of Arm in Defective
Corvair,”

Then followed a story of the Pierini settlement, and excerpts from
the complaints in 13 cases which the article indicated were before the
courts. Of the 13 cases listed, process in 3 of them had not even been
served when this issue of Midnight was published, and 1 had not even
been filed. A review of our files shortly thereafter revealed that all
of the 13 cases had been filed by the firm which had negotiated the
Pierini settlement, Harney, Ford and Schlottman. The headline of
this March 22, 1965, issue of Midnight is attached.

[From the Midnight, Mar. 22, 1985]

Exuaisrr 119
150 Lawspirs Caarce: GM Cars ArRe DEATHTRATS

HUSHED UP EVIDENCE REVEALED IN GCOURT

COLLINE CABE

Again General Motors received a flood of letters.

The first complete trisl of a Corvair design case, Doreen Collins v.
General Motors Corporation, et al., began in June 1965 in the superior
court in San Jose, Calif. Again Mr. Harney was principal trial attor-
ney for plaintiff, who claimed $400,000 in damages for the death of a
daughter, and for injuries to herself and three other children. Plain-
tiff’s case consumed some 8 weeks, during which time numerous wit-
nesses testified. The expert engineering witnesses called by the de-
fendant inecluded Mr. Frank J. Winchell, Chevrolet chief research
and development engineer, Dr. Frank Arnold and Dr, John Shine,
both of Stanford University, and Dr. Ralph Moyer of the University
of California. :

At the end of the 10-week trial, the jury returned a verdict for Gen-
eral Motors.

ANDERSON OASE

One month after the start of the Collins trial in California, and 5
weeks before its conclusion, another case, that of Vivian . Anderson
v. General Motors Corporation went to trial in Clearwater, Fla.
This case involved death and injury to two young lawyer lagislators
with judgment sought in the neighborhoog of %1 million. As in
the Collins case, the allegation by the plaintiff Anderson and the
Erogs—clgimant driver, Russell, was that the Corvair was defectively

esigned,

During this 8-week trial, the plaintiff and cross-claimant put on
many expert witnesses, including%)rof. Thomas Manos, who had also
testified for the plaintiff in the Colling case. As in the Collins case,
the jury in Florida was instructed by the court that all the plaintiff and
cross-claimant had to prove in order to recover from General Motors
was that the Corvair was defective and that such defect had caused the
injuries. The jury returned a unanimous verdict in favor of Gen-
%{al 1\{1[101501'9 against both the plaintiff Anderson and the cross-claimant

ussell.
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While the C'ollins and Anderson cases were still on trial, Mr. Harry
M. Philo of the law firm of Goodman, Crockett, Eden, Robb & Philo,
of Detroit, Mich., made a presentation attacking General Motors and
the Corvair at the annual meeting at ATLA in Miami, Fla., on July 25,
1965. ATLA (American Trial Lawyers Assoclation) is the newly
adopted name of NACCA (National Association of Claimants’ Coun-
sel of America) which was also known at the National Association of
Claimants’ Compensation Attorneys. The association of which Mr.
Philo is an active member is composed largely of attorneys who spe-
cialize in the field of personal injury litigation, usually on a contingent
fee basis, At the very time Mr. ]El’—ﬁilo was making his Miami speech,
his law firm was in the midst of the Anderson trial in nearby Clear-
water, representing the cross-claimant driver against General Motors,
and also had a suit pending in the Michigan courts against General
Motors involving an accident alleged to be due to the faulty design
of the 1962 Corvair. .

In his presentation to the ATLA annual meeting, Mr. Philo made a
number of unsupported and sensational charges regarding the 1960-63
Corvair. Xle agserted that:

It is impossible to predict how many injuries and deaths have resulted from
the instability of the Corvair automobile, but my guess is that it would reach
five figures.

There is a drawing board error in the basic rear suspension geometry.

General Motors, therefore, had warnings of the deficiencies of the independent
rear swing axle suspension which would allow the rear wheels to tuck under

during severe cornering conditions; * * * lower cost was the major considera-
tion in the choice of the rear suspension, not safety.

* These assertions received substantial publicity in,newépapers. _
. Attached as examples are articles from the Miami Herald. Addi-
tional examples of this kind of publicity are attached.

‘PUBLICITY REQARDING CORVAIR CASES
{From The Miami Herald, July 29, 1945)
ExuIpiT 120
More Surts AIMED AT AUTO MARERS?
(By Stuart Auerbach, ¥erald Staff Writer)

A Detroit attorney Wednesday predicted an increasing number of cases against
antomobile manufacturers for the unsafe design and construction of cars.
- » * ’ » L L] L]

Dean A. Robb, attending the American Triel Lawyers convention at the Fon-
tainebleaun Hotel, Miami Beach, said two tests cases are now in the courts—one
in Clearwater,

Robb said his firm has wrecked three cars in building up a case against the
automobile manufacturers, .

In an interview, he chastised manufacturers for a deley in Installing safety
features—Ilike seat belts—in cars. .

“For at least 10 years, auto manufacturers have known that seat belts would
save'many persons from injury or death,” he said. “They had a duty to tell us
that.” .

In ¢ number of cases, Robb said, the automobile manufacturer hag been added
ns A second party in a4 personal injury case—along with the person charged
with the accident. LT

Robb’s partner, Harry M, Philo, has told the convention that about 160 suits
have been filed against General Motors. The suits claim that 1860 through 1963
models of Corvair tend to go out of control because of a design error corrected
in the 1964 and 1965 cars.
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“It is impossible to predict how many injuries and deaths have resulted from
the instability of the Corvalr automobile,” Philo said, “but my guess is that it
would reach five figures.”

He said that 1,000 suits were brought against nutomobile manufacturers last
year, and the number would increase to 5,000 next year.

Philo’s talk on Bunday provided a primer for other lawyers planning suits
against General Motors. He sald the rear suspension of the Corvair was badly
designed.

“A blowout, a gust of wind, being passed by & large truck, 8 curves, small-
radius curvey, o hole or bump in the rord which causes an emergency steering
wheel correction, can cause the Corvair to go completely out of control,” he raid.

Philo quoted two General Motors consultants as describing the dangers of the.
Corvair's engineering.

Philo charged the entire auto industry “has not only been negligent in its fail-
ure to provide crash-worthy vehicles, it has been grossly negleciful in the past in
its research concerning automobile stability and control.”

[From the Detroit Free Press, Jan, 11, 1864]
Exumir 121

1960 10 1963 MopELE—STATE BAN UroEp o8 QLD CORVAIRS
{By Phil Corner, Free Press Staff Writer)

The national chairman of the American Trial Lawyers Safety Committee urged
the State Legislature Monday to bar from Michigan highways Corvair autos
menufactured in the model years 1860 through 1963,

“You have to get the Corvairs off the road,” Detroit attorney Harry M. Philo,
president of the local chapter of the American Trial Lawyers Association, told a
special State Senate study committee, -

(General Motors officinls sald they had no comment on Philo’s statement.

Philo was the final speaker at a four-hour eommittee hearing on highway
safety legislation.

Committee Chairman John T, Bowman (D., Roseville) said Philo’s comments
would pbe given further study. .

Bowman promiged “strong, positive action” by the 1088 legislature in.auto
safety and predicted enactment this session of a compulsory motor vehlele in-
spection law.

Philo focused his talk on automotive deslgn defects and urged the Legislature
to get tough with manufacturers.

He said Corvair made between 1960 and 1963 were deslgned negligently in that
they did not have “sufficlent cornering capacity to meet unexpected situations.”

“The second it becomes unstable,” he said, “it goes out of contirol and as soon
as it goes out of control, it turns over.”

He called for legislation requiring manufacturers to meet adequate cornering
standards and said, “If the Corvalrsg are allowed to continue to operate, I think
the Legislature is derelict in its duty.”

He told the committee that General Motors Corp. remedled the defects In its
laoter Corvair models. .

Philo, who has been involved in several damage suits growing out of Corvair
accidents, said he has discussed the vehiele in talks before 10,000 trial lawyers.

Thilo alse called for legislation requiring dual braking systems on all autos
and new standards for tires. He said most safety efforts are aimed at the driver
and the highways and overlook the problem of deslgn.

“The only way that we can reduce injurles and deaths is by attacking vehicle
design,” he declared. ]

He said manufacturers must design vehicles with the alm (1) of preventing
aceidents and (2) of minimizing danger to the autoe's cccupants when an gecident
does occur.

He said legal precedent for writing such gafety standards into the law was set
in 1902 when the Michigan Legislature banned the sale of unsafe cornpickers.

Bowman said he would push for more stringent controis on tire performn
ance, But, regarding Philo’s testimony, he said, “None of ug in the Legislature,
including myself, are eXperts in the field of auto design.”
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Mechanical inspeection legizlation is a perennial. Bills presently are shelved
in House and Senate committees. .

Bowman said he would prefer that a mechanical inspection program be handled
administratively by the State Police. .

[From the New Bedford Times {Mass.), Jan, 11, 1066]1
Exmimir 122
OUTLAWING EARLY CORVAIRS TJRGED

DerrolT, Jan. 11 (AP).—A representative of the Ameriean Trial Lawyers
Asgociation urged today that Michigan bar the 1860-83 model Corvair autos
from the roads,

A Michigan Senate Special Highway Safety Committee heard the proposal
from Harry M. Philo of Detroit, chairman of the association’s National Safety
Committee, i :

Philo said Corvairs made between 1960 and 1983 were unsafe to drive beenuse
of what he called designing defects. Ile said General Motors Corporation, manu-
facturer of the Corvair, remedied the defects In its later models.

[From the Kaneas City Star, Jan. 11, 1986]
HExuipiT 123
Wourp BAR CORVAIRS

THE 1960-63 MODELS ARE BRANDED Aé UNBAFE

Derroir (AP.)—A representative of the American Trial Lawyers association
El:ged ygsterday that Michigan bar the 1860-63 model Corvair automobiles from

e roads.

A Michigan Senate special highway safety committee henrd the proposal, from
Hfﬁry M. Philo of Detroit, chairman of the assoclation’s national safety com-
mittee,

Philo said Corvairs made between 1060 and 1963 were unsafe to drive because
of what he called designing defects. He said the General Motors corporation,
manufacturer of the Corvair, remedied the defects in its later models.

General Motors declined eomment on Phile’s proposal.

ExHIiBIT 124

GENERAL Motors CORP.,

Detroit, Mich., January 26, .
Hon. Joan T. BowMAN, ’ ' "y 26, 1966

Chairman Interim Committee of the Highway Committee,
Lansing, Mich.

Desr Sewator BowMaw: It disturbed us to learn through news er and
radlo reports that Mr. Harry M. Philo made an unsn]icitedgappenmggg before
Sa’g;r committee and from this forum made the unsupported and sensational
o ;rtion that the 1960 through 1963 model Corvairs are defectively designed
o dangerous and should be panned from the Michigan roads. In his state-
went befpre your committee, he reached the point of asserting that this iz “the

grSt.crl_me that's happening in Michigan today" and that the design of the

TVair ig “a‘h.orrible problem.” He concluded “that there’s probably been

/000 serfous injuries and deaths from the negligent design of the Corvair.”
imite"-dl"hilro_ admitted that he was not an automotive safety engineer but was
over ﬂh a t_rxal lawyer who is President of the Detroit ehapter of ATLA. How-
he ci{de did not make clear in what capacity he wags appearing., In addition,

ot state that ATLA is an associntion of plaintiffs’ attorneys whose

memmbers o N s tee p t
maﬂﬂfu:tzﬁgﬁg?hze in product liability litigation on a contingent fee basis against

FEDERAL ROLL LN TRAFFIC SAFETY 1413

Most importantly, he did not make clear to the connmittee that: (1) he and
his law firm represent plainkiffs in litigation now in the Michigan courts based on
the asgertions he made before the committee against the Corvair; and (2) he and
his firm also represented a party in Clearwater, Florida, in a case tried last
summer in which he unsuceessfully made the same cinim that the Corvair was
defectively designed. . - :

The fact that Mr, Philo currently represents plaintifts in Corvair litigation
and therefore has o pecuniary .interest in having people believe the claim that
the Corvair is defectively designed is a material fact to consider in assessing
why he appeared before your committee aud the validity of his assertions.

Ag you no doubt know, the Canons of Professional Ethics of the American
Bar Association as well as the Canong of Ethiecs. of the Michignn State Bar
condemn attorneys’ use of newspaper publicity regarding pending or anticipated
litigation. - In keeping with both the letter and spirit of-these canons, it has
been a General Motors policy of long standing that it will not make any public
statements directly to news media or indirectly at any public hearings relating
to matters that are in litigatiom. Our experience has: been that legislative
committees recognize and accept the validity of that policy. - We presume that
you also subscribe to this, Therefore, consistent with our policy and practice,
we have not included in this statement to your committee evidence establigshing
the safe dezign of the 19601963 Corvair.

However, to assure that your committee is no misled, we can advise you
regarding litigation already terminated. In the only two cases in which this
claim that the Corvair is defectively designed has been tried and decidegd, the
juries in both instances returned verdicts in favor of General Motors. The first
case Iinvolved a trial of ten weeks In San Jose, California. The second case,
in which Mr., Philo and his law firm participated, involved a six weeks' trial in
Clearwater, Florida. In his statement before your eommittee, Mr. Philo named
Dr. Thomas Manos as authority for Mr. Philo's assertions. It is interesting that
Dr, Manos testifled at length for the plaint!ff and was cross-examined in both
trialg regarding his tests and conclusions on the Corvair design.

In these two trials, we, of course, presented evidence and our witnesses were
cross-examined regarding the development, design and performance of the
Corvair. In both cases, and under proper rules of procedure and evidence, the
juries disagreed with plaintiffs’ counset and agreed with our position.

Consistent with the Canons of Ethies and our long-standing policy, we have
not undertaken in this statement to provide specific answers to Mr. Philo’s
assertions before your committee. However, you ean be assured that General
Motors ls prepared to answer Mr. Philo clearly and completely in the proper
forum—the courtroom.

We trust that the above will help your committee assess the weight to be given
to Mr, Philo's appearance and to his unsupported statements regarding the
design of the Corvair. We would appreciate your making this statement part
of the records of the committee,

Very truly yours,
Arovsius F. PowER,
General Counsel.

ExHIBIT 125

Additional examples of adverse and misleading publieity regarding the 1960-
1063 Corvair disseminated or stimulated by ATLA or by plaintiffs’ attorneys:

1, The December 1965 issue of the ATLA Newsletter states the following con-
clusion :

“Keeping judicial boxscore on the Corvair controversy requires the alertness
of unjnded observers, & we would respectfully suggest that the G.M. reckoning
now stands at The People :3; G.M, :2."

This untrue score is reached by counting the Pierini settlement as a vietory for
plaintiff ; by counting as a second victory a default Judgment entered in Chlcago
without mentioning that this case 13 and has been in the process of appeal to the
Y'Hnols Supreme Court since June 1985 (¥Frankiin case); and by improperly
clnssifying as a Corvanir design case a suit in Louisiana in which the 1ssue
actunlly tried and decided was whether certain specified parts of the particular
enr invoived in the accident had failed prior to the accident, thereby causing the
accident {Dumas case).
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The technique used in the article to classify the Dumas case as a Corvair de-
gign case is the old familiar one of quoting out of context. Only this sentence
from the lower court’s lengthy Reasons for Judgment appearg in the article:

“There ig no doubt in the Court’s mind that a left rear tire cambering 45° under,

a vehicle traveling 40 miles an hour can cause the driver to lose control,”’
This leaves the false impression that the court concluded that the left rear wheel
of every 1960-1963 Corvair will camber 456° and that thls was a defective design.
The true finding of the court was that tbis cambering was due to the failure of
the shock absorber and the loosening of the bolts holding the left rear suspension
to the body on this one car. The two paragraphs immediately preceding the
gentence quoted by the ATLA Newsleiter demonstrate this:

“The physical evidence introduced at the trial clearly indicated that the left
rear wheel assembly of the ear in question had been considerably loose. The
unrebutted testimony of eye witnesses established that the left rear wheel of the
Dumas vehicle did in faet collapse when it entered onto the bridge.

““Mr. John J. Stansberry had been following the Dumas vehicle at about four or
five car lengths and could clearly see the rear of the vehicte when it reached the
glight rise on the bridge. e saw the left rear wheel of the Corvair ‘cock’ at
a 45° angle (far in excess of the normal specified 10° camber) and the left rear
end drop down and stay down. He also observed the bizarre maneuvers of the
Dumas car and Mr, Dumas fightlng to control it. -

“There is no doubt in the Court's mind that a left rear tire cambering 43°
under a vehicle traveling 40 miles an hour ean cause the driver to lose control.”

In addition, the court stated as follows:

“The shock absorber in the Dumas vehicle wag shown to have broken due to
metal failure. This alone, together with & slight rise on approaching the hridge,
very well could have been the trigger which set off the subsequent events. A
shock absorber, ostensibly designed to absorb compression, is used in this car
to prevent extension (downswing) of the entire assembly. It failed. Without
its fallure there could he no ‘cocking’ at a forty-five degree angle, and no one-tire-
only dragmarks.”

It is difficult to view this misconstruction of the court’s decision in a publica-
tion prepared by ATLA attorneys for use by ATLA attorneys as either uninten-
tional or in error.

Incidentally, this committee may be interested in knowing of further addi-
tions to the “boxscore.”

‘Another case (Priver), based on the alleged defective design of a 1061 Cor-
vair, went to trial on February 23, 1966 in the Superior Court of Los Angeles.
After four days of trial and while Paul (’Shea, plaintiff's expert, was under
cross-examination, Mr. Harney offered to dismiss with prejudice for the sum of
$1.00. This was accepted and the case was dismissed accordingly. On March
11, 1966, we were ndvised that a fourth case (Goldenberg), based on the alleged
defective design of a 1982 Corvair, was voluntarily dismissed with prejudice by
Mr. Harney.

2. On January 10, 1968, Mr, Harry Philo, appearing as President of the Detroit
Metropolitan Chapter of ATLA, gave unsolicited testimony at hearings conducted
before an Interim Committee of the Highway Committee of the Michigan Senate.
Although he admitted that he was not an nutomotive safety expert, he made the
unsupported and sensational assertion that the 1960 through 1963 model Cor-
vairs are defectively designed and should he banned from the Michigan roads,

Newspapers across the country carried prominently the story that the State
of Michigan was urged to ban the Corvair. A few {ypical newspaper articles
are attached as Attachment 1 to this Exhibit E. Many radio and televlsion news
programs featured the story. Not surprisingly, General Motors was besieged by
letters end telephone calls, mostly from Corvair owners worried about the safety
or trade-in value of their 196083 Corvairs and wondering what General Motorg
wng going to do to fix or repurchase their cars.

I felt obligated to forward certain comments about Mr. Philo’s misleading
testimony to the Chairman of the Interim Committee of the Highway Committee.
In my letter to him of January 26, 1966, I stated :

“The foet that Mr. Philo currently represents plaintiffs in Corvalr litigation
and therefore has & pecuniary interest in having people believe the claim that
the Corvair is defectively designed is a material fact to consider in assessing why
he appeared before your committee and the validity of his assertions.

“Asn you uo doubt know, the Canons of Professional Iithicg of the Amerlean
Bar Associatlon as well ag the Canong of Ethics of the Michigan State Bar con-

TLEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY 1415

demn attorneys’ use of newspaper publicity regarding pending or anticipated liti-
gation. In keeping with both the letter and spirit of these canons, it has been &
General Motors policy of long standing that it will not make any public statements
directly to news media or indirectly at any public hearings relating to mabters
that are in litigation., Our experience hag been that legislatlve committees recog-
wize and accept the validity of that policy.” '

A copy of my letter iz attached as Attachment 2 to this Exhibit B.

Two dayy later a member of the Michigan Senate was reported in the press to
have announced that he would introduce legislation to ban the Volkswagen, the
1960 through 1963 model Corvair, and some other vehicles from the highways of
Miehigan., Legiglation which would have had that effect wus introduced on Feb-
ruary 1, 1966, Mr. L. H, Bridenstine, Assistant General Councel, General Motors
Corporation, and Mr. Frank J. Winchell, Chief Research and Development En-
gineer of Chevrolet Motor Division of General Motors, represented General Mo-
tors at hearings regarding this and other proposed legislation which were con-
ducted on February 21, 1966 by the Michigan Scnate Committee on Highways.
The text of their presentation opposing the legislation is attached as Attachment
3 to Exhihit B. : o

None of the bills opposed on February 21, 19686 by tbe automobile industry have
been recommended for action by the legislative committee.

3. Two weeks ago the front page of the March 8, 1966 issue of The National
Ineider—a tabloid of the same type as Midnight—carrled the banner line that
shig Car Is A Death Trap” along side a picture of a Corvair. The reader was
yeferred to the center spread article titled: “Auto SBafety Expert Charges This
Automobile Is A DEATH TRAP! GM Knew It But Risked Your Life For Iis
Own Profits " Beside the title of the article is a picture of the same Mr. Harry
Philo. Below the title is a pieture of a Corvair with the statement : “If you have
a 1980-63 Corvair, you'd better gei rid of it!” The writer of the article states:

“This reporter learned the shoeking faets about the Corvair from Harry Philo,
national chairman of the American Trial Lawyers’ Safety Committee.”

The article rlso atates that : '

“Philo isn’t the only attorney working to get the faulty Chevrolet Corvairs out
of circulation.”

On the same page, there appears an article based on an Interview of Mr, Ralph
Nader attneking the design of automobiles. ‘

A copy of the article from the March 6, 1966 issue of The National Insider is
attached as Attachment 4 to this Exhibit E.

4, The Corvair design litigation is currently belng featured in serialized form
in Road Test magazine, commencing with the May, 1886 issue. The cover featnre
line asserts: “First Exposure—Corvair Law Suits” right beneath the statement
“The Factual Automotive Guide Containg No Advertising.”

Pictures of four wrecked Corvairs, each accompanied by a brief deseription of
the single car accident start the article, It is represented that “these four cases
are a random sampling of something like 10 lawsuits now on file against Genernl
Motors Corporation where the car involved is a 1960 to 1863 Corvair.” Then fol-
tow three full pages of carefully selected portions of the 352-page deposition of the
Chevrolet staff engineer, Kat Hansen; who was in charge of the Corvair develop-
ment project. :

Thiy deposition was taken in 1962 by plaintiff’s attorney, David Harney, during
discovery proccedings in the Maery Jene Drummond Corvair design case, but was
not filed with the court until 2 weeks ago. The Drummond case is currently in
the 2d week of trinl in T.og Angeles, California. At the conclusion of thie article,
the publisher exhorts the reader to see Part II in the July issue, which will con-
tain more sworn testimony from General Motors engineers.

5. Although not related to the realm of adverse publicity, it should not go un-
noticed that onother of Mr. Nader's activities appears to be the recommnending
of possible experts to plaintiffs’ attorneys handling autemohile design cases. For
example, attorney Bdward F. Sutkowski of Peoria, Tllinois, wrote as follows to
Professor Eugene Larrabee of the Massachusctts Institute of Tecbnology on
June 2, 1965 :

“The undersigned represents an individual who was involved in a motor vehicle
accident in a 10685 Volkswagen automobile. Mr. Ralph Nader mentloqed your
name as “that of an individual who has had some experience in the negligent de-
sign aspects of this vehicle.

“I would appreciate knowing if you have any information abojit the problem
above; and if 50, I would appreciate the same.”
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Mr. Power. At the same time ATLA headquarters was actively en-
gaged in disseminating Corvair information to inquiring attorneys.
Two typical letters from Thomas Lambert, editor-in-chief of ATLA
publications, dated respectively June 22, 1965, and July 22, 1965, are
attached.

ExHIpIiT 126

AMERICAN TRIAL LAWYEES ABSOOIATION,
WATERTOWN, MaAss,, June 22, 1965,

Roeert P, Havy, Esq.,
Oklahoma City, Okla.

Dear RoseRT: We have your letter of Jnne 11 requesting information on the
Corvair.

The list of cases and attorneys handling related Corvair cases Ia extensive,
The names of thosae who have sent enquiries to this office are enclosed.

One of the most important cases invelving this automobile was a California
case settled by David M. Harney, of Harney, Ford and Schlottman, 650 South
Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, Callfornia 80017, for §70,000 agninst General Motors.
The passenger in the car suffered the loss of an arm, which came as a result
of the accident, claimed to have been caused by the poorly designed automobile,
due to 839 of the welght belng concentrated in the rear,

The 1962 issue of the Consumer Report-Buyer's Guide, at page 382, reports
that the Corvair tends to oversteer under extreme conditions. I would suggest
reading their report. :

David Raum of Pollack and Pollack, 3810 Wilshire Bonlevard, Los Angeles,
California, reported that he is presently handling several cases dealing with tight
steering in the Corvair Monza, ) )

We also suggest that you write to Ralph Nader, 53 Hillside Avenue, Winsted,
Connecticut. Ralph is a lawyer who has developed expertise in the aren of
automobile manufacturer liability. Ralph hag a substantial amount of informa-
tion on the Corvair,

¥or some general material, see T ATLAS News L. 281 {Nov. 1%44) and TRIAL,
Vol. 1, No. 1 {Dec. 1964), p. 29.

Jefferson G. Greer of Greer and Greer, 424 South Cheyenne, Tulsa 8, Okla-
homa, is formulating a group whereby mutual assigtance will be rendered in the
preperation of these Corvair cases. This will enable the practitioners handling
guch cases to collect the relevant data and prosecute the cnse with a minimum of
cost. T would suggest contacting Jefferson at your earliest convenience.

‘We hope the foregolng will prove serviceable,

Sincerely,
THOMAS F', LAMBERT,
Hditor-in-Chiel, American Trial Lewyers Association.

CorvAalr INQUIRERS

James Cullis, Card, Merrill, Cullis & Timm, 2041 Main Street, Sarasota, Florida

‘Wendell Crongo, Cramer & Cronso, Burns, Oregon

Verne Lawyer, Lawyer & Lawyer, Suilte 400-427, Fleming Building, Des Moines 9,
Towsa '

Yincent ¥, Nolan, 45 Exchange Street, Rochester 14, New York

George W. Fryhofer, Waynesboro, Georgia

Be;nﬂrd Chazen, Baker, Garber & Chazen, 1 Newark Street, Hoboken, New

ersey

Robert B. Sharp, Bott, Sharp & Carey, 500 Argyle Building, 300 Enst 12th Street,
Kansgns City, Miszouri 84106

Allen Glenn, Bryant, Glenn & Thomas, P.0. Box 282, Petroleum Building,
Abllene, Texas

JO;EP%!A. Maiulle, Malullo & Maiullo, 2480 First National Bullding, Detroit 26,

chigan

David Neal Rogen, Forquer, Wolfe & Rosen, 12th Floor, Luhrs Tower, Phoenix,
Arizona B5003

Lester Katz, 983 Main Strect, Hartford, Connecticut

Robert I. Jacobson, 80808 Gem City Savings Building, Dayton, Ohio 45402

Louls &. Davidson, 100 North Lag8alle Btreet, Chicago, Illinols 60802

D*}&C}M R. Goldberg, Cubbon & Rice, Sulte 300—Recurity Building, Toledo, Ohio
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Jack R. Berger, Suite 1701, 5455 Wilshire Boulevard, Los Angel i

Maurice Pope, 511-15 Corby Building, St. Jogeph, Missouri geles 30, California

Emanuel Moss, 1800 Girard Trust Building, Philadelphia 2, Pa.

George G. White, 2330 8. Brentwood Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri

James H. Henry, Henry, McCord & Forrester, 205 Coop Building, Tullahoma,
Tennesses )

Dan O'Leary, Esq., Pozzi, Levin & Wiison, Sulte 808 Standard Plaza, 110¢ S.W.
8ixth Avenue, Portland, Oregon 97204 ‘

0. Ben Bowen, Bolt and Bowen, 14 Beattie Place, P.O. Box 445, Greenville,
SHouth Carolina

Robert H. Wilson, Big Horn County Courthouse, Hardin, Montana 58034.

Joseph Kelner, Vice-President, American Trial Lawyers Assoclation, 217 Broad-
way, New York, New YXork 10007

Victor F. Schmidt, 1100 Beechwood Road, Columbns, Ohio 43227

Norman W. Larsen, Fine, Simon & Schneider, 809 First National Bank Building,
Minneapolis 2, Minnesota

Jefferson G, Greer, Greer and Greer, 424 8. Cheyenne, Tulsa 3, Oklahoma

Phillip Bartell, 518 Standard Building, Cleveland, Obio

Walter Knabe, Capell, Howard, Knabe & Cobbs, 57 Adams Avenue, Montgomery,
Alabama

Al J, Cone, Miller, Cone, Owen, Wagner & Nugent, 507 North Olive Avenue,
P.O. Box 3411, West Palm Beach, Florida 33402 ) ‘

Artie B, Voughn, Sedgwick County Qourt House, Wichita, Kansas ’

Peter Schneider, Bchnelder & Kaufman, 60 East 42nd Street, New York 17, New
York :

M. Louis' Abedon, Abedon, Michaelson and Stanzler, 8626 Industrial Bank Build-
ing, Providence, Rhode Island 02003

Burton 8. Resnic, Resnic, Beauregard and Resnic, 316 High Street, Holyoke,
Magrsachussets '

C. M, Leibson, Esq., Leibson & ILeibson, 140 South Fifth Street, Sulte 105,
Louisville 2, Kentucky

Alan J. Friedlaner, 431 Park Avenue, Waverly, New York 14802

Michael J. Silverstein, Silverstein, Ewliney & Goudiss, 42¢ Lincoln Road Mall,
Mercantile Natfonal Bank Building, Miami Beach 39, Florida

Paul J. Brinson, 2912 Delaware Avenue, Kenmore, New York 14217

Louis Samuel Fine, Fine, Staud & Sllverman, Suite 1912, 121 South Broad Street,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107

Darndel J. Allan, McDermott, Quinn & Higglns, 1411 Walnut Street, Philadelphia 2,
Pennsylvania

Willlaw E. Townsley, 8199 Avenue A, Beanmont, Texas 77705

George W. Wilhite, Jr.,, Suite 200, Mafrige Bullding, 411 Fannin, Houston,
Texas 77002

Romolo, Versaci, 1164 Wendell Avenue at Rughy, Schenectady, New York 12308

Robert P, Hall, 2411 First National Building, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Exmieir 127

AMERICAN TRIAL LAWYERS ASSOCIATION,
Wateriown, Maas., July 22, 1965,
J. 0. F1rzgARRALD, B8Q., ’
Fitzjarrald & Poole,
Amarillo, Tep.

Dear My, Frrzsarrain; We have your letter of July 20 requesting informa-
tion on the Corvair,

The list of cnses and attorneys handling related Corvalr cases is extensive.
The names of those who have sent enquiries to this office are enclosed.

One of the most important cases invelving tbis automobile was a California
cage settled by David M. Harney, of Harney, Ford and Schloftman, 650 Soul
Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90017, for $70,000 against General Motors.
The paswenger in the car suffered the loss of an arm, which came as a result
of the aceldent, claimed to have been caused by the peorly designed automobile,
due to 63% of the weight being concentrated in tbe rear, We have been informed
that David is presently engaged in another snit against General Motora.
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The 1962 issue of the Consumer Report-Buyer's Guide, at page 382, reports that
the Corvair tends to oversteer under extreme conditions. I would suggest
reading their report.

David Baoum of Poltack and Poilack, 3810 Wilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles,
California, reported that he is prescntly handling several cases dealing with
tight steering in the Corvair Monza.

Barney Masterson, 140 Seccond Street, North 8f. Petersburg, FIorlda, is
also trying one,

Wo.also suggest thnt you write to Ralph Nader, 53 Hillslde Avenue, Wmsmd
Connecticut. Ralph is a lawyer who has developed expertise in the arca of
automobile manufacturer linbility. Ralph has o substantial amount of informa-
tion on the Corvair, .

For some general mnterial, see 7 ATLAS News L. 281 (Nov. 1964) and TRIAT,
Vol 1, No, 1 (Dec. 1864}, p. 20.

Jeﬂ?erson G. Grecr of Greer and Greer, 424 South Cheyenne, Tulsa 3, Oldahom‘l
is formulating a group whereby mutnal asgistance will be rendered in the prep-
aration of these Corvair cases. This will enable the practltwners handling such
cases to colleet the relevant data and prosecute the case with a minimum of cost.
Jefferson has recently informed us that he has prepared a set of interrogatories
which will be made available to interested counsel at duplicating and mailing
costs. I would suggest contacting Jefferson at your earliest convenience.

Finally, we have been informed that a defnult judgment was entered against
General Motors in a suit brought in Chicago for the latter’s stubborn refusal to
disclose ineriminating information on its testing and engmeermg’ processes.
Several claims are now being submitted to the jury on the question of damages,
You might find it helpful to communicate with ATL stalwart, Louis G. Davidson,
Suite 2007, 100 North La Salle Street, Chicago, Illinois, who is the chief attorney

in that case.

We hope the foregoing will prove serviceable.

Sincerely,

Bditor-in-Chief, American Triul Lowyera Assoclation.

Jameg Cullis,

Card, Merrill, Cullly & Timm,

2041 Main Street,

Sarasgota, Florlda
Wendell Gronso,

Cramer & Grouso,

Burng, Oregon
Yerne Lawyer,

Lawyer & Lawyer,

Suite 400427

Fleming Building,

Des Moines 9, Iowa
Vincent F. Nolan,

45 Exchange Strect,

Rochester 14, New York
George W. Fryhofer,

Waynesboro, Georgla
Bernard Chazen,

Baker, Garber & Chazen,

1 Newark Street,

Hoboken, New Jersey
Robert E. Sharp,

Bott, Sharp & Carey,

50) Argyle Building,

B00 Enst 12th Street,

Kaonsas City, Migsouri, 64108
Allen Glenn,

Bryaut, Glenn & Thomas,

P.0. Box 282,

Petroleum Bullding,

Abilene, Texas

THOoMAS F. LAMBERT,

CoBvAIR INQUIRERS

Joseph A. Maiullo,
Maiulle & Maiullo,
2480 First National Building,
Detroit 26, Michigan
David Neal Rosen,
Forquer, Wolfe & Rosen,
12th Floor,
Luhrs Tower,
Phoenix, Arizonsa, 85003
Loester Katz,
983 Main Streef,
Hartford, Connecticus
Robert J. Jacobson,
803-08 Gem City Savings Building,
Dayton, Ohio, 45402
Louis G, Davidson,
100 North LaBalle Street,
(Ohieago, Illinois, 60602
David R. Goldberg,
Cubbon & Rice,
Supite 300—Security Building,
Toledo, Ghio, 43604
Maurice Pope,
511-15 Corby Building,
8t. Joseph, Misscuri
Emanuel Moss,
1800 Girard Trust Building,
Philandelphia 2, Pa.
George G. White,
2330 §. Brentwood Boulevard,
8t. Touis, Missouri
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Comvarr INQUIRERS—~—Continned

Yictor F. Schmidt,
1100 :Beechwood Road,
Columbus, Ohio, 43227
Norman W, Larsen,
Fine, 8imon & Schneider,
009 First National Banl Buildmff
Minneapolis 2, Minnesota
Jefferson G. Greer,
Greer and Greer,

James H, Henry,
Henry, McCord & Forrester,
205 Coop Building,
Tullahoma, Tennessee

Dan (’Leary, Egq.,
Pozzi, Levin & Wilson,
Suite 808 Standard Plaza,
1100 8.W. Sixth Avenue,
Portland, Oregon, 97204

C, Ben Bowen, 424 8. Cheyenne,
Bolt and Bowen, Tulea 3, Oklahoma
14 Beattie Place, Phillip Bartell,
P.0. Box 445, 516 Standard Building,
Greenville, South Carolina Cleveland, Ohio

Robert H, Wilson, Walter Knabe,
Big Horn County Courthouse, Qapell, Howard, Knape & Cobbs,
Hardin, Montana, 58084 b7 Adams Avenue,

Joseph Kelner, Montgomery, Alabama
Vice-President, Al J. Cone,
American Trial Lawyers Assoclation, Miller, Cone, Owen, Wagner & Nugent,
217 Broadway, 507 North Olive Avenue,
New York, New York, 10007 P.O. Box 3411,

West Palm Beach, Florida, 83402

Peter Schneider, Schneider & Kaufman, 80 East 42nd Street, New York 17, New
York

M. Louis Abedon, Abedon, Michaelson and Stanzler, 626 Industrial Bank Building,
Providence, Rhode Island, 02003

Burton 8. Resnic, Resnic, Beauregard and Resnie, 316 High Street, Holyoke,
Massachusetts

C. M. Leibson, Esqg., Leibson & Leibzon, 140 South Fifth Street, Suite 105, Louis-
ville 2, Kentucky.

Alan J. Friedlander, 431 Park Avenue, Waverly, New York, 14802

Michael J. Silverstein, Silverstein, Kwitney & Goudiss, 420 Lincoln Road Mall,
Mercantile National Bank Building, Miami Beach 39, Florida

Paul J. Bringon, 2912 Dielaware Avenue, Kenmore, New York, 14217

Louis Samuel Fine, Fine, Staud & 8ilverman, Suite 1912, 121 South Broad Street,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107

Daniel J. Allan, McDermott, Quinn & Higgins, 1411 Walnut Street Philadelphia 2,
Pennsylvania

William E. Townsley, 3190 Avenue A, Beaumont, Texas, T7703

Ge‘?rge W. Wilhite, Jr., Sulte 200, Mafrige Building, 411 Fannin, Houston, Texas,

7002

Romolo Versaci, 1184 Wendell Avenue at Rugby, Schenectady, New York, 12308

Robert P, Hall, 2411 Flrst National Building, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Elmer 1, Schwartz, Metzenbaum, Gaines, S8chwartz, Krupansky, Finley & Stern,
700 Union Commerce Building, Cleveland, Ohio, 44115

John W. Day, Barker, Day, Callow & Taylor, 1926 IBM Building, Seabtle, Wash-.
ington, 98101

Edward M. Miller, Levin, Levin, Garvett and Dill, 1250 Penchscot Building,
Detrolt 26, Michigan

Richard E. 8handell, Fuchsberg and Fuchsberg, 250 Broadway, New York, New
York, 10007

Harold Infleld, Quine and Infield, The First Akron Building, 611 West Market
Street, Akron, Ohio, 44303

Charles A, Williams, Williams Building, Broadway at 17th, Paducah, Kentucky

J. O. Fitzjarrald, Fitzjarrald and Poole, 5§17 North Polk, Amarille, Texas

Mr. Power. Mr. Lambert recommended specific attorneys who could
furnish material and information on the Corvair for litigation pur-
poses, and suggested communicating with them.
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sai(c)lr:le of these especially recommended was Mr. Nader of whom he

We also suggest that you write to Ral;
ph Nader,
Conn. Ralphisa lawyer who hag developed expe;'

manut_nctnrer liability. Ralph has a Substantial
Corvair,

53 Hillside Avenue, Winsted,
tise in the area of automobile
amount of information on the

A copy of this type of letter first came to our ion i
> attent
Who was the “lawyer” with whom the ATTL.A edito;'mv]v;g grl:lg }i?-gg
name basis? At that time Mr. Nader was not listed 23 connsel in any
Efen?:}g Corg_ra.lr case. Where did he obtain such a “substantial amount
i M
ex%(;rti(s);%a lon on the Corvair,” and how had he “developed
as he an engineer, a paid consultant to the ATLA Corvai
sel? Or washe preparing to file another one of these cusegr?mlr eonr

MUNCY CASE

Very shortly thereafter Mr. Nader’s name did appear-
in @ Lorvalr case and not in & new case, but of c_oﬁl?seul-ro?ls flcl):%ieikfnglf
ETPOM In another type of automobile liability case. The brief was

ed on July 28, 1965, in the case of Barbars June Muncy and Charles
Muncy v. General Motors Corp., in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Fifth Circuit. Tt showed Ralph Nader's address as “53 Hillside Ave
nue, VVmstegi Conn,—1719-19th Street N -W., Washington 9, D.C.» A
reference to artindale-Hubbell, the leadin lawyers dlrthOI,'y showed
%_Ru.lph Nader in Washington, D.C., but did show a Ralph Nader in

insted, Conn. A check of various periodical indices disclosed that

Mr. Nader had written an article which h ‘ i
1965 issue of Trial, an ATLA publi‘:atli%n. 2 apprared in the Janunry

ExHIBIT 128
[From Trial, publlcation of ATLA, January 1965]

PATENT Laws PrIME SoURck To SEGURE SAFER AvUTo DESI
DEATHS

(By Ralph Nader, author, attorn
or, ey, and onc of America'’s foremost
futhorities on legal and public questions )’ research
ngi!u; s;él::dgfolérg;rlt:g lfl(;fl safe {lesigl{: in cars comes from the reulizatioh that
] -] Ty research at numerous universiti i
ggrong denunciations of the automobile makers by medical plilsalitco gfgfti ‘ffué
nsumer-oriented groups, such ag Consumers Union and t’he American Aut?o-

mobile Agsociation, h .
auto makors, ,» has had, apart from seat belts, virtually no lmpact on the

The numerous hazards of automobil i
hich
dent or to casualties following the collieE" o
; Slon are well known to the m
dB;;I;ga:ls ;:1: I;%%%s%?rfh:aie;ﬁsigng;ngm kl;low tioo well, the fing] decigily;fsaliu;iﬁ:%
mad nd merc i i
. Under thtls situation, safety continues toatr;c}(sers N moge porte laerarchy.
om year to year., The quantum upsurge of traffic fatali |
;fi ﬁ?;;glt]o 111“1?](]33 and the shocking increase so far tl1?smhtieEI i
apult the number of dead beyond the 50,000 mark | ‘ 4
) - %:1 y i
zg Iz;llétz;l;ieexi igzsopg:utli';?&sh Tllle 11.’1111 dimension of thig “aasaulttlg:luﬁlaét{)eic?s[gggﬂlg
curred ok hats € the’hig?ll\i' :ys].mlude the additional 4 million plus injuries in-

Concelve the trauma in this way: i
¥ . the motor vehicle is the ch i
g:‘rllgglo}i?tht hix; every age group from 1 to 65 years andeo%tﬁiaf{asu:i ofoatie:;
ea n the age group 5 to 30, The chances of an American beying ig-

6N To REDUCE HIGHWAY

needlessly contribute to the acci-
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jured in & motor vehicle before he dies is about fifty-fifty and statisticians tell us
that 4 out of every 10 automobiles will be involved in an Injury producing acci-
dent before being scrapped.

The prospect of reducing highway fatalities and injuries to a fraction of their
present volume as A consequence of safely bullt vehicles ia a goal worthy of the
most strenuous exertion of ATLA skllls, professional dedication and, above all,
independence of judgment. Acting collectively and individunlly, ATLA members
can effect a decisive breakthrough for safer motor vehicle transportation. The
august nature of this responsibility ia clear. For nowhere on the American scene
or horizon Is there any other organization so varifously equipped to undertake
this task,

In general terms, the objective must be to provide incentives and eompulsions
for automobile manufacturers to deepen their concern and aetion for the optimum
adaptation of automebiles fo driver and passenger safety.

The slow and difficult acceptance by industry over the past half century that
production workers should be tbe central consideration in production systems
design has led to spectacular reductions in factory injury freguency rates.
Industry's motivation has become a tangible one: plant safety has netted divi-
dends in higher quantity and consistency of production, less training of workers,
less breakdowna in the production process and lower insurance costa.

On the other hand, dead and injured consumers of automohiles do not interfere
with production and sales. They are outside these self-disciplining systems.
Consequently, to get action for safer cars by the manufacturers requires a broad
und persistent feedback from Judicial, legislative and other public as well as
private institutions.

CREATIVE CRUCIBLE: THE COMMON LAW AKRD SAFER CARS

Judicinl resourse against hazardous automobile designs 1s increasing. But
measured by the thousands npon thousands of victims of ungafe vehicles whose
rights against the manufacturer are neither recognized nor secured, the forward
pace remains glacial in character. The ancient Romans perceptively stated:
“Out of the Fact comes the Law.” It should come ag no surprise, consequently,
that the chief obstacle to bringing valid design liability cases is insufficient aware-
ness by counsel of how to obtain the requisite evidence to prevail. Not getting
the needed evidence i3 an eroder of one's professional duty to see that his client
has every oportunity to receive the protective mantle of justice that our common
law affords him, : ' i

Tort law—stretching from negligence, implied warranty, res ipsa loguitur and
lately to strict l{ability—is by no means hostile to this honored guest. For cases
involving products within and without the motor vehicle area, the courts are
recognizing that a drastie reshifting of the fulerum over which competing inter-
ests are balanced is mecessary to redress the helpless and hapless relationship
and resources of the victim ag contrasted with the manufacturer of the injurious
product. .

But even principles of liability which do not regquire the proof of negligence
allevinte only to a limited extent the evidential problems. Thig I8 particularly
the situation when so many of the facts leading to the matured stage at which
the term “evidence’’ may be legitimately employed are in the marnufacturer’s
exclusive possession; so much so that oftentimes counsel does not even know
what questions to ask in his depositions,

The marshalling of evidence crucial to an automohile design case iz on two
levels—that relating to (1) the site of the collision and (2) the stage of design
technology in the context of practicable alternatives.

The degree to which each level must be probed depends on which of the various
kinds of design defects counsel is concentrating upon, Some hazards pertaining
to brakes, tires, vehicle-Induced glare, automatic transmission booby traps and
the like may lend to the recident ; others such as protruding knobs, dashboards,
steering shaft and wheel, uprooted seat, collapsed roof and fire hazards contribute
to the injury a split second after the collision. Some designs are latent, inherent
dangers ; others are observable but dangerous only In collisions; still others are
wholly ornamental or stylistic in nature with no functional characteristics, such
88 gharp hood ornaments and fing that haove slashed and speared many a
Pedestrian. .

But for any design case in the motor vehicle aren, there are points to keep in
mind.
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First, whenever pogsible, the vehicle should be retained for investigation. The
practice of permitting the vehicle to be junked or sold as depreciated hardware
on the used car market piaces a4 hammerlock on most design enses. Such de-
fault is so widespread that this obvious point requires continual reiteration.
If Harold Corbin, Esq,, had not brought the wheel from MacPherson’s Buick to
George Palmer, the enrringe maker for expert scrutiny, Justice Cardozo would
not have had the opportunity to articulate that quontum jump forward in neg-
ligence law.

Second, counsel should take ndvantage of increasing attention by the medicnl
profession to the relation between injuries and the portion of the vehiele that
inflicted the trauma. Dozens of articles in medical Journals over the past two
decades have drawn notice to the relationship between the vehicle-bosed agent
and the injury. The attending physician should be urged to observe aud report
any discernible connections of this kind simply as part of any complete diagnosis
or autopsy.

Tndications are that the ability and awareness for making such observations
by physicians are improving and inereasing. Physicians have been among the
most eloguent spokesmen for the view that the most rational solution for bashed
heads and bodies is prevention through safer designed vehicles.

A study of the relationship, between bodily injury and vehicular damage in
actunl cases of highway fatalities by Drs, Huelke and Glkas of the University
of Michigan Medical School is one instance of such work undertaken at some
institutions. Huelke and Gikas stress that first hand observation of the victim
and vehicle on the collision site will afford the most accurate data—a concli-
sion similarly arrived at by a team of Harvard University speclalists led by
Alfred L. Moseley who worked under a federnl grant between 1959 and 1963.

A tragic case illustrates the importance of establishing such relationships. It
involves General Motor's Corvair whose above hazardouns features include a steer-
ing shaft that extends from a point about two inches in front of the leading sur-
face of the front tires—an obvious and documented hazard to the driver in even
moderate left-front end collisions. Dr. Horace B. Campbell, Chairman of the
Automotive Safety Committe, Colorado Medical Soeclety, reconuts in a technical
paper this case which he investigated :

“Omn Jannary 19, 1982, Mitford Horn, age 27, the father of two children, a par-
ticularly promising engineer, skidded on an icy road inte the zide of a locomo-
tive. He had died instantly at the scene with a completely broken neck. The
Stnte Patrolman Lold me to go and see the car and I would then understand why.

“he man's character was immediately revealed on my inspection of the car.
There were four seat belts; his widow told me later that every belt had to be
fostened before he would start the engine. There were four electric flashing sig-
nal lights, to be placed on the road in case a tire change became mecessary. 1
lenrned that he was popular at the plant, active iu the ehurch, never drank.

“His car, o 1961 rear-engine model, was extensively damaged at the left front
corner. The hub of the steering wheel was displaced, by actual measurement
against another car of the same make, two feet upward and backward. It broke
his neck. He had no other injuries of consequence.

“The man who towed hig car in told me that in every car of this make which
he has brought in with left front deformation, the steering shaft is driven back-
ward, oftenr more than a foot. The 1064 models maintain this same design
feature.”

Third, the automobile design case will ugually require obtaining evidence from
the industry. Very frequently, it will be dificult to make adequate use of dis-
covery procedures against a deflant manufacturer unless counsel is armed with
the leverage that comes from “hard” technieal information gathered beforeband.

First and most obvious is the engineering and medieal literature—papers de-
livered at professional meetings and articles published in widely scattered jour-
nals. It may be important to know, for example, that a techuical paper delivered
by & Ford engineer early in 1963 touting the experimental model of the Mustang
detailed several safety features which included: (1) genuine bucket seats with
lateral holding power; (2) strongly anchored seats; (3) “bent” steering shaft
to ward agalnst being driven back into the passenger compartment; (4) eol-
lapsihle steering shaft to cushicn any impact of the driver’s chest against the
wheel; (5) roll bar structure strengthening the roof against the common roll-
over accldent; and (6) a fail-safe dual brake system. All these features were
deleted from the production model of the Mustang now on the highways.
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A fast growing source of specinlized knowledge, flowing from federally funded
accident prevention research and the vast space program, comes from human
engineering (or human factors) experts in the interaction of man and machine.
TFor years, the automobile manufaecturers have employed human engineering ex-
perts and their number has increased in recent years. Just what these experts
are used for by the eompaniecs is not apparent, unless it is to impress legislative
committees invited Lo their research centers on company expense. As yet there
ig virtually no evidence that these human engineering speecialists have had any
impact on the stylist's authority and scale of priorities.

A pon-industry humen factors specialist framed the matter this way: “We
already know how to instill high levels of habitability, safety, maintainability,
and efficieney in space vehicles, weapons control systems, and other such sophis-
ticated hardware. Why can’'t we do the same for the millions of us who must
drive and ride in motorized land-based vehicles?”

An instructive illustration of the approach which human factors knowhow,
broadly conceived, takes in safety design analysis appeared in the respected
Product Engineering, Aprit 27, 1064. The subject of analysis was the display
of the new models at the Iternationnl Auntomobile Show in New York last April.

Most important i3 a source of technical information that, to my knowledge,
has been wholly neglected and even unknown to counsel in automobile cases, I am
speaking of the vast number of motor vehicle patents with primary or secondary
safety characteristics. The use of patents in produets liability litigation seems
worthy of the mest thorough exploration. Their broad evidentlal value, for in-
gtance, (1) in helping counsel ask the pertinent questions on deposition, (2} as
crowbars for prying out hidden informsation by industry, (3) in establishing
notice, standards of care, reasonableness of rieks and (4) in providing leads for
expert witnesses, can be decisive. -

Many of these patents, directly held by the automobile manufacturers or under
license, contain information concerning (1) the safety advance of the patented
article over tbe prior article still in use; (2) the reasons for developing the
patented article; and (3) frequently surprisingly candid admissions concerning
the true function of vehicle components (such as bumpers)}. The full application
file behind each patent contains additional information not noted or detailed in
the patent copy.

One example of many which deals with safety design i8 a General Motors auto-
motive steering device patent filed in 1964. It reads in part:

“Another difficulty with automotive steering as heretofore practiced is that
conventional steering wheels frequently are the cause of injnry to the operator.
A sudden stop of a vehicle may cause injury to the head, face or body of a driver
forced into violent contact with the steering device.”

That description is as true today as it wes a decade ago. The capability for
greatly diminishing or eliminating this hazard bas been In the possession of the
industry for many years. Robert A, Wolf, Director of the Automotive Crash
Injury Research of Cornell Aeronautical Laboratory, and recipient of funds
for some of his research from the industry, fnally felt impelled to tell an AAA
convention audience recently: there iz no reason for any further delay in in-
stalling collapsible stcering mechanisms.

Anyone who has experienced the unsurpassed intransigence of General Motors
!;oward reasoned pleas for safety engineering of its automobiles will appreclate
its detalled, technically elaborate, iIndeed almost eloguent articulation of hazards,
that exists on its own models when the purpose 1s to obtain a patent for a new
development.

Even such long time defenders of GM's design policies as former executive,
Charles Chayne, find their occasions for candor. Patent 2,929,261, Charles
Chayne, assignor to GM, notes that for vehicle controls to be acceptable, “they
must not only be easily operated but also accessible to the operator with a
mlmgnum of inconvenicnce. 'The driver,” Mr. Chayne tells us, “should not be
required to reach any substantial distance to operate a particnlar control
Furthermore, safety is a coucern since the control must be of the type that
an operator would not inadvertently operate under normal conditions.”

Apparently, GM’s stylists have conformed more loynlty to Mr. Chayhe’s
&bsurd, public refutations of engineering critics from outside the industry than to
the more scholarly assessments in his patents, Some contemporary illustrations
1111elude the Buick Electra #2245 whose power brake pedal and gas pedal are so
Ciose together and on the same level that drivers have inadvertently hit both
Pedais simultaneously. Buick advertisements tell you to appreciate the consid-
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cration behind Buick's stickshift which “was planned that way to put the
adventure back into driving.”

Recent Oldsmobile models have a shift pattern that places the reverse and
forward low positions next to each other without separation and with such a
slight angular difference that it can scarcely be detected by touch at the knob end
of the lever. The slightest transmission-indueed driver slip-up in not raising the
lever sufficiently will let the car remain in forward low while the driver
thinks he is ready to go rearward. This is one of several boohy trap problems in
connection with automatie transmissions of high-powered cars that has been
discussed at technical meetings attended by auto company representatives, Com-
pany indifference remains endemic in spite of rapidly inecreasing reports of the
so-called “engine-powered runaway accident,” traceahle in many instances to
transmission pattern hazards.

Numerous industry-held patents deserihe and endorse the protective and force
moderating function of bumpers. But what is the practice?

Consider this description of recent model ears by a non-industry expert: “When
the panic stop isn't suceessfnl, the bumper cannot be counted on to protect even
the sheet metal it is wrapped around. Styling considerations have wrapped
the bumper so intimately around the car's perimeter that even some curb-side
saplings can dent fenders and break fragile talllight housings if they lean street-
ward just o few degrees. The truth is that bumpers are not designed or mounted
to distribute crash loads. Ingtead, they generally transmit all or most of this
impact energy direetly to the vehicle frame and the passengers.”

A tecent case involving the imaginative development of gome approaches out-
lined ahove was Muncy v. General Motors Corp.~—F. Supp.—[(E. D. (Marshall)
Texas] decided on April 10, 1964, Plaintif was a pedestrian mangled by a
runaway Chevrolet when the disembarking passenger struck the accelerator
vedal with her foot after the driver, prior to alighting, had withdrawn the
key thinking this action ghut off the ignition, .

The interesting feature of Muncy in this context was a complaint against Gen-
eral Motors for improper design of the ignition switch that permitted the with-
drawal of the ignition key while the motor of the automobile was running and
the car in gear. Examination at trial by Secott Baldwin, Esq., of expert witnesses
for GM produced admission that human factor designing was recognized and
that when the automatic transmission was first installed with the ignition switch
design, the precaution of arranging the gear lever so that the motor could not
he started with the auteomatic transmission in n gear position was considered but
ignored,

The designer of the switeh conceded that the danger of one inadvertently
leaving the car in gear with the motor running when the ignition key was with-
drawn was recognized at the time the automatie transmission was put into use,
But this hazard was consgidered too remote to reguire a redesign of the switch.

Prior to trial, the possession of relevant patents by plaintiff’s counsel en-
ahled a trip to Detroit for depositions of GM officials to be remembered for other
than eorporate abuse and diversionary tactics, ’

These patents were instrumental in having GM produce the employee who
designed the switch ag a witness at trial-—an accommodation that products
liability counsel can well appreciate. In addition, prior knowledge by plaintiff’s
counsel of GM's declsion to eliminate the offending ignition switch deslgn on 1966
models enabled that fact to be established by deposition. The jury brovght in a
verdict against defendant.

THE CORVAIR CASES

The most signal development in the history of applying tort law to motor
vehicle design is the Corvair litigation presently assuming mass proportions on a
nationnl scale. There are at least 50 such Corvair cases pending in several states
which allege negligence in the design of the Corvair (chiefly 1960 to 1963 models)
by General Motors. More specificelly these allegations have A common theme
involving Corvair collisions where the automobile unexpectedly went out of
control and/or flipped over.

The principal centers of contention surrounding plaintiff's nllegntions that the
Corvair is an inherently unstable vehicle with hazardous handling problems
particuiarly on turns deals with (1) the heavy distribution of weight on the rear
wheels (which goes up to 639%) ; (2) Inadequate and improperly designed spring
and suspension systems in the 1960 through 1063 models; (3) the critical relation-
ships between tire pressures, tire structure and oversteering; and (4) various
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! aspects of the model’s steering geometry. It should be noted that the complainty

y in thegae cases have heen targeted on instability as eccident cause. Ag yet, the

; Corveir litigation has not moved into the design aspects as they are relatéd to

injury cause, such as the nfore-mentioned steering shaft design.

(General Mutors‘ p;oduced 1,124,076 Corvairs in the model years 1960 through
1963. The Corvair is the first and only rear engine car mass prodnced in this
country. It is also the heaviest rear engine automobile produced in the non-
ecommunist world (a Czechoslovakian model 15 said to be heavier).

Why was the Corvair built in this unique manner? Top management had
i decided that if it could build a compact car that would cost the company less
i than standard models to produce, yet still accommodate comfortably the game
“ number of passengers a8 standard models, there could ensue only a selubrious
: effect on profits.

! In a little-known, 41-page technical paper “The Chevrolet Corvair” (Society
of Automotive Engineers, 140 C, Jonuary, 1960) by the Corvair's chief designer,
K. H. Hansen, and associates, the author began by noting what the priority
considerations were in designing the Corvair.

He said: “Our first objective, once the decision wag made to design a smaller,
lighter car, was to attain good styling proportions. Merely shortening the
wheelbase and front and rear overhang was not acceptable. To permit lower
overall height and to accommodate six adult passengers, the floor hump for the
drive shaft had to go. Eliminating the conventional drive shaft made it essential
then that the car have either rear engine-rear drive, or front engine-front drive.”
After discussing the limitations of a front engine-front drive arrangement (one
being that it took space out of the passenger compartment), Mr. Hansen concluded
that “the rear engine-rear drive design appeared the most desirable and ultimately
proved the best solution.” :

Turning to the suspension geometry, Mr. Hansen added: “The Corvair with
ity l‘ow center of gravity and swing axle rear suspension has excellent roil
stability. - The combination of understeer built into both front and rear sus-

" pensions, low profile tireg, wide rims and proper tire pressures has made the

Corvalr a remarkably good handling vehicle.”

. Apparently, an enterprising company in Riverdale, California, EMPI by name,

. did not vie_w the Corvair in the same way. Hardly had the first Corvairs hit the

: _high_wuys in 1959 when EMPI began to market successfully an ACCERSOry rear
stabilizer, cealled the Camber Compensator Rear Stabilizer. In 10661 EMPI put

on the market an accessory front anti-sway bar that, it elaimed, “grently improved

the handling of the Corvair.” S
Referring to the Corvair, Sports Car Iiustrated in 1961 took note of what it

called “the irrefutable evidence that the EMPI Camber Compensator does indeed

do much to reduce oversteer and smooth out the unstable rear-end breakaway of
cars with simple swing axles.”

; There are still problems for later model Corvalrs, however, For example, the
1864 Corvair owner's manual flatly states that front wheels should carry 15
pounds and rear wheels 26 pounds “eold,” and for high-speed driving the presgures
ﬁho_uld be 18 pounds and 30 pounds respectively. The manual offers this eaveat :

Oversteer problems may be encountered with incorrect pressures, Maintain
‘Tecommended pressures at all times.”

Many non-industry specialists disagree with these recommended pressures.

In a deposition of tire expert, Raymond B, Stringfield, taken on behalf of

-aneral Motors—defendant in one of the Corvair cages in Los Angeles, the witness
Scussed the various aspects of this problem within the framework of recom-

4 1ended presgures by the Tire and Rim Association of Akron, Ohlo—a tire

DAustry standards organization.
oth;a Tand R recommended_ tire pressures for Coxvair size tires vary, depending

1'gh'e load earried and driving speed, but even the minimum pressures are

:'Gorve‘i than those stated in the Owner's manual. T and R also states that the

o itair tire should not be loaded over 835 pounds nnder any circumstances, That

‘two 8 generally reached for the rear tires (given no additional baggage) when

: Or more pagsengers are in the car.

U g-l'ingﬁeld stated that four passengers would defipitely overload the tlre.

‘ eﬁ' questiopin_g about tire air-out during turning of a vechicle he replied;

‘OE Corvair is, with any passengers at all, very near the maximum rated

pt nblthe rear tires and a swudden thrust (ag when a tire is making a turn)

18111?;% e of forcing the bead inwardly, unless the air pressure is sufficiently

B Tesist it and a tubeless tire is more dangerous in that respect than a
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tire with an inuertube, becaunse the innertnbe prevents the escape of air, if
there is only a slight movement and forces the bead back to place.

“rphe Corvair recommends 15 pounds in the front wheels. . . . 15 is dangerous
under any circumstances for any purpose.’

General Motors, of course, denies wholly and emphatically all allegations of
unsafe design that have been made about Corvair models. In the only case,
of the many pending, that has gone to trial, Pierini v, General Motors Corp.,
aond Washburn Ohevrolet (Superior Court, Santa Barbara, Calif.), (leneral
Motors settled for $70,000 nfter three days of trial last June. Flaintiff alleged
that unsafe design of the Corvair caused it to overturn, while ghe wag driving,
and sever her left arm.

Like the thalidomide scandal, the Corvair cases may be the inadverent catalyst
that brings about a widespread and decisive demand for legislation to protect
the public—as was called for by a resolution (see insert) introduced by the
American Trial Lawyers Association.

For not only Corvair but all automobiles reveal hazards that either increase
the likelihood of collision or the probability of injury in the “second” collision
when the occupant is thrown against an unsafe environment inside the vehicle.

In our public capacity, this country must begin to devote more attention to
the vehicle’s role in the accident complex and to provide more funds for re-
search and the tralning of specinlists so that objective knowledge can be de-
veloped and freely applied.

Once again, it I8 seen how the tools of the common law are the tools of
freedom. Flushing out facts of mortal moment into public view—an achieve-
ment which very often surpasses the capabilities or willingness of the press,
legiglators or administrators—has always been part of the panoply of glory
that graces our common law.

But as an organization, the trinl har can contribute much to & safer highway
epvironment. Inherent in the concept of a “profession” is the respongihility
not just to apply the optimum skills and dedications to the problems uniquely
within its sphere of learning but algo to work for the elimination of those very
problems wherever possible. Thus while members of the personal injury trial
bar work to obtain adequate compeneation for victlms, whose rights to safety
have been violated, collectively the trial bar also strives for prevention of

injuries in the first place.
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form. In addition to the references cited In the text, a most revealing and
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«Corvair Performance Handbook,” $1.00 from Tetersen Publishing Company,
5950 Hollyweod Blvd., Los Angeles 28, Californin. In a series of inadvertently
devastating chapters, non-industry specialists detail the inadequacies of the
Corvair and what accessory equipment and redesigns are being offered for
thoze who want to get “GT or Gran Turismo performance.” The standard of
care required for general purpose driving is carefully ignored so as not to clnsh
with the manufacturer. Counsel will take note of how applicable their deserip-
tions are to ordinary and anticipated conditinns of driving. EMPI, P.O. BoxX
668, Riverdale, California sells a Corvair Owner's Flandboolk, full of valuable
detail, for $4.00. )

Numerous articles in specialized automobile magazines have appeared on
the Corvair which take note of the model’s various problems. A few early
citatlons are: “Rear Engine Mounting, Its Effect on the Automobile Chassis,”
Society of Automotive Engineers Magaeine, March 7, 1957 (this of course precedes
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the _Gorvair and discusses the problem generally); “Road : rvai

; gprint,” Car a'm.j. Driver, July, 1962; “Auto Aer);zlg’namics,'?‘zﬂf: I??flevi;;yfg;?
E October, 1961; “Independent Rear Suspension Problem and Promise,” Molor
:l:rend, October, 1260; “The Great Rear Engine Hassle,” Cer Life M,'agazme
LOVEEI‘I‘JEI‘, 1969; “How to Make a Corvair.” Motor Life Magazine November,
1959 ; Corvair Road Test,”” Motor Trend, January, 1960; and “Coi—vuir Oohd':
: tioning,” Sporits Car ITHiugirated, Moy 1960. . ’ '
3 4. Important and comprehensive analysis of accident i — whi
ho_w and Wher_e.to look for accident and injury causes—urte :‘E‘I’fg;ég‘ﬁ?%n ‘f“?:lll::lntl'
Highway: Collisions-—papers 1961-1062 and 1982-1963,” Harvard Medical School
(Bogton, Massachusetts) i “Experimentai Case Studies of Traffic Accidents—A
-Gencral Discussion of Procedures and Conclustons,” Traffic Institute North-
western Unn_’ermty, Evanston, Illinois, 1960, (DBoth.the Harvard uné North-
western stu'dlea were .fede_rally financed.) - Of unquestioned value for aceident
cage analysis .(as distinguished from injury cause) is “Traffic Accident Invegti-
gator’s Manual for Police,” by J. Stannard Balker, 1063, The Traffic Institute
Northwestern Univerzity, Evanston, 11linois. : '

'Mr. Power. It was later learned that Mr, Nader had been listed
as the “Washington, D.C., correspondent” in an article he had writ-
ten for the February-March 1965 issue of Trial. '

- On October 8 it was reported in the San Franeisco Chronicle that
Mr. Nader had recently completed “a searing document that may be-
come the ‘Silent Spring’ of the automotive industry,” and that it was
t%tab:hegtltled “Unsafe at Any Speed.” A copy of this article is
W ed.

[From BSan Francisco Chronlele, Oct. 8, 1685)
HxHiarr 129
WORLD 0¥ BOOKS—THE AMERICAN WAY OF DEATH

(By William Mogan)

"A ‘gearing document that mey become the “Silent Spring” of th
. 3 auto-
‘%};Il:ive“mdustry will make its appearance in mid'-NovembEr, agnd at lm‘ig lagt.
A:n ec_l_ Unsafe atl_Any Speed,” this catalogues the designed-in dangers of the
o Ie.)l_':_ican uutomoblle,_complete with diagrams on bow safety easily can be engi-
: bee e'.into cars, but iz not, The author Is a young Hartford, Conn,, barrister
.$ﬁ.ga‘m‘1‘g wri!:er and former cditor of The Harvard Law Review, Ra'lph Nader:
afg 8 "fanatically well-informed” on the failure of manufacturers to make cars
: Nader’s publisher, Richard Grossman, told us about this title dur i

er, d , | ing o vigit here
!::lis_:weel_fl.)_ Origlm_ally it was scheduled for publieation in June. Ig!ut to avoid
‘-tlgfh?ﬁslf'l]my of libel, as Nader names names up and down the assembly lines,
i aloth awg'ers has combed the manuscript. It is legally impeccable at this
coh -willoiug Grossman sugpects that the industry’s billion-dollar advertising
nterosiy di étl:lrét;l}n% tc:;{rggggncagain?t the books, as some chemical and pesticide
iff,fe;epce 10 the Al natu&;fon a powerful critique of their commercial in-
rrﬁfggd li)goik ltll‘?lveloped from an article by James Ridgeway, “The Corvair
cditor ai: S;lm e New Repubhc._ Grossman, 8 former vice-president and senior
--tﬁ'réé“years aon & Schusper until he lnunched hia own small publishing house
cplled that gol, asked Ridgeway to expand hig article into a book. Ridgewsay
llglriéerlng mfi?ty one writer was well enough informed on the tecbnology of
“Nader een] lety who could do it—Ralph Nader.

; :%-yearsp ll:-::g:;i:htll: safety devices for a “crash-proof” car have been available
vith speed ;mg ta\:e been ignored by manufacturers who continue to be obsessed
clicate eleotn 8tyling. The technological know-how is there. If we can bring
hEd in o pod ONicR gear sarfcly back from space, we can protect a flve-year-old
nalsts it iy IIl'otla:mergermy. The author admits that accidents are inevitable, but

s every veu;leccssgtry to kill and maim some 40,000 people on the Nation’s
Shows tha s This, he feels. should be the manufacturers' responsibility.
oo 1t has been tragically ignored, right down to Detroit’s 1966 models.
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Nader's interest and passion in all this was stirred orlginally during some
40,000 miles of youthful hitch-hiking around the country., He tatked with truck
drivers about accidents they had seen and recorded thelr bitter criticlam of
badly-designed cars. This grew into a legal specialty in trafilc easey and a eritical
gttitude that geems to be In the muckraking tradition of Ida Tarbell and Lincoln

teffens.

Grossman feels that “Unsafe at Any Speed” is the most important book he has
issued. He expects a strong counterattack from some gquarters in Detroit. At
the same time he geems to be sitiing on the most newsworthy document since
Jessica Mitford's “The American Way of Death,” something that affects all of us.

Mr. Power. On QOctober 22, the General Motors law library received
the most recent volume of American Jurisprudence Proof of Facts,
which had been mailed to all subscribers to the series a short time
before. This particular volume contained a 158-page article on “Auto-
mobile Design Hazards” written by Mr. Nader. The anthor was
described as “A member of the Connecticut and Massachusetts bars
and a gradunate of Harvard Law School who ‘has written and lectured
extenstvely in the field of automobile design hazards.’” No mention
was made of his technical qualifications. _

At about the same time the March 11, 1965, issue of the New York
Times quoted Mr. Nader as saying that “he had suspended his law
practice during his crusade for greater public safety.” (P. 18.)

UNSBAFE AT ANY SPEED

The November 1 issue of the Nation contained an article by Mr.
Nader entitled “Profits versus Engineering—The Corvair Story.”
He was described as an attorney who “has long been interested in
safety problems relating to the automobile.” It was noted that the
article had been adapted from a chapter in Mr. Nader’s book, “Unsafe
at Any Speed,” to be published later that month. '

[From the Natlon, Nov. 1, 18857
ExamIT 130

ProrF1Te v8. ENGINEERIKG—THE CORVAIR STORY
(By Ralph Nadecr)

Ralph Nader 18 on aiiorney who hes long been inderested in safety
prodlems relaling to the eutomobile. This article {8 adepted from a
chapter in his Unsafe at Any Speed, to be published this month by
Grossman,

In August of 1961, Mrs, Rose Pierini lost her left arm when the 1961 Chevrolet
Corvair she was driving turned turtle just beyond the San Marcos overpass on
Hollister Street in Santa Barbara, Calif. Bxsetly thirty-four months later, in
the same city, Geueral Motors decided to pay Mrs. Pierini $70,000 rather than
eontinue a trial which for three days had threatened to expose on the public
record certain driving characteristics of their brand-new automobile.

Mrs. Plerini's experience with a Corvair that went suddenly out of control
was not unigue. Too many Corvairs of this model have shown such inclinations
for her case to be singular. What was distinctive about the “accident” was the
attempt to And the cause of it on the basis of investigation, instead of resorting
to the customary practice of antomatically blaming the driver, -

As described by a Californin Highway Patro! officer, John Bortolozzo, who
witnessed the flip-over while motoring in the opposite direction, the Pierini
vehicle wa#s traveling about 35 miles per hour in a 35-mph zone in the right lane
headed toward Goleta. He saw the car move toward the right side of the read
near the shoulder and then “all of a sudden the vehicle made a sharp cut to the
left and swerved over.” Bortolozzo testified at the trial that he rushed over to

e
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the wreck and with two other men helped Mrs. Pierini out of the vehicle while
trying to stop the torrent of blood gushing forth from the stub of her arm. She
was very calm, observed Bortolozzo, only saying that “something went wrong
with my steering.”

The ofiicer made a check of the vehlcle while it was on ita top. He noticed
that the left rear tire was deflated. Looking at the road, he noticed some gouge
marks made by the metal rim of the leff rear tire, He gave his opinion at the
trial that the distinctive design features of the Corvair caused it to go out of
control and flip over as had other Corvairs in secidents he had investigated. It
was during the cross-examination of Officer Bortolozzo by defense lawyers that
General Motors decided to settle the case,

Up to this point no engineering experts had been called to testify by plaintiff
Pierini, but already the case had been going badly for General Motors, Two
members of the respected California Highway Patrol bad taken direct aim on
the Corvair design. One of them, Charles Hanna, mentioned a confidential eir-
cular put out by the highway patrol which dealt with handling hazards of certain
rear-engine cars, including the Corvair. Hanna, a fourteen-year veteran of the
patrol who had investigated over 4,000 accidents, testified that “I have had many,
many chances to observe accidents involving this type of vehicle. And they all
have the same type of pattern.”

Mr. James A. Johnson, service manager of Washburn Chevrolet Company, where
the Plerini Corvalr was purchased, told the court tbat his company sold an
accessory specially designed for the Corvair by & nearby manufacturer. Attached
underneath the vehicle to each end of the lower control arms, this accessory

‘reduced excessive caving-in, or tuck-under, of the rear wheels on cornering or

other stress situations,

The dealership's proprietor, Shelton B, Washburn, confirmed that as early as
1961 General Motors provided dealers with regilar production option 696, wbich
they could sell to Corvair owners, RPO 693 included heavier suspenslon springs

‘and shock absorbers, a front stabilizer bar, and rear-axle rehound straps to

reduce tuck-under. This RPO was a factory-installed kit and not openly adver-
tised. It was intended to meet the demands of knowledgeable Corvair owners
who toke their cornering seriously.

Mr. Johnson, In reply to guestioning by plaintiff’s counsel, stated that he had
been at & General Motors training center at Burbank in 1959 to receive instruc-
tions and training ahout the new Corvair model. There, General Motors per-

‘gonnel told him that the differential tire pressures, front and rear, in Corvair
automobiles were a critical factor In their stability. There followed this

exchange: .
Counsel: Wers you instructed by your superiors to tell members of the pubdlic
that tire pressures on the Corveir were vital, important, cruvial, and critical?
Johnson : No.
Counsel: Did you insiruct your subordinates to tell members of the publio
and customers of Washburn Chevrolet that tire pressures on the Corvair were

.m'tul, important, cruciel, or criticalf

Johnson: We didn't tell the public this, no.

Counsel ; I8 it true that tire pressures on a Corveir are a must: they have got
to be just right for the stability of the car?

Johngson : Yes.

When Gencral Motors called a halt at this point, Judge Percy C. Heckendorf
appeared as one summarily deprived of a great drama. He told the court: T am
disappointed from your standpoint, members of the jury, that you are not going
to be able to see both sides perform and hear their arguments and go Inte it
It is a real experience and T would love to have heard that.”

Other judges in this country are not likely to he so deprived. Even at the

-time of the Pierini case, there were more than thirty cases filed agajnst General

Motors in the Los Angeles area—all alleging in common that Corvairs went
Suddenly and unexpectedly out of control. Genersl Motors lawyers knew what
they were doing in settling the Plerini case. A jury verdiet against the company
Mmight have ignited a mass litigation over the entire country at a far faster pace
than was actually eoccurring.

The Corvair’s peculiar friskiness had not escaped the notice of the automobile
Writers and editors who put out those sprightly car magazines that illl shelves in
gl‘ugstores. To this animated cult of auto lovers, the Introduction of the

Waterless Wonder from Willow Run” into a world of automobile design, mired
Or three decades in the rut of follow-the-crowd compromises, wag a dream
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realized. The Corvair was diffevent, It was the first modern Amnerican auto-
maobile to offer a swing-axle independent rear suspension with an aluminum,
air-cooled engine mounted in the rear. 'This was news, challenge, and con-
troversy—the combination that makes for good copy and lively reading. Im-
‘mediately following the car's introduction in September, 1959, the articles be-
gan pouring forth on the Corvair road tests, on its rear-engine placement and
its sugpension system. By 1963, sports ¢ar racer and writer Denise McClug-
guge conld begin an article on Corvair handling idiosyneracies with words that
assumed & knowing familiarity by her auto buff readers: “Seen any Corvairs
lately with the back end smashed in? Chances ate they weren't run into, but
1'atiher ran into something while going backwards, And not in reverse gear,
either,” . .

Then Miss McCluggage went on to deseribe g phenomenon she tormed a
‘_‘snshay through the boonies, back-end first.”” ‘“The classic Corvair accident
i3 o guick spin in a.turn and swoosh —off the road backwards, Or, perhaps,
ip hali-corrective measures are applied, the backward motion is arrested, the
tires claw at the pavement and the car iz sent darting across the road to the
other gide. In this case there might be some front end damage instead.”

Was Miss McCluggage trying to frighten anyone? Not in the least. The
vehicle’s provocative movements were not to be viewed pessimistienlly as a
danger, hut merely as a challenge to driving expertise. The Corvair on a sud-
den detour could he “brought back" hefore reaching the point.of no return,
nceording to the author, given know-how, anticipation and concentration.

Not all this country’s 95 million drivers, however, could qualify for the
Shell 4,000 Rally. Tor the 99 per cent not in Misy McCluggage's class, the
nomohile “after-market” entrepreneurs provided other remedies. Hardly bad
the firgt Corvair hit the highway in 1959 before an enterprising company in
Riverside, Calif., PMPI, realized that money was to be made from the Cor-
vair's engineering faults. The company developed, tested and began to sell an
accessory rear stabilizer ealled the EMPI Camber Compensator that was gpecial-
ly designed for installation beneath the rear suspension control arma of Cor-
vairs. Quite simply, it was a bar to help keep the wheels in optimum con-
tact with the roadway. .

EMPT advertised broad claims for its device: “keeps wheels on the ground,”
“dosigned and engineered to correct oversteer,” “increases stability in winds,”
‘reduces body sway,” “lowers roll center,” “reduces lean on turns.” Esti-
mates of the compensator’s effectiveness in meeting all of EMPT's declared ob-
jectives varied, but there was a solid consensus that these objectives defined
very real Corvair problems. And there was widesprend endorsement that the
compensator was g sizable step forward in safety.

EMPI was not the only company offering stabilizing equipment for the Cor-
vair. Heveral competitors entered the fleld ns the commentary began to build
up from the nuto magazines. A reader of such magazines who owned 2 Cor-
vair could well become interested in extra equipment after seeing such reports
as; ‘

—The car can be o handful if the driver doesn’t understand its peculiarities.

—-The rear weight bias and independent springing togetber give the car rather
wnsetiling properties at high speeds. Take cornering, for ezample. The rear
starts to swing ontward. The reer tires dig in but the shift in weight places
them at rether odd angles relative to the pavement. These angles are great
enough to inerease stcering foree end, suddenly, the car is negoiinting a tighter
curve than iniended. The phenomenon of oversicer has intruded into the
scene.

~—Another problem with the Corvair is extreme gensitivity to eross winds.
If a sudden gust hits the cer, it causes the regr to sway rather gseverely.

The foregoing comments are made by men who know the Corvair and are
enthusiastic about the relative newness of ity engineering as far as mass-produced
Ameriean cars are concerned. Thelr criticisms are serious and are meant to be
talen as such by their anthors, But critics are not necessarily crusaders, They
never indulge in ecmnmentary ahout the kind of engineering znd management
operations within General Motors which Ted to such an unsafe vehicle. In the
altomohile magnzine world such commentary is considered poor taste. It may
also be indiscreet. One concentrates on the vehicle, not on 1ts makers.

But the anto magazines and the Corvair specialists did have an effect on Gen-
cral Motprs and its Chevrolet division, Not that any defects in the vehicle’s
handling were suddenly revealed to Chevrolet's engineers. Whatever the inde-
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pendent specialista could do by way of testing and modifying, Chevrolet could do
better. And when & prosperous business can be bullt up by small companies on
the basis of making Corvairs safer, the obvious implication is that the factory
models Are dangerous, and that implication might seep beyond the tight little
world of auto fans and magazines. It took General Motors four years of the
models and 1,124,076 Corvairs before they decided to do something for all unsus-
pecting Corvair buyers by installing standard equipment to help control the ear's
handling hazards.

Ever since the Corvair was introduced, General Motors’ officinl reaction to
criticisms has been sllence. The handling hazarde of Corvairs did not proceed
from engineering mysteries or the prevalence of one technical school of thought
over another. The Corvair was a tragedy, not a blunder. The tragedy was
overwhelningly eaused by cutting corners to shave costs. This happens nll the
time in the antomobile industry, but with the Corvair it happened in a big
way. What was there for General Motors to say?

The tragedy of the Corvair did not begin that 30th day of September in 1959
when it went on display in dealer showrooms. Nor did it begin when Ford test
drivers got hold of two Corvairs somewhat prematurely from a dealer in early
September, and had them go out of control at the company’s test track. It began
with the conception and development of the Corvair by leading GM engineers—
Rdward Cole, Harry Barr, Robert Schilling, Kai Hansen and Frank Winchell.

Cole, now a General Motors executive vice president, provided the managerial
ignition, He wag an old devotee of rear-engined cars and right after World War
1T became Involved with a short-lived experimental Cadillac having a rear
engine. A protoiype, ponderously bedecked with dual tires at the rear for sta-
bility, was soon shelved. . Cole, however, continued to be attracted by the idea of &
rear-engined car and he carried it over with him to Chevrolet and developed a
project proposal as he rose in that division’s hierarchy. Tn 1955, as chief engi-
necr of Chevrolet, Cole saw a market for o small, “compact” car, Already an
unprétentious import with a rear, air-cooled engine and independent suspension
was “pre-testing” the American market with rising commercial success. But
Cole and his associates were not in any mind merely to produce an American
imitation of the Volkewagen. This was t¢ be a brand new kind of car utilizing
the lessons of past models and the advances of the latest automotive technology.
When he rose to head Chevrolet division in the summer of 1956, Cole put some
of his finest engineering talent to work on preliminary design operations, In
the spring of 1957, Barr, Schilling and Hansen made formal presentations before
the top-level GM engineering policy committee and tbe executive committee.
It was then that the official go-ahead to build the Corvair was given to Chevrolet,
Kai Hansen was made head of the project.

Hangen's group knew well the kinds of priorities which would force them to
dilute their engineering standards. First, the new automobile had to sell well
and make a “target rate of return” on investment. The way to do this, General
Motor's management decided, was to make a small, lighter car, with fuyel econ-
omy, which would seat six passengers comfortably and give a ride comparable
to a standard Chevrolet passenger sedan. If these objectives could be achieved,
the quest for maximum profit would have reached new frontiers. An automobile
achieving a reduction of of 1,232 pounds of materlal, or more than one-third the
weight of a standard 1980 Chevrolet, that could sell for only about $200 less than
standard models, would constitute a marvel of production cost efficiency and sales
ingenuity,

In January, 1960, Hansen told a meeting of the Soclety of Automotive Engi-
neers: “QOur first objective, once the decision was made to design a smaller,
lighter car, was to attain good styling proportions. Merely shortening the wheel
hase and front and rear overhang was not acceptable, To permit lower overall
height and to accommodate six adult passengers, the ficor hump for the drive
shaft had to go. Bliminating the conventional drive shaft made it essential
then that the car have either rear-engine, rear-drive or front-eugine, front-drive.”

Chevrolet englneers declded that the best and most “aesthetically pleasant”
utilization of passenger space dictated the use of o rear-engine, rear-drive design,

Ansen’s Job was to get the various factors working for safe handling—principally

Tont and rear weight distribution, tire-pressure differentials and tire design,
Suspensgion geometry, and relative dynamic behavior in the front and rear—and
8till keep a soft ride and maximum cost reduction,

ansen and his fellow engineers could not have been under any misapprehen-
8lon a3 to the magnitude of the handling challenge before them. They had to
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deal with by far the heaviest renr-engined automohile in the Western world, hav-
ing between 60 and 63 per cent of its welght on the rear wheels, This fact alone
posed handling problems considerably in excess of those afflicting the smalier
and lighter rear-engined Furopean cars. Ocee Ritch, a well-known California
auto specinlist, deseribes the congequences of this weight and size difference
Loetween rear-engined cars by way of simple analogy: "If you swing a bucket at
the end of o short rope and accidentally hit your brother in the head, is be more
apt to suffer a concussion if the bucket is empty or full? Bimilarly, if you in-
crense the length of the rope and swing it at the same speed, will it cause more
damage?

Hansen has never publicly stated what choices he would bave preferred to take
had he been given more authority against the erosive demands of the professional
stylists and the cost department. The secret world of the automobile industry
does not encourage free and open engineering discussion of alternative courses
of nction. Dut on occasion there is an exposition of what was actually done.
Refore a meetlng of the Scciety of Automotive Engineers on Aprit 1, 1960, in
Detroit, Charles Rubly, a Chevrolet engineer who worked on the Corvair, gave
his colleagues the practical considerations: “0One of the obvious questions is:
‘If you wish more of the roll couple to be taken on tbe front wheels, why did
you leave the stabilizer off ? First, we felt the slight amount of gain realized did
hot warrant the ¢ost; secondly, we did not wish to pay the penalty of increased
road noise and harshness that resuits from use of a stabilizer. Another question
that no doubt can be asked is why did we choose an independent rear sugpension of
this particnlar type? There are other swing-axle rear suspensions, of course,
that permit trausferring more of the roll couple to the front end. Our selection
of this particular type of a swing-axle rear suspension 1a based on; (1) lower
cost, (2) ease of assemhly, (3) ease of service, and (4) gimpleity of design, We
also wished to take advantage of coil springs . . . in order to obtain & more
pleasing ride....”

Positions assumed by rear wheels of- unmodified Corvair showing breakaway,
extreme tuck-under and incipient roll-over.

Mr. Rubly’s four reasons could be reduced to one: lower cost. Having made
sach concessions, the Corvair engineers had to compensate for the strong over-
steering tendency of the design. This was done by recommending to the Corvair
owner certain critical tire-pressure differentials which he should maintain
between front and rear wheels. Corvair huyers received this advisory near the

- 8avlnp
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end of the owner's manual: “Over-steer problems may also 17! ¥ ri
incorrect pressures. Maintain the recommended inilation pré)s‘fslfrlzcsogi:liﬁllegn‘:‘e;tl’]'

No (icﬂn_itmn _of “over-sleer” is given in the manual, The recommended pre.s-
gures arve 15 psi (pounds per gquare inch) on the tront wheels and 26 psi on
the rear wheels when cold (defined as “after car has been parked for three
hours or more or driven less than one mile”) and 18 psi front and 30 psi rear
when “hot.”_ According to the Chevrolet division, such pressure differences
promote vehicle stability by introducing proper steer characteristics.

It is wgll established that cornering stability can be improved with any weight
distributl(}n. front or rear, by manipulating tire-inflation pressures. But no
policy which throws the burden of such stability on the driver by requiring him
to monitor closely and persistently tire-pressure differentials can be desecribed
as sound or gsane engineering practice. The prominent automotive engineer
Robert Janeway expressed a deeply rooted techniecal opinion in engineering
¢ircles when he evaluated the use of this human expedient: “Instead of stability
peing inherent in the vehicle design, the operator is relied upon to maintain a
rcqui;ed pressure differential in front and rear tires. This responsibility, in
turn, 1s_pasaed along to service station attendants, who are notoriously unreliable
in abiding by req_uested tire pressures. There is also serious doubt whether
the owner or scrvice man is fully aware of the importance of maintaining the
recommended pressures.” :

Corvair_ dealers and saleamen have widely varying opinions about what are
the best tire pressures. It is unusual to find one who adheres to or agrees with
the owr}er’s manual recommendations, although recently Chevrolet directives
have reiterated the need for following the manual's figures., The apathy among
deale—rs_ about the function of proper pressures for Corvair handling is quite
unsettling. Dealer employees have routinely suggested to inquirles equivalent or
near-equwazlen-t tire pressure between front and rear. A Washington D.C.
dealer advised with assurance, “Carry 24 pounds in the front tires a;.nd 28:
po_unds in -t‘:he rear.,” The owner’s manual was wrong, he =aid, and concluded
with the aside, “Cars are like women. They're all different.”

The Cprvair driver becomes puzzled on confronting such a range of advice.
If he writea to the Chevrolet division for clarifieation, be receives a reply assur-
Ing him that the manual’s recommendations are the optimum tire pressures and
were der-ived‘afber exhaustive research and testing . But clearly a more heavily
loade_d quvalr: such as one with five passengers, requires different tire pressures
to minimize differencea in tire deflections front and rear. Corvair englneers
knew about this problem and considered raising the recommended recar-tire
DPrassures, Once again, however, they succumbed to the great imperative—s
SOTE I:lde. Rubly recounts it plainly enough: “The 28 psi would reduce the
rear-tire deflection enough but we did not feel that we should compromise ride
and”add harshness because under hot conditlong tire pressures incrense 3 to 4
Dlsl. Remarks ;such as these make it difficult to give full credence to company
claime and advice _dealing with automotive safety. For behind the facade of
etﬁgineering authority is the reality of the “trade off—auto industry cant for
aniel;are-bones concessions to the cpat and style men. 'The engineering assur-

Am:ﬁn;mt be taken at face value in such a context_of undisclosed ecompromise.
pacity o fe u:f?;? inﬂn&ately .related to Corvair stability is the load-carrying ca-
Stanaasds : res. ccor(zlmg to the Tire and Rim Association, a tlre industry
the Co _group, the mo.x:mum-_mted loaded capuacity of the size tire used on
derive (;V:Ef is 83b pOul‘_ldS per tire at 24_ pst. These maximum-rated loads are
companies e:_:Y compromige between the tire manufacturers and the automobile
of the Go Yet even under these less than astringent standards, the rear tires
demsitlonr:alr are ordinarily overloaded with two or more passengers. In a
Speelalict Raken on behalf_of General Motors in one of the Corvalr cases, tire
overload th aymond B, Stnngﬂeld_stuted that four passengers would definitely
Hig reply - ‘?Ttlilres. ]E[p: was questioned about the tire air-ouf during cornering.
rated load on t‘}; Corvnu-_ is, with any passengers at all, very near the maximuin-
turn] is on o e renr _tn'es and a spdden thrust [as when a wheel is making a
high to res]‘iJBt i,i? (:f .Eoz'c‘:,mg the bead inward, unless the air pressure is sufficiently

4 . °
endU&d%{rglli_ﬁd";erhiclos afe not mew to the automobile industry. Bince the
cost departa 'ar I, progressively shaving costs oﬂ!.tlres has been one of the

Cpar ent.s most succesyful triumphs. A multiplier is operating here; a
Z on one tire means savings on all five tires. But although it is not un-
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corumon for ather vehicles, overloading tires on the Corvair, in comhination with
its other unique features, such as weight distribution, can be particularly
hazardous,

‘With such a precarious weight distribution and tire load, Chevrolet division’s
relocation of the spare tire from the front, where it was in the 1860 Corvalr, to
the rear for the 1961 Corvair Monza, was greefed with sheer ineredulity by
indepcndent Corvair apecialists. The reason for the switch was to increase the
luggage space in the front “trunk.” This switch not only added to the rear-end
weight but expored the tire in the engine compartment to possibly harmfal
temperatures.

It would not be fair to say that the Corvair engineers deslgned a vehkicle but
forgot the driver, They knew the risks in a design where the car usurps the
driving task under certain expected stresses of highway travel. These stresses
oocur not just in high-speed emergency conditions but in ordinary driving situa-
tions within legal-speed limits. The combination of factors which leads to the
critical point of control loss may occur with a statistical infrequency, hut the
traditional integrity of autemotive design has heen to embrace just such situa-
tions. When it serves their promotional interests, the automobile manufac-
turers show great concern about the most infrequently occurring sifuations. A
continuing illustration is the elaborate defenges which they make for produecing
vehicles with up to 400 horsepower and a speed capabillty reaching 150 miles
per hour. Is such power and speed hazardous? Not at all, elaim the com-
panies, for they provide an important margin of safety in. emergency conditions,
Apparently emergency conditions include speeds up to and over 100 miles an
hour. .

The men who headed the Corvair project kuew that the driver should be
given a vehicle whose handling is both controllable and predictable. They knew
that impossible demands could be placed upon the driver by an inherently over-
steering behavior. Hor the past thirty-five years, American cars have been
designed to be basically understeering. The Corvair was the first mass-pro-
duced exception. Dr. Thomas Manos, the highly respected automotive engineer-
ing professor of the University of Detroit, i8 not teaching Hansen’s group any-
thing they do not know when he states his judgment about oversteering
automobiles: “The driver must become aware that he has to continually fight
the wheel or continuously correct becanse he ig the factor which makes the
vehicle a stable plece of equipment.”

There is no dispute in automotive-engineering literature that an oversteering,
rear-engined vehicle demands more attention on the part of the driver during
cornering and other situations where centrifugal forces come into play. The
reason for this is plain, John Gorden’s explanation is helpfnl. *“If you're
making o right-hand turn, there’s a tendency for the car to move more to the
right than you will anticipate it would in relation to the amount of movement
you put on the gteering wheel.” Robert Janeway, former director of Chrysler’s
research department, holds that an oversteer condition “is both disconcerting and
dangerous c¢Xecept to an expert driver of sports cars or racing cars. The required
reversal of steering-wheel direction after initiating the turn is an unstable situ-
ation that is difficult for the ordinary driver to handle without overcorrection,
with potentially dangerous swings on bhoth sides of the proper curved path.
From the standpoint of safety, over-steer is an intolerable conditlon and has
always been recognized as such by the industry in the T.8.” The instability of
rear-engined oversteering vehicles on a straight road when there are cross winds
is also a well-known phenomenon.

During the design stage, Hansen’s group tried to counteract the Corvair's
inherent oversteer by employing wider wheel rims for increased tire-cornering
power and by building some understeer into both front and rear suspension
systems according to well-known principles, Buat it is cleax that they were not
permitted to go as far as sound engineering practices should have dictated.
The type of swing-axle rear suspension used on the 1960-64 Corvairs contained n
hazard that was quite independent of the engine location. The rear wheel in
mounted on a control arm which hinges and plvots on an axis at the inheard
end of the arm near the center of the vehicle, This design encourages tuck-under
of the outside wheel on cornering which redoces the wheel’s cornering capability
and aggravates the oversteer effect. TUntil the 1964 Corvair, the only component
limiting downward wheel travel was the shock absorher—a function which shock
absorbers are not designed to serve.
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Corvair rear-suspension actions compared. Note that with new models
wheels no longer change camber as they move down to accommodgie
road conditions.

November 1, 1965

What most sets the 1880-68 Corvairs apart from light foreign vehicles, with
comparabie percentages of welght distributlon and swing axles, is the sudden
onset of the eritical point at which the vehicle goes out of contrel and frequently
flips over, This point is reached by any number of combinations of vehicle
gpeed, radiuy of curve, and tire-inflation pressures. For example, tests have
ghown that a Corvair cap lureh out of control at about 22 mph, with 26 psi in
front and rear tires, and turning on a 50 degree radius of curvature. At higher
speeds, o less sharp curve is required to achieve the same rear-end breakaway,
but passing maneuvers on 4 highway could easily involve a severe turn during the
swing out and in. Janeway points out that “critical speeds can occur in the
normal driving speed range on sharp curves even at moderate degrees of over-
gteer.” Other makes of vehicles can be made to oversteer through drastic tire
inflation differentials, or very heavy loading, but as the forces produced mount
toward the critical polnt, they give a warning to the driver in the “feedback”
he receives through the steering wheel, if indeed he iz not forewarned by the
underinflated tires before or as he gets under way.

The Corvalr iz different in the 1960-63 models and to a lesser extent in the
1964 model. At a critical point of lateral acceleration (or centrifugal force),
there is & sudden rear-wheel tuck-under. Technically, the positive camber
increases radically 4° to 10 or 11° camber—a horrifying shift eausing vlolent skid-
ding, rear-end hreakaway.or vehicle roll-over. The change occurs without any
warning and in an instant. A variety of disturbing forces may cause thie sudden
tuck-under—tire blowouts, gusts of cross wind, the second leg of an S-shaped
curve or a comparahle cornering maneuver. Near the critical point it takes an
expert driver to provide the corrective gteering action—assnming that highway
conditions permit and there are no obstructions, such ag another vehicle or a trec.
The car was built and sold as “easy handling,” “as a family sedan,” as a car
that “purrs for the girls,” according to some of the General Motors advertisements.

In ways whollty unique, the Corvair can become a single-minded, aggressive
machine. QOne factor that has been notleced In many single-car Corvair upeets
is that the rear wheel tucks under and the rim touches the roadway. When
this occurs no driver can control the vehlelie, which will either gwerve wildly
or, more likely, turn over. Rim scrapings or gouge marks on the road have be-
come. the macahre trademark of Corvairs that went unexpectedly cut of cont.rol.

The Corvair tragedy consisted of a series of lost opportunilies. At the time
the vehicle was being designed and tested in prototype, the Chevrolet division
had fully developed and rigorous proving-ground, laboratory, and theoretical
testz for determining vebicle-handling characterlstics and directional stability.
Proving-ground facilities . were equipped with instruments for evs_lluattng the
sensitivity of a vehicle and its tendencies to oversteer under a W1de_range of
conditions. At the same time, General Motors had instruments which could
even have programed stecring responses of the driver and dctt;rmined Lthe
extent of “feedback” thot the operator depends upon, from the handling behavior
of the vehicle, to govern bis driving actions. As far back as 1953, Lyle A. Walsh
of the GM engineering staff was writing in the General Molors BEnginecring
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Jouwrnal about well-established techniques of putting a car’s suspension systeln
under the scerutiny of scientific laboratories while the car was in action. In
1958, the same journal contained a report by Chevrolet engineers Robert WW.
Graham and Ronakd . S8hafer about & new simulator to test vehicle suspensions.
A year later, Chevrolet’s Max M. Roensch deseribed the 4-year-old Chevrolet
engineering laboratory, including the elaborate test and development techniques
availahle to supplement the tindings of the General Motors proving ground under
actual vehicle driving conditions.

Obviousiy, proving groundg, laboratory and theorctical testing and analysis
provided the Corvair engineers with the data to document thoroughiy the design
limitations of the Corvair before it went into production. Professor Manos, who
views the tuck-under problem as the most serlous defect of the 1960-1963 Cor-
vairs, hag said tbat he would flunk any studeut who would not work this enlen-
lation ont in an automotive engineering course. It is just that elementary and
cruecial a caleulation to vehicle safety.

Yet a safer Corvair suspension system was not forthcoming—not in 1960, not
in 1961, not in 1962, and not in 1983. With the receipt of hundreds of written
complaints sent to General Motors by people whose Corvairs had suddenly gone
out of control, and the real threat of many lawsuits which must have been
anticipated by company lawyers, the absence of &ny corrective action year after
year can be explained ouly by bureaucratic rigidities and abject subservience
to coat reduction,

But at last, with the 1964 model!, Chevrolet moved to make improvements. A
transverse leaf spring in the rear and a front anti-sway bar were included as
gtandard equipment for 1934 models. The leaf spring served much the same
function as the EMPI camber compensator and substantially reduced the tuck-
under hazard, The 1965 Corvair came out with o more fundamental change in
the form of = of a link-type suspension with dual control arms, These improve-
ments represented new company policy, but not engineering innovation. They
drew on well-developed knowledge that went back into GM’'s empirical work dur-
ing the thirties and extending to the experimental rear-engined race car de-
veloped after World War II by Chevrolet’s key suspension engineer, Zora Arkus-
Puntov.

While General Motors may have finalty lumbered into engineering improve-
ments, it would be corporate heresy for the proud industry leader to worry
gbout the hundreds of thousands of Corvairs waiting for the law of averages
to catch up with them on some S-curve or breezy straightaway. After all, those
Corvairs were already sold.

At the May, 1085, annual shareholders meeting in Detroit's vast Cobo Hall, Dr.
Seymour Charles, a General Motors stockholder and the founder of the Physicians
for Automobile Safety, rose to plead with management to call back to dealer
stations all remaining 1960-83 Corvairs in order that life-saving stabilizing com-
ponents might be installed. Dr. Charles was not able to arrive at a cost estimate
since there is no way of knowing how many such Corvairs are still roaming the
highways. (Motor Trends technical editor, Jim Wright, noted in 1863 that the
“wreeking yards have a good selection these days.”) But assuming that a million
cars have survived, the most that snch a recall would cost would be $26 million:
equivalent to a balf-day’s gross sales, or less than flve days' net profits (after
taxes) to General Motors. .

On the platform in front of Dr, Charles were General Motors’ board chairman,
Frederic &, Donner, and ity president, John G. Gordon. Mr, Donner was presid-
ing over the meeting. He deflected the request by invitlng Dr. Charles to come up
after the meeting to discuss his problems with several of the executives.

Dr. Gordon sat impassively watching Dr, Charles become the first shareholder
ever to roise openly At a General Motors annual meeting the questlon of specific
unsafe vehicle design. At the time of GM approval of Chevrolet's Corvair design
in 1957, Gordon was group vice president of the body and assembly divisions.
This entitled him to membership on both the top-level engincering policy gronp
and the executive committee which approved the Corvair design. e was one of
the five men responsible for final approval of the most “revolutionary” automotive
package which GM had ever presented to the domestic market. As an automotive
engincer with several patents to his credit, Mr. Gordon might have heen expected
to intereat himself in this substantial debut. Yet on April 10, 1065, under deposi-
tion, Mr. Gordon stated that he did not recall the Corvair design’s being presented

e i
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to the e;!ginﬁ@riﬂg policy groun. He admitted that he did not know what kind of
vear-end suspension was on the Corvair design that was approved for production
by his commmnittees.

Gordon becqme president of General Motors in 1958, In the ensuing scven years
he erdered no inquiry into the Corvair design, in spite of riging and unprecedented
litigation, owner complaints and detailed confidential company-sponsored inves-
tigations of Corvair accidents involving directional instability. Fe had never
heard of the stabilizing equipment produced especially for the Corvair by other
smaller manufacturers. ’

In his defense, Gordon says his duties were primarily administrative and that
he relied on subordinates with technical competence. One such technical sub-
ordinate was Charles Chayne, vice president of engineering. In the May-Tune,
1956 issue of the General Motors Engineering Jowrnal, he wrote that one funetion
of the engineering policy group was “to keep informed on the behavior of our
praducts in the hands of our customers so that improvements and corrections can
be made if required.” He then stated a key principle of General Motors' operat-
ing philosophy : “Coordinated control refers to the formulation of overall policy
and control of the flow of information. A two-way flow of information exists at
ench level of manogement—the downward flow from authority and the upward
from Initiative.”

In the making of the Corvair, there was a breakdown in this flow of both
authority and ipitiative. Initiative would have meant an appeal by the Corvair
design_englngers to fop management to overrule the cost cutters and stylists
whose incursions had placed unsafe constraints on engineering e¢hoice, There are,
however, deterrents to such action. It is to the keepers of those most sacred
totems—cost reduction and style—that corporate status and authority acerue.
Anyone skeptical about the role of pennies in the production of America’s most
expensive durable consumer product should heed what Buick's Edward Ragsdale
says about putting a new car into production: “Coat estimates are given the
closest possible serutiny, and they frequently are calculated to the fourth and
fifth decimal place. The difference of just two cents per car doesn't sound like
very much—but at current production rates, two cents a car may mean $10,000
f:?]r the naodel run. Hence the cost decision has a great bearing upon all proposed

anges,”

With a spectacular profit record and more than 50 per cent of the domestic
automobile market, General Motors is least vulnerable to competitive pressures
t_hat might have been the reason for cutting costs at the expense of Corvair
gafety. It is not commonly realized that General Motor's return on invested
cap.ltnl and its net inecome as a percentage of its sples are about double those
of its nearest competitor—the Ford Motor Company. In 1964, for example,
Ford had a met income, as a percentage of sales, of 5.8 per cent and an 11.3
per cent return on invested capital. The comparable General Motors figures
were 10,2 per cent, and 20.4 per cent, respectively. These are remarkable dif-
ferences in Amerlecan industry for the two leading companies in a highly con-
9ent5-ated product line such as automobiles. It might not have been surprising,
if still shoeking, to have 2 Corvair-type tragedy issue from an auto manufacturer
whose declining sales and high costs were driving it to the wall, But coming
from General Motors, such behavior—and the fact that it is tolerated—is a
gymptom of & sickness that radiates beyond corporate borders and into soclety.

On May 18, 1956, almost a year before the Corvair project was launched, GM’s
prolific inventor, Maurice Olley, flled a patent application (issued as No. 2,911,052
on. November 3, 1959) in which he said that he thought of the Corvairtype
Suspension: “The ordinary swing axle, under severe lateral forces produced
by cornering, tends to 1ift the rear end of the vehicle so that both wheels assume
Severe positive camber positions to such an extent that the vehicle not only

oversteers” but actually tends to roll over. In addition, the effect is non-linear
And increases suddenly in a severe turn, thus presenting potentlally dangerouns
vehicte handting characteristics.”

Olley’s judgment was ignored.

Six days later, on Saturday, November 8, the same article was re-
rinted in the Charleston {W. Va.) Gazette. The Charleston (Gazette,
owever, did include an editorial insert pointing out that General

Motors had been the victor in a $400,000 jury suit, and devoted one-
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third of & column to the Csllins case. The Anderson case was not
mentioned. (A copy of this editorial follows:)

Exmisir 131
[From the Charleston Gazette, Nov. 8, 1965]

GM Victor 1N $400,000 Jury Suir

Since the Pierini trial and out-of-court settlement referred to in this article,
General Motors has been exonerated in a similar case.

With Stirling Moss, the noted English race driver, testifying as an expert
witness for the defense, & jury in 8an Jose, Calif.,, found GM innocent fn a $400,-
000 action brought by a divorcee, Mrs. Doree K. Colling, for damages for the
death of her daughter in a 1860 Corvair-truck collision.

In her suit, Mrs. Collins maintains she was driving the Corvair at 45 miles
per hour along a straight section of a two-lane highway when the car ‘“fish-
tailed’” three times, went out of control, and smaghed into the truek, She claimed
that the accident was caused by the “defective deslgn” of the auto's rear swing
axles which allowed the wheels to tuck-in too far and made it “inherently un-
stable.”

Moss testified that he conducted tests and found the Corvair adegnately de-
signed for use on Ameriecan roads hy average drivers.

The jury returned a verdict clearing GM and the Corvair after 4 hours of
deliberation.

With hundreds of suits reportedly totaling more than $150 million in claims
against GM having been filed across the country, this is the first to reach jury
decisicn and becomes of paramount importanee, even thongh it does not estab-
Hah a legal precedent, according to Road & Truck magazine.

The publication of the Nader article in the November 1 issue of
the Nation, and the reprinting of this article in the November 8 issue
of the Charleston GGazette were a matter of great concern to the Gen-
eral Motors lawyers responsible for defending Corvair litigation and
raised a number of questions in their minds. The most startling as-
pect of the article was that it repeated the very same charges with
respect to the alleged defect in the design of the Corvair which had
been made by the plaintiffs in the C'ollins and Anderson cases and had
been rejected by the jury in each case,

Yet despite that %act, that both of these cases had been decided in
favor of (zeneral Motors, more than two and a half months prior to
the first publication of the Nader article, Mr. Nader made no reference
whatever to either case.

QUESTIONS RAISED BY NADER ARTICLES

'The article left the public with the totally false impression that the
charges which Mr. Nader made against the Corvair had not yet been
considered and passed upon in any court in the country. The article
raised a number of questions in the minds of the attorneys responsible
for the defense of this litigation.,

‘Who was Ralph Nader? Why was ATLA writing letters suggesting
that he be contacted for material and information on the Corvair for
litigation purposes o

hat was the motivation for Mr. Nader’s article published in the
Nation and reprinted in the Charleston Gazette? Why did the article
fail to disclose that the Collins and Anderson cases hag been tried and
that two juries had already rejected the contentions advanced in his
article! Were the Nader article and his forthcoming book part of
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an organized nationwide publicity campaign to pretry the Corvair
cases by television, newspaper, and magazine, and to precondition
Erospective jurors in the cases still to be tried throughout the United
tates?
INVESTIGATION OF NADER IN CONNECTICUT

On November 18, 1965, at my suggestion, an attorney on the legal
staff telephoned Royal-G‘riobe Insurance Co., the General Motors prod-
uct liability insurer, to inquire whether it had used an investigator in
Connecticut who might be able to obtain information about Mr.
Nader,

We were advised that Mr, William F. O'Neill, 16 Prospect Street,
East Hartford, Conn., had in the past made several investl,cira,tions for
the Royal Indemnity Co. Mr. George Leafort of Royal Indemnity
was requested to ask Mr. (’Neill to make a check on Mr. Nader to ob-
tain whatever information he could with respect to his qualifications,
and whether or not he was a trial lawyer in Winsted, Conn.

Mr. O’Neill sent a report dated November 21, 1965, to General
Motors indicating that Mr. Nader had never practiced law in Winsted,
although he had practiced briefly in Hartford, Conn., after gradua-
tion from law school. He advised that Mr. Nader apparently was not
in Winsted, although his mother and father and a brother lived in
Winsted at 53 Hillside Avenue. )

It was indicated that Mr. Nader could probably be located in Wash-
ington, D.C. Although the report indicated that Mr. Nader was re-
garded as having considerable intellectual ability, it failed to disclose
any technical background or experience which would qualify him as
an automotive expert.

On November 30 Mr. Nader’s book “Unsnfe at Any Speed,” came on
the market. The book was extensively reviewed and attracted wide-
spread attention. The entire first chapter of this book was devoted to
a criticism of the Corvair, including o rehash of the Pierini settlement,
and a reiteration of the same arguments which had been advanced by
the plaintiffs and rejected by the juries in the Collins and Anderson
cases,

Against this background it became increasingly important to learn
who Mr. Nader was and what were his connections, 1f any, with the
litigants or attorneys in the Corvair design cases: . )

1. Tt was possible that Mr. Nader was secking to build a reputation
and become an expert witness in pending Corvair litigation. If so,a
detailed knowledge of his background and training would be necessary.

2. Our self-imposed silence on the merits of the issues involved 1n
this Corvair design litigation in order to remain in compliance with
the Canon of Ethics was being misconstrued as an admission that this
adverse publicity was true. 'This could affect not only pending litiga-
tion, but the reactions and attitudes of potential jurors and our many
customers and stockholders. Definite evidence that Mr. Nader was
financially interested could be used to counter his attack.

8. If Mr. Nader was financially interested in this litigation as an
altorney, or if he was receiving pay or financial assistance from these
litignnts or their attorneys, then we could congider bringing this ex-
tensive and distorted publicity on pending litigation to the attention
of the appropriate people having jurisdiction over violations of the

49-859—68—pt. 4—B
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Canons of Ethics. Practically all of the materizl he was using in his
writings to attack the Corvair appeared to come from material col-
lected or obtained by plaintiff’s counsel in pending Corvair litigation.
ATLA publications were calling attention to his writings and to Mr.
Nader as a source of information and material for design and particu-
larly Corvair design litigation.

Definite evidence that Mr. Nader was financially interested could
be used to counter his attack. :

ROLR OF MISS MURPHY

In a discussion of a proposed investigation of Mr. Nader between
members of the legal staff handling Corvair matters of possible
sources for developing information on Mr. Nuder, Miss Eileen Mur-

hy, a member of the General Motors legal staff who is responsible

'or our law library, stated that she could ascertain from persens in
Washington, whom she knew during the several years that she had
served as law librarian for the Civil Division of the Department of
Justice, a recommendation or recommendations as to who in Wash-
ington might be best qualified to handle such an investigation.
iss Murphy telephoned Mr. Richard Danner of the Washington
firm of Alvord & Alvord on December 22, 1965. She explained that
General Motors was currently the defendant in a substantial number
of law suits alleging injury as the result of the defective design of the
Corvair automobile. She pointed out that Mr, Nader’s book “Unsafe
At Any Speed” had been published on November 30, which not only
" eriticized the Corvair automobile, but characterized it as unsafe.

Mr. Danner was told that I felt it necessary in order to properly
defend the pending law suits, to attempt to find out if Mr. Nader was
associated with litigants or attorneys for litigants in the pending Cor-
vair cases, and if he had any qualifications as a potential expert wit-
ness in these cases. :

Mr. Dunner asked Miss Murphy to get in tonch with him gfter the
Christmas holidays. This conference was delayed, because of Mr.,
Danner’s illness and travel until January 11, 1966. On that date Miss
Murphy met with him in his office in Washington. She gave him
biographical data concerning Mr. Nader and a copy of the (PNeill
report referred to previously. Then she told him that we thought the
investigation should cover the following general areas:

Where does Mr. Nader live and where doos he practice law if he is
practicing? Had he been employed by the Federal Government?
What other employment? Where 1s the source of his income? What
were the details of his background that might affect his writings?
Tspecially does he have any engineering background, since some of
his writings indicate soine tendency to espouse causes, what facts as
to his background and personality might indicate whether his writings
were for the purpose of furthering another canse ?

‘What would account for the absence of objectivity unusual in a law-
yer in writing about the Corvair? Does he have any connection at all
with ATLA or ATLA aitorneys? Are there any indications that he
might be working as a consultant to lawyers handling Corvair cases
against General Motors?

i e e
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ExHIBIT 132
memoerandum to: Chairman Ribiceff,

From: Jerry Sonosky.
gubject: Testimony of A, Power, General Counsel, General Motors,

At page 1041-2 of the March 22 transcript Mr. Power describes what Miss
Murphy told Mr. Danner regarding what General Motors . . . thought the in-
vestigation should cover .. .”. He also pointed out that Miss Murphy gave Mr.
panner the so-called O’Neill report. '

Attached is the last page of a memorandum that was delivered to Mr, Daunner

by Miss Murphy.

—F

While at the Department of Laber he was working on a
Traffic Safety Committes, chaired by John Conner,
Secretary of Commerce. It waa an Interdspartmental
comaittes. HNo npﬁrl: was ilssusd that could be found.
Ye was not listed in the Department of Labor Dirsctory

of Parsonnel.

Daniel P. Moynihen was under Sscratary of Labor while
Mader was supposedly at the Department and is someons
Mader holds in high ssteem and claims to be influenced

by.
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¥or identification, the text of the memorandum is as follows:

While at the Department of T.ebor he was working on a Traffic
Safety Committee, chaired by John Conner, Secretary of Commerce,
It was an interdepartmental committee. No report was issued that
could be found, He waes not listed in the Department of Labor
Directory of Persornnel.

Daniel P, Moynihan was Under Secretary of Labor while Nader
was supposedly at the Department and is someone Nader holds in
high esteem and claims to be influenced by.

Mention the work with Ribicoff Committee—preparing questions
for the hearings July '85 at which YD appeared with J. Rochie.
LR.8, bank checks—connection w/ATLA,

Jerry Sonosky. Cong. Staff Director.

Does he drink—

Lawyers coop—Jim Kelly

He hag nervous habit of sniffing or else he had pneumeonia on the
day of his press conference Jan. 6, 1985, at the Sheraton Cadillac.
He was involved in an auto accident—he claims too inconsequential
to discuss.

INVESTIGATION LASTED SIX WEEKS

At the conclusion of the discussion, Mr. Danner said he could under-
take the assignment. Miss Murphy said she would return to Detroit
and tclephone him following o further discussion with me concerning
a fee arrangement. Miss Murphy thereafter called Mr. Danner on
Junuary 18, 1966, and confirmed the assignment.

Mr. Danner employed Vincent Gillen Associates to do the actual
investigation. On February 14, 1966, Mr. Danner was instructed to
cease any further surveillance. We were informed that this had
already ceased on February 11. On February 28, Mr. Danner was
instructed to end the entire investigation.

Reports received by us from Mr, Danner between approximately
February 9 and March 14, 1966, did not contain any statements detri-
mental to Mr. Nader’s character. There understandably was some
information on unrelated matters which was of little or no value for
the purposes for which the investigation was intended.

However, the reports did indicate that Mr. Nader had no educa-
tional background or work experience in the field of motor vehicle
engineering or technical research, that he did not appear to have the
background to qualify as'an expert witness in Corvair design cases;
and that he was reported to have had very little trial experience as an
attorney.

NADER CONNECTION TO CORVATR CASES

The report further disclosed that, according to Mr. Lambert, editor
for ATLA publications, Mr. Nader had in fact done consulting work
for lawyers who represent litigants in Corvair design cases against
General Motors, such as Mr. David Harney of Los Angeles, counsel for
the plaintiff in both the Pieriné and Colling cases, Mr. B, J. Masterson
of Clearwater, Fla., counsel for the plaintiff in the Anderson case, and
]Z&/_Ir. Louis Davidson of Chicago, counsel for the plaintiff in the Frank-
in case.

Senator Rrnicory. Now, Mr. Power, as a matter of fact, did you ever
determino whether Mr. Nader actually represented any litigants in
any Corvair case?

. Mr. Power. As far as I know, I would say he hasn’t represented any
litigant as such, as an attorney.
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Senator Risicorr. Did you ever discover or find out whether Mr.
Nader had ever solicited any business in the Corvair litigation 1 )

Mr. Power. No. We know that he talked with the attorneys in
these various cases, and here we are being told by the ATLA editor
that he discussed these with the three of them. 1don’t imow.

Senator Risicorr. The only way you know is by hearsay?

Mr. Powsr, That is right, on an investigation.

Senator Rmmrcorr. Did you ever talk to Attorney Harney ¢

Mr. Powgr. No.

Senator Ribrcorr. Did you ever talk to Attorney Masterson ?

Mr. Power. No. ‘ ) i

Senator Rieicorr. Did you ever talk to Attorney Davidson

Mr. Powzg.. No.

Senator Rmsrcorr. So basically you don’t know whether or not Mr.
Nader was a consultant or a cocounsel with any of these men who were
handling Corvair litigation for the plaintiffs?

Mr. Power. No.

Senator Risrcorr. Now,the Muncy case—-

Mr. Power. May I just interject at this point?

Senator Risicorr. Yes, sir. )

Mr. Power. I would not have asked them. From my experience they

‘would never have told us anything. Now, let me point out one thing.

Every one of these attorneys in these Corvair cases that are represent-
ing plaintiffs, where I didn’t know anything about them or other peo-

-ple In the office didn’t, we were able to call other counsel in the areas

like in Los Angeles, like down in Florida, and get complete information
on them, just from what was known generally.

In the case of Mr. Nader, he had no office, we conldn’t get any of the
information. We never knew whether he was in court or not, and that
is what we were trying to find out. He was a mystery man as far as
we were concerned as nlawyer.

: - Senator Risicorr. I would say that Mr. Nader isn’t a mystery man

now, is he? You probably couldn’t find out anything about him be-
cause he was 8 young, obscure lawyer who was—

“. Mr. Power. Thatisright.

Senator Rieicorr {continuing). Doing a job—writing a book—ap-
parently without any extensive practice of law, and, as your investi-

tion disclosed, had been a professor at the University of Hartford
“Tor some time; isn’t that correct ?

Senator Kenwepy. I think in fairness to Mr. Nader we should clear
up the description of him as a mystery man. The fact is, as the chair-
man pointed out, he had just gotten out of law school.

Senator Rmicorr. He was a young man.

Senator Kennepy. He wasn’t any more mysterious than anybody
would be at that age. L

Mr. Powrr. Well, in Martindale-Hubbell he gave his listing as an
attorney, and he gave his address as Winsted, Conn,

Seantor Kenwepy. Yes.

Mr. Power. So we went up there to see if he had an office there and
to talk with him. Ile wasn’t there. )

" Senator Kenwepy. Didn’t his family come from Winsted, Conn.?
. Mr. Powrr. Yes, yes; I am not questioning that. But I have never
In ull my experience, I have never known of a lawyer listed in Martin-




1444 FEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY

dale-Hubbell that didn’t have an office. That is myself. That is my 3

own experience. I was surprised. :

Senator Xenyeoy. I introduce you to-a second one, the subcommit- 3

tea staff director.

Mr. Power. He is listed here because he. is working for the Govern- J
ment. That is different. His office is known, because. of his position, 3

Senator Risrcorr. You have had this investigation made. You ised
what is known by the investigators as the pretext of a preemployment
check to really cover the purpose of what you were trying to find out.
You wanted to find out whether Mr, Nader was connected with Corvair
litigation. In order to find out you used the pretext of checking his
character on the pretext that he supposedly was being checked %or a
job; is that correct ? SRR

" Mr. Power. That is the second phase of the in‘r;'estié'ution.hefe in

‘Washington. That:was not the approach as far as I know in
Connecticut. 2o Lo S
Senator Ripicorr. But yon had
Mr. Power, Iam talking about the investigation by O'Neill.
Senator Risicorr. But you z2lso used the employment pretext when
you hired Mr. Gillen. :
Mr. Power. That is right. -

Senator Rmsrcorr. And he also used the pretext of an employment .

opportunity ; isn’t that correct?
Mr. Power. That is right. '

Senator Risicorr. Now, these reports were constantly coming into j

you, were they not 2

Mr. Power. No. They were coming in—we will get the exact dates, " o

but as my statement reads here, some of them came in on March 9.
But there were many of the reports I had not read.

Senator Risicorr. But somebody on your staff was getting the
reports{

r. Power. Well, yes, They had been reviewed by one or two of

the people on the staff.

Senator Riercorr. Who on the staff?

Mr. Power. Well, Miss Murphy received them, and then some of
the other men, but I don’t know iow many. Any one of them had.
These are men that are on the Corvair cases that weren’t directly
connected with this but they were interested in them.

Senator Rinicorr. But there were a large number of individual
reports, and the index indicates that approximately 50, between 50
and 60 people had been interviewed about Nader; is that eorrect !

Mr. Power. That is right.

SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION

Senator Risrcorr. Now, in the course of questioning, the most in-
timate questions were asked concerning Nader; isn’t that correct? .

Mr. Power. Now, on that I want to first point out that from the
reports that we got and the understanding of the man who was en-
gaged by Royal up in Connecticut, he did not present any questions,
as I understand, slong those lines. Subsequently, when Vincent Gillen
Associates took over the investigation, the point was made by differ-
ent ;})leople that were talked to—“Now, remember thig fellow is not
like his brother and his father,” and then they commented that they
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were anti-Semitic. That is what started some of this. That is where
gome of this was generated. ) _ :
Now, I don’t know what questions were asked along that line or that
this just came up in the course of statements made by people. -
Now, this did not happen in conneetion with the earlier part of the
investigation by Mr, O’Neill. o B
Senator Risrcorr. But they talked to the next door neighbors. Your
investigators talked to the high school principal.
‘Mr. Powgr. Oh, yes; but that still—
Senator Ris1icorr. They talked to friends.
Mr. Power. I am sorry. For the record I want to point out to you
that that was part of the investi%::.tion by Mr, Gillen. =~ '
‘Senator Risicorr. That is right. L
" Mr. Power. That is right. o ‘
I was referring to the O’Neill investigation first, I 'am sorry.

ExHIBIT 138

Memorandum to: Chairman Ribicoff,
Trom: Jerry Sonosky.
Bubject: A. Power’s description of 0'Neill Report.

On page 1049 of the transcript of the March 22 hearing the inference is left that

the initial invesatigation by GM did not include interviews with teachers, neigh-
bofrsi;ebg of the O'Neill report contains the following :
© “Aecording to his teachers he was a very good student and on the honor roll
consistently, He was descrihed hy the baseball coach (Coleman) as a lener.”
* Senator Rieicorr. But I am talking about the all over investigation
of this man. I note you talked to the Fublisher of the newspaper at
Winsted where he was a newspaper delivery boy when he was going
to high school.

Mr. Power. Yes.

- Senator Riercorr. You talked to his associates on the faculty at the
University of Hartford. You tried to get ahold of the tax collector.
You talked to his friends, You talked to his business associates. You
talked to all these people yet the only conversation that the detectives
apparently had that had any association at all with the Corvair was
with this man Lambert, is that right ¢

Mr. Power. Thatisright.

Senator Risicorr. You initiated this extensive investigation. These
reports were coming into General Motors employees. You were sup-
posed to be investigating his qualifications as an expert on Corvair
and his association with attorneys in Corvair litigation.

PLACING NADER UNDER CONSTANT SURYEILLANCE

Now then, on January 17 this committee announced that it was re-
suming its hearings, and that Mr. Nader would be a witness. Then
for the first time you subjected him to continuing surveillance.

Now, why was there a change? Why did you go from a pretext
of an employment investigation, to the type of investigntion that in-
cluded day-by-day and night-by-night surveillance, once it was an-
nounced that he was to be a witness before our committee?

Mr. Powgrr. I want to first get back to—will you read back that
first? You were talking about the only thing that we were getting
in the way of information was in connection with Mr. Lambert’s
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statement. We were also investigating his capability, his expert-
ness or anything along the engineeringﬁine, and that was one of the
things they were going into.

Sure they got statements that didn’t say he was an expert. If he
had gone to MIT or some place and had a great deal of engineering
education, that would be in there, too. But that wasn’t in there be-
canse there weren't facts of that type. But that is what we had to
find out. Oftentimes you make an nvestigation to find out something
specific, and you will end up with o great many statements that don’t
amount to anything for what you want. But 1t is the normal course
of the investigation.

Now, getting on .to.the next.point -you make with:respect to the

period when this happened, as T understand.it, it must have been -

around February 23, as T understand it, I could be wrong, that the
surveillance took place. ‘

Wait a minute. I am sorry, February 4. That began February 4
through February 11, and as a matter of fact when I learned of it,
that was the first T knew of it, I told them to stop it. But they had
already decided to stop it.

Senator Rmrcorr. It started February 4 and he was to appear before
the committee on February 10; isn’t that correct ?

Mr. Power. Yes.

Senator Rieicorr. So a week before he was to appear before the
committee and the day after he appeared before the committee, he
was under constant surveillance. T mean he was followed to deter-
mine where he went, who he associated with, what restaurants he ate
in, what he ate, who he talked with, what time he got home, when he
went to the bank. He was under constant surveillance.

Now, what did that have to do with the litigation on the Corveir?

Mr. Power. As far as I am concerned, nothing.

Senator Risicorr. Then why was he placed under this type of
surveillance ? ‘

Mr. Power. T don’t know. It was considered to be the appropriate
waiy to go by the people who were investigating him.

did not know anything about that at all at the time it happened,
and after I heard about it T told them to discontinue any surveillance.

STURVEILLANCE CONSTITUTED HARASSMENT

Senator Risicorr. Let me ask you this, Mr. Power. Suppose for
no apparent reason you were under constant surveillance for a period
of a few weeks. Kverything about you was checked. Where you

went, whether you were home, whom you associated ¥With, whose auto-

mobite you rode in, what. cab you took—would you consider yourself
harassed, if you were under that type of surveillance for 2 weeks?

Mr. Power. Well, yes. Tt would depend on the extent to which I
was; yes.

Senator Rinrcorr. Would you feel, too, that if you were aware,
without knowing why, that you were being followed around by people
and you didn’t know why, that there was a sense of intimidation
involved ?

Mr. Power. I might have drawn that conclusion. I don’t think it is
a necessary concluston,
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Senator Rmicorr. And would you feel that there would be an im-
ugning of your character if your friends were being asked the most

- Intimate questions about your beliefs, your feelings, your philosophy,

your life, your associations? Do you think that this helps or hurts
a man’s character to have detectives asking these most inthmate
questions?

Mr. Power. Well, I don’t think it is very good. 1 don’t think it is
helpful. :

Spenntor Risrcorr. And yet basically you were the one, the general
counsel of probably the largest corporation in the world, responsible
for putting into motion this type of activity against a young man who
you said you didn’t even know anything about.

Mr. Power. That is right, yes.

Senator Risrcory. And I don’t imagine today looking at it you are
very proud of your activities. . .

Mr. Powrr. No, I am not proud of that particular part of it. I
think one thing must be borne in mind. That this man has written
a book in Whicﬁ he charges that we were sacrificing safety for profits,
and he alleges that the car, the design of the car is unsafe. We have
s few hundred thousand out there, and we certainly wanted to see
what proof he had. We have had this issue litigated in two cases in
court, and it will be litigated in others in the future. And when a

erson puts out a book like that, I have never heard of such a thing.
IIJ wonder how many of you have where somebody has come out with
that type of thing. T am only saying it is unusual, that is all, and
that is why we checked into it. ‘ L

Senator Riercorr, Well, you take books. You know 1t is a very
intercsting thing. A woman by the name of Rachel Carson put out
a book called “Silent Spring.” "Our subcommittee, as a result of the
publication of that book relating to the uses of pesticides and their
effect on the entire environment, held a series of hearings, and the
chemical industry and the Government made some changes.

Our_investigation isn’t finished. Some laws have been passed.
Some legislation is now pending before Congress. All during the
history of this country men and women write books and articles on
products. T have read magazine articles and newspaper articles about
various phases of this problem—various abilities or lack of safety
of automobiles.

Do you investigate everybody who writes an article about a (General
Motors car? )

" Mr, Power. No. We don’t find many people doing it on the scale
that this was done, and we don’t find anybody writing where they
aro saying that it is unsafe and inherently improper and unsafe design.
hat 15 a pretty serious charge.
enator Risicorr. Well, it is. .

Mr. Power. But if someone else writes an article on that, we will
check into that one, too. Now, we have got the question of whether
or not we are going to stand for disparagement of a product where
our own people, engineers have advised us that it isn’t unsafe, and
they have testified in two cases already in court and a jury has accepted
their testimony. . .

Senator Risicorr. Couldn’t you write a book or an article saying
that the Corvair was safe?

r. Power. Well, I know it is
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BASIC ISSUE RAISED BY INVESTICATION

Senator Rinrcorr. Basically you are confronted with an issue heve.
You have the issue of freedom of speech. You have a complicated
society we live in, with many esoteric complicated roblems, that are
beyond the knowledge of the avernge individual. Suddenly one man
devotes a lot of time and energy to study a product. Fle comes up
with the conclusion that this is a defective product or this is a bad
{)roduct. He may be right or he may be wrong. If he is wrong and

ibels you, you can sue him.

Mr. Power. That is right.

Senator Rimicorr. If you think he is wrong, you can refute him.
But the fact remains that in this country 50,000 people are killed every
year by automobiles. The fact remains that four and a half million
people are injured by automobiles. The fact remains that $814 billion
are lost in property damage every year because of automobile accidents.

The fact remains that up until the present time there was a seeming
indifference on the part of the automobile industry concerning the role
of the automobile. The emphasis had been on the driver. The em-
phasis had been on the road. And suddenly these hearings that this
committee has been conducting eall into focus the element of what is
know as a second collision. It was sort of an esoteric phrase. Most
people didn’t know and still don’t know what you are talking about.
But we have finally been able to focus the problem that the automobile
has a role to play in trying to save the lives of the people of this
country.

I would say that since our hearings started just a year ago today,
your company, and I commend you for it, has taken the lead to try
tofcorrect some of the defects in automobiles to try to make automobiles
safer.

Now, & man by the name of Ralph Nader, or that could be Tom
Jones or Bill Brown or Dick Smith comes before a committee of
Congress and says that he has some information about basic defects
of automobiles. ITe may be right, he may be wrong, but the commit-
tee’s staff looked over hig material and they felt that here was a man
with something to say.

People appear before congressional committees all the time. They
are subject to examination and cross-examination. Whoever wants to
answer does have a right to answer. This committes always affords
equal time to anyone who wants to reply. But in a society as complex
as ours, certainly a man with a story to tell, a man with a complaint,
a man cartying a banner, a man leading a crusade, a man who feels that
there is a wrong in our society that he would like to correct, shouldn’t
that man have the opportunity to come in open session in front of the
press and TV and radio, before Members of Congress, before any
spectators who want to be able to come, to be able to tell his story
without being followed around, withont having his life delved into,
without wonﬁering where he lives and who he lives with and what
bank he goes to and where he eats and what he eats and what he be-
lieves in and what his political philosophy is, what his sex life is, what
grades he got in high school, what grades he got in Princeton, what
grades he got at Harvard? Shouldn’t a person be able to come 1n and
tell his story without having the largest corporation in America hire
a series of detectives to follow him around day and night? This to me
is as important as any issue we have had {;efore us, and this is a
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uestion of where do we stand in America today and what does
reedom mean? What does freedom of speech mean and freedom of
expression and the opportunity to tell your story no matter what that
story is, in front of a committee of Congress?
M{-, Power. Well, he certainly should have the rlght
Senator Rinicorr. Now, I say this. There aren many people who
would have the courage to stand up. Most people are timid. There
are many people with a story to tell, who are reluctant to tell that
story, if they feel in the process of telling that story that their whole
life and their background will be gone into. ]
Now one other question. Let us assume that you found something

-wrong with his sex life, What would that have to do with whether

or not he was right or wrong on the Corvair?
Mr., Powen, Not thin g )
Senator Rimcorr. What if you found out he was or was not anti-
Semitic. What would that have to do——
Mr. Power. Nothing, _
Senator Rinrcorr (continuing). With whether the Corvalr was a.

.good or a bad car?
+~ Mr. Power. Not a thing,

Senator Rinicorr. What difference would that make whether he
had steak or chicken for lunch, whether the Corvair was a good or a

‘bad car?

Mr, Powzr. Nothing.
RIBICGOFF AFFIRMS NADER CHARACTER

Senator Ripicorr. And what would it have to do with whether he got,

:B’s or A’s in high school or whether the Corvair was a safe or an

unsafe car?

Mr. Powrr. Nothing at all.

Senator RIBICOFF. \%fell, I think this is the issne that we have before
us, Mr, Power, and it is not a C{)wtty one. And also I do believe Mr.
Roche when he said he depended upon gou or someone else to issue
this news release about why Nader was being followed. There is no
question, as Senator Kennedy has pointed out, that the entire news
release indicates that Mr. Nader was being investigated to determine
his connection with litigants and law firms having to do with the Cor-
vair litigation and his qualifications, background, and association with
such attorneys. .

Practically the entire investigation had absolutely nothing to do
with this, but was an attempt to downgrade and smear a man. And
may I say to you, Mr. Nader, that I have read these reports very care-
fully, and you and your family can be proud, because they put you
through the mill, and they haven’t found a damn thing out against you.

POWER’S INTERPRETATION OF MARCH 9 STATEMENT

Senator Kennedy ¢ )
enator Kenneoy. Mr. Power, did you agree with the statement of
I. Roche ?
Mr. Powrr. Yes. _ .
enator Kennepy. I gathor, then, that you join in apologizing to
I. Nader?
r. Power. That is right.
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Senator Kenxepy., When this statement was put out on March 9,
Mr. Power, were you aware of the fact that this statement was going
to be put out?

Mr. Power. They were working on the statement in Detroit, and I
was out of town. I believe I was in New York, and they found me
and Mr. Bridenstine, I think, was the one who found me and read the
statcment to we. I know that as far as I was concerned, I told him
that it sounded all right to me, and whether that was the final way it
went out, [ don’t know, DBut, substantially it must have been.

Senator Kenwepy. Evidently, when they stated that the investiga-
tion, and I quote, “was limited only to Mr. Nader’s qualifications, back-
ground, expertise, and association with such attorneys.” Didn’t you
say to Mr. Roche, “That is not true”?

Mr. Power. Did Isay that?

Senator KeNNEDY., Yes,

Mr. Powzr. No.

Senator KenNepy. It wasn't true, wasit?

Mr. Power. What do you mean ; it wasn’t true?

Senator Kenneny, Well, the investigation in fact went beyond that.

Mr. Power, Well, I know, but I didn’t know all about the investi-
gation then. We didn’t get some of the reports even until after that,
and some of the things, I hadn’t seen a good many of these.

Senator KEnwEDY. l\zfow, Mr. Power, didn’t you just testify before
the committee that you ordered the end of the surveillance ?

Mr. Power. Yes.

Senator Kenxepy, Then you knew of the surveillance, Mr. Power.

Mr, Power. I was told by one of the people in our office, and I said,
“Call them up and tell them to stop the surveillance.”

lSena.tor NNEDY. Then you knew the surveillance was taking

ace.

P Mr. Power. I knew it had taken place, but wait just a moment. I
am not sure whether that was the night or not. I had told them to
stop the surveillance.
enator XenNw¥eEDY. Then you knew the surveillance was taking
lace.
P Mr. Power. All right.

Senator Kexxepy: It is not all right. I am just asking you.

Mr. Powrr. I know. What I want to tell you is that I am around.
I was in New York, Detroit, and working on a great many matters,
and I had, as a matter of fact, at about that tirne the settlement of an
antitrust bus case and instructions that I had to put out, question-
naires to all our people, and I wasn’t sitting down handling this
matter.

I would g{et a report on it. Somebody would just come in, might
come in and tell me. That is when I heard about the surveillance.
I just said, “Stop it, right away.”

Senator KeNnepy. I understand. So you knew the surveillanco
was taking place.

Mr. Powen. Yes.

Senator BEenwepy. And then when this statement was put out on
March 9, which was sometime after you learned of the surveillance,
the statement said, “The investigation was limited only to Mr. Nader’s
qualiﬁcutions; background, expertise, and association with such attor-

neys.” Didn’t you say to Mr. Roche, “We can’t say that is correct,
that will be misleading, that will be false” ¢
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Mr. Powzr. No, I didn’t. T didn’t talk to Mr. Roche. T talked to
Mz, Bridenstine. I didn’t think it was

Senator Krxxrpy. Did you say it to Mr. Bridenstine?

Mr. Powen. No,

Senator Kennepx, You didn’t say, “We don’t want to put out a
false statement”?

Mr. Pownr. I don’t consider that false.

Senator Kenxepy. It is not accurate, is it?

Mr. Powgr. In what respect? ) ) o i

Senator Kenxepy. Well, was it a limited investigation? Wasn't
it complete, thorough, and the kind of investigation that was described
by Mr. Roche before this committee and described by the chairman?

Mr. Power. Not as far as I knew at that time. I didn’t know all
that detail, )

Senator KexNepy. Mr. Power, you just testified before the com-
mittee you knew about the fact that there was a surveillance.

Mr. Power. That is right. )

Senator Kenwepy. Then it was more than this.

Mr, Power. Wait a moment. o

Senator Kennepy. It was not a limited investigation.

Mr. Power. Wait a moment. Remember that in surveillance they
were trying to find out whether or not he had any assoctation with
any of these lawyers, and who he dealt with and what the business
was. That is part of it. Now ask the investigating agency about
that. That is the reason that was being done. )

Senator Kenxeny. I understand. I have looked at their statcment.
I don't think that is the question. The question was this; in your
answer to the chairman of the committee, and in your answer to me,
you said that you thought it was Wroni;('. You agree with Mr. Roche’s
statement, and yet even though you knew there was a surveillance
going on, that a surveillance had been conducted, you evidently gave
approval to putting out a statement that said, he investigation was
limited only to Mr. Nader’s qualifications, background, expertise, and
association with such attorneys.” In fact the Investigation went far
beyond that. i .

Mr. Power. You are talking now specifically on the surveillance?

Senator KenxNepy. I am using that as one axa.mi)lle. ) .

Mr, Power. All right. Let me point out to you that I didn’t like the
idea of the surveillance.

Senator Kennepy, I—— .

Mr. Power. Justa moment; let me finish. )

Senator Kenneoy. But I think it would be well if you answered the
question. )

Mr. Power. I am answering the question.

Senator Kenwepy. It will behelpful. .

Mr. Powsr, I didn’t like the surveillance. But that is 2 matter of
jadgment as to whether or not you want to do that in connection with
trying to get that information. Now I would say don’t do it, but some-
one else could very well, end it is a regular practice— .

Senator KENNEDY, Mr. Power, I’'m not even raising the goestion
about that. We have already passed on that. You answered those
questions of the chairman.

Mr. Power. Allright.
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Senator Kenweny. You said you thought it was wrong. What I
aun Taising is the question about when the statement was put out on
March 9. You knew something wrong had taken place. Yet you
put a statement out which was misleading, to be charitable about it.

Mr. Powrr. Well, I am sorry.

Senator KennNepy. Why di?lv you give approval of it.?

Mr. Power. I am sorry I don’t interpret that statement as being
misleading.

Senator Kenweny, Mr. Roche said he felt it was misleading,

Mr. Powrr, Well, I don’t.

Senator Kenwrpy. You say the investigation was limited only to
Mr, Nader’s qualifications, background, expertise, and association with
such attorneys? Wasitin fact so limited ¢

Mr. Power. As far as I knew at that time it was.

Senator Kennepy. Was there a surveillance conducted ?

Mr. Power. Yes.

Senator Kennepy. Doyouthink that that is a limited investigation?

Mr. Powrr. Yes. -

Senator Kennepy. You think that is a limited investigation?

Mr. Power. In some cases it is.

Senator Kexwepy. Did you think that was a limited investigation?

Mr, Power. I didn’t like the idea of it.

Senator Kenneoy. Then, it was not a limited investigation.

Mr. Powzr. No,no, that isn’tthe point at all. '

Senator Ken¥roy. Why did you put an end to it if it was satisfac-
tory.

Mr. Powrr. Would you say that the FBI never puts anybody under
surveillance ? ‘

Senator KxnwepY. T am noteven getting into that,

Mr. Power. I am because I am trying to point out to you——

Senator Kenwepy. Mr. Power, I am just picking up from your
answer tothe chairman,

Mr. Powzr. Yes.

Senator Kenneoy. You stated yoir thought there was a mistake
made. Now, if we want to go bu.cl)cr into the question of surveillance,
I will be glad to go hack into that, but I thought you disposed of
that—— : :

Mr. Powrr, I said—— C :

Senator Kx¥NEDY. Wait a moment, that you thought there was a
mistake made and when you heard about it you ended it. Then you
approved of a statement a month later which stated that the investi-
gation was limited, and that statement was sent. to the chairman of
this committee, was sent to members of the committee, it was sent to
the press and put out to the public, and it was misleaéing and false.

Mr. Power. Well, I still think that statement is correct. You arc
saying it is false. '

Senator Kennepy. You don’t think that—you think that the in-
vestigation was limited. '

Mr. Powzr. Yes, I do.

Senator Kenwepy. Do you think conducting the surveillance, even
though you thought the surveillance was wrong was part of a limited
investigation %

Mr. Power. Inmany cases, it is, yes.
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ROCITE AND I'OWER DISAGRER

Senaétor Kexneny. Then you don’t agree with the testimony of Mr.
Roche!

M’r. Powzr. Well, T don't, if that is what he intended to convey, I
don’t.

Senator I{mNwepy. That is what he intended to convey. That is
what he answered.

Mr, Powzr. All right, I am just saying that if he did, I don’t agree
with him,

Senator Kennepy. What about this other—

The office of its General Counsel initiated n routine investigation through a
reputable law firm to determine whether Ralph Nader was acting on behalf of
litigants or tbeir attorneys in the Corvair design eases pending against General
Motors.

Whasn't it a fact that the investigation went far beyond that?

Mr. Power. Asit turned out, it did.

Senator Kenneny. You gave approval of the statement.

Mr. Power. Yes; and I wags looking at it from just the way I felt
when the investigation was started, I spoke to our man and suggested
he call the Royal Indemnity Co. and see if he had anybody that they
could use up in Connecticut to check into this.

Senator Kennepy. Wait a moment.

My, Power. Now wait just a minute until I finish. This was in m
opinion an inquiry at that stage of the game. There was no surveil-
Iance or nothing else, and there were no questions asked by that man,
as I understand it, about sex or anything else in that investigation.
Subsequently, when Vincent Gillen Associates, conducted the investi-
gation, statements came from people that were talked to, “Now don’t
gﬁt him mixed up in this thing or that thing.” That is the way
that ran. '

. Now, I am only saying to you that when Mr, O’Neill initiated the
mvestigation, at that time it was to me a routine inquiry. ‘

Senator Kenneoy. Wait a moment. You mean that was in
November?

Mr. Powsr. Iknow that.

Senator Kexnepy. Allright, Then, later on you—

Mr. Power, Yes, later on it went the other way.

Senator Krnweny. It went what way ?

Mr. Power. Well, with the surveillance and the rest.

POWER CONCEDES MARCH 9 STATEMENT WAS NOT CLEAR

Senator Kexwneoy. That is what we are talking about. This state-
ment that you put out was.on March 9, 1966. We are not talking just
about the investigation that was made in November. We are talking
about the investigation that was made in January and February.

Mr. Powrr, Maybe we should have added after the words, “initiated
& routine investigation, which developed into an intensive investiga-
tion.” That would be about it.

Senator Kenvepy., Let me just see as a period of time, how long

1d the routine investigation go on

Mr. Poweg. That wason about § or 6 days, I think.
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Senator Kenneny. How long was the intensive investigation ?

Mr. Powzr., Thatbegan from January 17 until February 28.

Senator InnNery. Do you think when & question is raised regarding
the inveatigation of Mr. Nader and you have a preliminary investiga-
tion made for 5 days, and you have another investigation that goes
on for 6 weeks, then to put a staternent out by General Motors that
just covers the 5-day investigation, that this is misleading to the Con-
gress of the United States and the American public?

Mr. Power. I am sorry if anyone was misled on it. Now I just
passed on that cne over the telephone.

Senator Kenvepy, Wasn’t it quite important?

Mr. Powzr. All right, sure it was important, but you can get some
of these things, and 1n looking at it, in the atmosphere X was looking
at it, it sounded all right to me. Now I would change it today.

Senator Kenweony. It is misleading.

Mr. Power. Well,if it isto you

Senator Kexnepy. Would you agree that that statement was mis-
leading that you put out March 9?

Mr. Powsr. I would rather put it that it wasn’t clear.

BRIDENSTINE’S ROLE

Senator Krnneoy. Did Mr. Bridenstine suggest that you put it
that way? Mr. Bridenstine, would you like to testify before the com-
mittee? Do you have something to add? Can I ask him some ques-
tions? Did yousuggest that he put “not clear.”

Mr. BripensTine. No, sir, not at all, You mean just now, just
mentioned it to him?

Senator Kenxeny. No.

Mr. BrioENSTINE. Absolutely no, Senator,

Senator Kenwepy. Would you want to have a seat ?

Mr. Bamwensrine. I will be glad to.

Senator Kennepy. Did you talk to Mr. Bridenstine over the tele-
phone about the statement ?

Mr. Power. I think he is the one X talked to. Is that correct?

Mr. BrionnsTINE. Y es, I spoke to you, Mr, Power.

Senator Kennepy. Who drew up the statement Mr. Bridenstine?
Could I ask Mr. Bridenstine who drew up the statement ?

Mr. Bripexs1INE. I will assume responsibility for drawing up the
statement, based on my discussions with the people in the office whe
\évere working on the Corvair, and who knew about the investigation,

enator.

Senator Kexneny, Did you know about the fact that there had
been the surveillance in these reports?

Mr. Brroenstine. Intalking to the men——

Senator Rinicorr. May I say will you please for the purpose of
the record, state your name and your position with Gteneral Motors
for the purpose of the press?

Mr. Bripensring. Louis H. Bridenstine.

Senator Rintcorr. Spell your name.

Mr. BripeNsTINE. B-r-i-d-e-n-s-t-i-n-e. I am Mr. Power’s assistant,
assistant general counsel.
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Senator Xewneoy. Fivst let me ask you do you agree with Mr,
Roche’s statement and apologies to Mr. Nader?

Mr. Brinenstinge. Wholeheartedly, Senator.

Senator Kexnepy. Do you agree with it ?

Mr. Bripenstine, Wholeheartedly.

Senator Kennepy. And apologies in connection with it ?

Mr. BripensmiNe. Apologies to this committee, to the Senate, to
Mr. Nader.

Senator Kunwepy. Let me ask you then when the statement of
March 9 was being drawn up, were yon aware of the fact that the
investigation had gone beyond the question of routine investigation ¢

Mr. BripexsTiNE. I knew only what was in the report, in looking
at the copies that had come in. o

Senator Ken~epy. That indicated, did it not, that there had been
a surveillance? )

Mr. Brupenstine. I knew that there was a surveillance because there
was an indication that there had been a surveillance ; yes, sir.

Senator KeNxeny. If you could just answer the question. You are
both lawyers. Just say yes or no.

Mr. BRIDENSTINE. Yes. _

Senator Kexnepy., You knew it#

Mr. BripeNsTINE. Yes, I knew it.

REPORTS ON NADER'’S SEX LIFE

Senator Kenneoy. And then did you know that they had inquired
into Mr. Nader’s sex life?

Mr. Broexsrine. No; I did not. i

Senator Kenxeoy. Did you know that, sir?

Mr. Power. No.

Senator Kenwepy. Did you read the reports?

" Mr. BRIDENSTINE. Yes,sir. )

Senator KenNepY. But you didn’t see anything about that?

Mr. Brmexstine. I didn’t know anything about the questions. I
read the report. I still don’t know what they asked.

Senator Ken~Epy. Let me rephrase it. Do you know there had
been things in the reports regarding Mr. Nader’s sex life?

Mr. BroexstiNe. The only thing I read in the report was good
about Mr. Nader. o

Senator Kennepy. Now, now, now, now, I am not questioning that
Mr. Nader’s sex life wasn’t good. Can we start again then. [Laugh-
ter.

N}Ir. BripewsTing, Gorightahead,sir. )

Senator Kenneoy. Did you see anything in the report regarding
Mr. Nader's sex life? Now you remember that?

Mr. Brupenstine. | saw statements that Mr. Nader was manly. Is
that what you have in mind, sir?

Senator KenNeoy., Well, let me just say—you know what L am talk-
ing about and you know what we are driving at. Did you find any-
thing in the report that indicated anything abont his sex life or the
fact that ho was normal or sbnormal? Did you answer questions like
that to Mr. Roche of the General Motors Co. ¥

Mr. BripeENsTINE. Senator, I don’t—

40-959—686—pt. §———8




1456 FEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY

Senator Kennepy. Let’s get along with it.  You know it was in the

re]f\ort.

{r. BripexsTINE. I don’t want to be facetions but Mr. Roche doesn’t
ask me these kinds of questions either.

Senator Kenweny, It might have helped General Motors if he had?

Mr. BripENSTINE, Yes.

Senator Kenneny. You know what Iam talking about now. There
were things in the report, were there not, that were other than inquir-
ing into his relationship with Corvair.

Mr. BripiNsTINE. There are other matters reported; yes, sir.

Senator KeNNEDY. This information was available to you when you
were drawing up the statement. '

Mr. BRmeENsTINE. Yes, sir. ‘

Senator KenNepy. Winy did you then put that it was a routine in-
vestigation initiated through a reputable law firm “to determine
whether Mr, Nader was acting on behalf of litigants or their attorneys
on Corvair” and later on say “it was a limited investigation.” -

Mr. BemensTine. That was the purpose of it, sir. E

2Senntor Kzxnepy, But that in fact was not the investigation, was

Mr. BripENsTiNE. Yes, sir; that was the purpose of the investigation.

Senator Ken~epy. I understand maybe youn say that was the pur-
pose, but the fact is the investigation went far beyond that; did it not ?

Mr. Bripexsmine. The investigation included matters other than
this; yes, sir. _
: PREPARATION OF MARCIH 9 STATEMENT

Senator KenNepy. Then why didn’t you inform the Senate of the
United States and the American public that the investigation went in
fact far beyond this, , .

Mr. BripexsTine. I will have to give yon the background, Senator,
if I may. I was called over and Mr. Roche said, ‘“There is an investi-
gation going on.” I said, “I heard it myself. I will check into it
immediately.” Now I wanted to find out the purpose of the investi-
gation, and this, of course, was the purpose. :

Senator KennNepy. Wait a minite. What investigation are you
talking about. ‘ ' ' ‘
Nhgr. BripensTiNe. I am talking about the investigation of Mr.

ader. o

Senator Kennepy. You mean your investigation of Mr. Nader?

Mr. BripEnsTiNE. Yes, sir. '
bSenat,or Kenweny, And then what date is this that you are talking’
about. ' :

Mr. BrioensTine, This is the 9th. B

Senator KENNEDY. But you already knew about the investigation,
did you not?

Ar. BrioensTINE. I knew an investigation was going on; but I
hadn’t followed it all, sir.

Senator Kenweny. You were aware then?

Mcr. BripexsTINg. It was in the office ; yes, sir.

Senator Kexnwepy, And you had seen some of the reports.

Mr. BripeNsTiNE. Isaw the reports that day. Went through them,

Senator KEnNepy. You had not before th’atg'

G a3 e T
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Mr. BrupeNsTINE. I may have looked at one earlier if it crossed my
desk. Idon’trecall,sir.

Senator Kexwepy. If you will just be completely candid as Mr.
Roche was before the committee, if you will just be completely candid
with us, then we can move along.

Mr. BripEnNsTINE. Fine, sir.

Senator Kennepy. Idon’t want to prolong this.

Mr. Brioewstive. All right, sir,

Senator Kexneny. The %nct is you didn’t just learn about that in-
vestigation. At thot moment you knew the investigation was going
on.
Mr. Bripengmine, That is correct.

Senator Kxxxepy. You read a number of reports and you were
called in to report further on it.

Mr. BripExsTive. That is right, sir, I was called in and asked about
it by Mr. Roche. I checked with the People in the office, and I said,
“Here, Mr. Roche, is what hap%ened.’ ‘We had initiated, the office
had initiated an investigation. It was for the purpose of ﬁnding out
Ralph Nader’s association, the primary purpose, with the Corvair de-
sign cases, if he were associated with them. . :

‘And what did: the investigation cover #” I inquired. “It covered
his qualifications and oovere%ri his background, it covered his educa-
tion, his expertise, and his association with these lawyers.” - And I
wrote the words just that way, sir. They said, “What about these
alleged harassment thinﬁs that are appearing in the newspaper?” So
I inquired then, although I had read some myself in the Detroit papers,
about them, and went through every one. I had our people call Mr.
Danner, to find out if any of this was involved, and they said no, on
the newspaper reports, and that is why I to]d‘Mr.‘ ‘Roche that this is
not true, : ' e .

BRIDENSTINE AND ROCHE DISCUSSED BURVEILLANCE

Senator Kenxzpy. Did you tell him there hadn’t been any sur-
veillance? . i

Mr. BrmexsmiNe. No, sir; Idid not. : '

" Senator Kexyepy. Did you tell him there had been a surveillance?

Mr. BrmoexstIiNe., I don’t know if he had asked. If he had asked I
would have told him. S ‘ R

Senator Kexnxeny. Did you discussthe surveillance ?

Mr. BrmEnsTINE. Yes; we did discuss the surveillance now that you
mention it, because the surveillance was mentioned:in Philadelphia and
I believe In the Senate Office Buildings in the articles in the news-
papers. - S S i

Eenator Kexneny. Why didn’t you put that in the statement?

Mr. BripExsTiNe. Because, sir, I didn’ consider that that was the
harassment that Mr. Nader had been complaining about in the news-
paper, and I really don’t know——

genator' Kennepy. Let me ask you, wasn’t it in the newspaper re-
1:n1)rll;s,p didn’t they cover the fact that he was being followed continu-
ously ?

r. BRIDENSTINE. Yes; but that was not the harassment he com-
plained about. The harassment was these other items.
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Senator Kexwepy. Your colleague just sat there 10 minutes ago
and answered the chairman’s question and said that he would consider
that harassment.

Mr. Power. Wait just one moment. Pardon me now. Wait just
one moment. He has mentioned the following—where did you say
were those two places?

Mr. Bripenstine. I mentioned the newspaper articles I saw.

Mr. Power. He is talking about some newspaper articles, Now
what were those two locations?

Mr. BripENsTINE. I think there were three.

Senator KENNEDY. Any of the incidents of harassment mentioned
by him in newspaper stories, such incidents were in no way associated
with General Motors’ legitimate investigation of its interest in pending
litigation? '

Mr. Power. What were you referring to? :

Mr. Bripenstive. I was referring to the newspaper articles, Sena-
FO? about harassment on a plane from Philadelphia, about harassment
in Town.

Senator Kennepy. Did the newspaper articles include harassment at
the time of surveillance ?

}11\111::'.E Brmenstine. I beg your pardon, sir, did it include harassment
what?

Senator KenNepny, By surveillance ?

WAS THE SURVEILLANCE HARRASSMENT?

Mr. BripENsTINE, Is surveillance harassment, sir? I knew about
one item in 8 newspaper article on surveillance.

Senator Kenveny. But did it say

Mr. BripensTINE, That I tied in, and that was in the Senate Office
Building here on the day after his appearance. That, I knew about.

Senator Kenneoy. Did I understand it that you met in General
Motors and decided surveillance was not harassment and that is why
you didn’t include it ?

Mr. Brmexstine. I didn’t include surveillance as harassment.
There was no surveillance mentioned in any paper, sir, except the sur-
veillance in the Senate Office Building the day after the hearing, and
that, I believe, was surveillance by our investigators. There was no
surveillance—this is what I was checking out calling them—no sur-
veillance at all in the newspaper article about a flight from Philadel-
phia, no surveillance at. all in Towa. These were the articles in the
pager that I was limited to.

senator Kenweny, Isn’t it a fact that it mentioned the fact that
there had been surveillance in these newspaper articles, and in the
other articles that had been written at that time? ‘

Mr. BripexsTiNg. The surveillance in the Senate Office Building
and the surveillance in Philadelphia and the other one,

Senator Kenneoy. Why did you say there hadn’t been any acts of
harassment

Mr. BRIpENSTINE. Any what, sir?

Senator KEnNeny. Any acts of harassment.

Mr. Briognsrine. I didn’t consider it harassment, sir,
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Senator Kennupy. Your associate over there just answered the ques-
tions of the ehairman, that he considered those kinds of activities
harassment.

Mr. Powrer. T said that I didn’t like them and I ordered them
stopped.

Senator Xenxepy. Then you considered them, in answer to the
chairman, the fact that they were harassment.

Mr. Powrr. Tome.

Senator Kexnepy. Weren’t you talking to one another ?

Mr. Power. No.

Senator Kexnneoy, You weren’t?

Mr. Bripensrine. Senator, frankly, if my understanding of harass-
ment is different than yours—— - _

Senator Kenxeoy. No, it ig not a question of mind. I reached the
conclusion, let me say, in listening to the testimony of you hoth, that
it wasn’t really an effort to be frank, candid, or honest with the public
when you put the statement out on March 9.

I will read you three statements:

Genera)l Motors said todey that following the publication ¢f Mr, Ralph Nadér's
criticisms of the Cotvair in writings and public appeardnces in suppert of his
book, “Unsefe at Any Speed,” the office of General Counsel Initlated a routlne
investigation through a reputable law firm to. detérmiine whether Ralph Nader
was acting on behalf of litigants in Corvair design ¢asds pending against General
Motors.

T think we have established quite clearly this was not a routine in-
vestigation in connection with the litigants or attorneys for Corvair,
but, went far beyond that, isn’t that correct? . ‘

Mr. BripENSTINE. Sir, it has been established it did go beyond that,
but it was initiated on that basis. R _

Senator Kexveny. Yes, but my point is, and I think in fairness to
the committee and in fairness to the Congress and in fairness to the
generul public, those facts should be clarified, and that you should
have given all the facts in connection with that. " Don’t you agree?

Mr. BrupexnsTiNg. Well, sir, if you are called in to make a statement,
to work a statement up and get it out as fast as you can, and to say that
you will cooperate, you put In the statement everything you can.  You
don’t write an indictment on it, if you are in this thing trying to
explain it.

ok, anybody would be entitled to a bill of particulars, to find out
the charges. I was working from newspaper reports. I was working
from the fact that we had started an investigation and I knew about
it, sir. And I wanted to make a statement for Mr. Roche, which was
not misrepresentation, and I am sorry it is construed as such. It was
certainly not intended as such. . .

Senator Kexwepy. I don’t see even how you could say it wasn’t in-
tended as such when you knew, both of you knew there was surveil-
lance. You had these reports and I have got the date of them. The
reports were sent to you February 7, February 11, February 18, Feb-
ruary 28, and March 4. .

Mr. BrRIipENSTINE. Yes, Sir. )

Senator Kenneoy. Detailed reports on what was happening.

Mr, BRIDENSTINE, Y es, Sir. s

Senator KEnnEpY. Your statement was not put out until March 9.

Mr. BrioensTiNe. That is right, sir.
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BRIDENSTINIE ADMITS BLATEMENT WAS NOT CORRECT

Senator KennNeoy. This is not o correct account of what the facts
were. You also say in here, ¢ ‘the investigation was limited.” That is
the word, that is not my wording, that is your wording, ‘only to Mr.
Nader’s q’ua]iﬁca.t:ions, backgroun%, expertise, and association with such
attorney,’ ”

Mr. BYRIDENSTINE. That is what it was intended for, sir.

Senator Kenwepy. But that is not what you said. You don't say
the investigation was “intended.” You state categorically that it was
limited, that it was a limited investigation. And, certainly anybody
reading that statement would arrive at the conclusion that it was in
fact limited and didn’t go into all of these other matters that had been
reported in the press. Wouldn’t you agree that that was misleading?

Mr. BrmeNsTINE. It certainly can be construed as that, sir, and if
it will help us any, I will agree that it was misleading, but I will say it
wasn’t intended as such.

Senator KeNNEDY. And-—

It did not inctude any of the alleged barassment or Intimidation recently re-
ported in the press. If Mr. Nader hag been subjected any of the incidents of
harassment mentioned by him in newspaper stories—and that included being
followed into the Senate of the United States—8uch incidents were in no way
associated with General Motors’ legitimate investigation of its interest in pend-
ing litigation.

Is that a true or false statement?

Mr. BripensTiNe. Read that way, sir, that is not correct. This state-
ment is not correet, read the way you read it.

Senator Kennepy. The point I amn making is I think that your com-
pany has a special responsibility.

Mr. Bripenerine. 1 am sure we do.

Senator KXenweoy. In being candid and accurate, and if it hadn’t
been for the fact that the chairman had ealled these hearings, as I sad
to Mr. Roche, and T think both of you gentlemen have to take the
responstbility on this matter, if it hadn’t been for the chairman call-
ing these hearings and the facts actually being revealed and developed,
then that statement would have stood. Because it was put in the
Congressional Record and it would have misled the Congress of the
TUnited States and it would have misled the American people.

IN RE SAWYER CITATION

Let me just give you one other small example. T mean reading your
statement, you quote from In re Sawyer. Have either one of yon
read that?

Mr. BripensTiNe. I have, sir. :

Senator Kennepy. What was the finding /n 7e Sawyer? What did
thev do in that case?

Mr. BrioexsTINg. In re Sawyer, am I correct in saying, sir, it was
a civil liberties case in Hawaii?

Senator Kenwepy. Well, let me just say

Mr. Broenstive. I can get the ease. I think I have a copy of it
here, sir.

Senator Ken~nwpy. I have it right here, but I want to just read this.

Mr. Brioenstine. Was that a Smith Act case?
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Senator KenNEDY. /7 7¢ Sawyer, on page 8, and it was used in both
Mr. Roche’s testimony and Mr. Power's testimony.

They say:

Ag the Supreme Court has so aptly put it, it is impermissible ta litigate by
day and castigate by night, .

I don’t disagree with the statement, but is that in fact a statement
from the Supreme Court’s opinion in that case?

Mr. BriensTing. I have it here with me, sir. I think that is the
court of appeals in California.

Senator Kennvepy. What happened to the case when it came to the
Supreme Court?

Mr. BroensTine. May I get the case out, sir.  You are asking me.
May I get it?

Senator Kenwepy. I have it right here. Shall I tell you what
happened

r. BRrIDENSTINE. Yes, please do.

Senator Knnwepy. It was overruled.

Mr. Power. Was that the issue that it was appealed on?

Senator Kexyepny. No, but——

Mr. Power. Was that the issue before the Supreme Court?

Senator Kennepy. Let me just read what you quoted, what you
quoted, Mr. Power.

Mr, Powkr. Yes.

Senator Kennepy. You quoted to the committee,

Mr. Power. Yes.

Senator Kenxepy. This is what you said before this committee.
Yousaid:

As the Supreme Court has =o aptly put i, it is impermissible to litigate by
day and cagtigate by night,

The Supreme Court said:
But it is said—
And I read from page 635—

The verbalization is that it is impermisasible to litigate by day and castigate
by night, See 260 F. 2d at 202.

This line seems ceutral to the Bar Association’s argument as it appears to
have been to the reasoning of the court below and the dissent here is much
informed by it, but to us it seems totally to ignore the charges made and the

findings.
That is all, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Rinrcorr. Senator Harris,

RRIDENSTINE'S XNOWLEDGE OF REPORTS

. Senator Harris. As I understand it, gentlemen, you started receiv-
ing these reports, the first one, I believe, is dated January 13, 1966.
;‘gh%n did they commence to be received at General Motors and by

u?

Mr. BripenstiNe, Which report are you talking about, sir?
. Senator Harris, When did you first Teceive reports from the inves-
tigating agency here in Washington?

r. BripensTing, February 7.
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Mr. Power, Areyon talking Washington now ?

Senator Harrts, Yes,

My. BripeNsrine. February 7. Youmentioned January 13, sir. Did
you mean January 317

Senator ITarris. January 13. Here on the investigation it says on
this report, “January 13, 1966 through January 31, 1966.”

This is one report.

Mr. BripenstiNg, The date of the report that I have in front of me
is 1-31 so I thought it was a transposition.

Senator Harrie. Dated January 31, 1966.

Mr. BRioensrine. Yes, that is right.

Senator Harris. I wonder when you first reccived the reports? -

Mr. Bripenstine. February 7.

Senator Harrrs. Sir?

Mr. BripEnsTIiNg. February 7.

Senator HArris. Februa.ryr;;?

Mr. BripEnsting, Yes, sir; I believe that is right. .

Senator Harrts. But who in the office actually received them ?

Mr. Bripenstine, Miss Murphy, :

Senator Harets. Miss Murphy ?

Mr. BRrIDENSTINE. Yes, sir. , 5

Scnator Harris. Had you read any of the reports prior to the March
9 press release? _ o

‘Mr. BraipEneTINE. AsIsaid to Senator Kennedy, I believe I read the
first Igroup that may have come through, but it was not my activity,
and I'merely passed them along. '

Senator Harnts, You think you Erobably read the first group.

Mr. Brivenstine. I would say that, Senator Harris, yes, sir.

Senstor Harrrs. Probably the January 31, 19662 o

Mr. BropnsTINE. That could be, yes, sir.

Senator Harris. And then you did review the reports again as I
understand it prior to the March 9 press release?

Mr. BripenstiNg. On the 9th I spoke to the men in the office about
the reports and went through them hurriedly, yes, sir.

Senator Harris. I was just looking through this report, this first
report which you read back when it was received and again before
March 9, and I notice that on page 2, which is the first page, except the
title page, it says: “Nader definitely never manifested anti-Semitic
tendencies” and so forth. And then that subject is repeated in other
interviews all the way through this particular report, in circumstances
indicating as this one does obviously that the question was asked of
this witness, who happened to be a professor in the history department
in. West Hartford, C[(J)nn. That apparently was known to you hack
from the very first report and was again known to you before the press
release.

Mr. BripENsTINE. In reading the report, sir, you would certainly
come up with the idea that some question along that line was asked.
How it was phrased, I don’t know, or how it was asked.

Senator Harris. There is really no way you could avoid knowing
that that wag continually questioned, is there, from reading the
reports?

Mr. Bripewsring., There was no way of my not knowing it was
asked, but I don’t know how it was asked.

5
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Senator Harris. You know it was asked?

Mr. BRoENsTINE. Yes, sir.

Senator Harris. You don’t know if it was over and over volun-
teered, would you?

Mr. BripensTiNE. No, I don’t think it would be, sir. It wouldn’t
be volunteered.

Senator Harris. On page 13 of this very first report which you
read when it was received, and read again Kefore the March 9 press
release, page 13 of the report, and that is still in the very first inter-
view that is recorded by the investigating agency: -

We had a lengthy discuéaio'n,,with_ Athanson about Nader's personality, why
he was not-marrled, .any -possibility that he drank o excess or had any vice.
Athanson gaid definitely Nader did not drink, have any known vice, and 'said
he was the type who did not “have time for girls,” no effeminate tendencies, and
in fact wes “on the manty side.” :

Now, that same _st:itemant is made, I just now glanced at this, prob-

' ably not nearly so much time as you gave to it, ‘gage 13, page 20, page
23, page 26, page 30, page 58, for example, an:

every time the same
answer was given. But the question obviously was asked over and
over again of various witnesses. You obviously knew that when the
report was first received in your office, and you obviously knew that

‘again just prior to the March 9 press release. And do you now still

say that in your statement this was a limited investigation?

And if s0, what would you call an unlimited investigation ?

Mr. Bripenstinge. The investigation went beyond, I assume, based
on this, its intention. ‘ _

Senator Harrts. You knew that in February when you received
this first report, did you not, from reading it ? S

Mr, BripxnsTINg. Let’s put it this way, sir. I certainly should have
known it, but I was not following this matter.

Senator Harrrs. Youread the report.

Mr. BripensTINE. I got into this matter on the ninth, sir. Some of
it had passed over my desk. I did reeall it, but on the ninth )

Senator Harrts. Do you see any connection between these various

uestions asked over and over again about this man by people who were

gbviously wondering why they were asked, and the Corvair case or
any other litigation ¢ : )

Mr. BripensTine. I wouldn’t know why they would be asked, sir.
I wouldn’t know. It would be no information of value to us.

SURVEILLANCE IN CONNECTION WITH HEARINGS

Senator Hlarris. One other thing. On page 21 of this report, the
one you first received and read when it was received, and the one which
you read again prior to the March ¢ press release, it states, the report
states that.:

We were informed that Nader is a very busy man and expects to testify before
a Committee in Albany, New York, ahout mid-month.

Then it goes on to say that :

We have looked into that and if we have not located him before then we will
estahlish surveillance on him st that time, If located before then, we will do
the same as requested on January 26.
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In other words, surveillance was about to be instituted at a time
which was in conuection with testimony or with testimony before a
New York legislative hearing. And then later your testimony is that
later surveillance was instituted at a time after the hearings here had
been announced and were carried on during the hearings before this
subcommittee, and were only discontinued after the investigators had
been canght here in connection with this surveillance.

Now, do you see any connection ‘between tha surveillance and the
New York. legislative hearing, and the later surveillance and- this
hearing, since they both seem to be connected?

Mr. BroewstiNe. I would say that if the surveillance was started
or they attempted to start it when he was scheduled to appear in Al-
bany, this is a decision the investigator or somebody else made.

Senator ¥Flarnrs. Yes. ' . o

Mr. Brmexstine. And I think it would be coincidental. 1t was

Senator Hawnris, You read this report, did you not?

Mr. Briexsrive. It wasnotordered byus. ‘

wenator Harrrs. This report was received in the office and read by
you personally back when it was first received, and on page 21 it car-
ries that statement, and also says, “As requested, January 26.”

Mr. Brupenstine. Not by us, sir. I don’t know who requested it.

Senator Iarris, You don’t know who requested it?

Mr. Bripensrine. Not by us, not by us. ,

Senator Kennepy. Did you ask to have that cease then when you
saw they wanted to start the surveillance?

Mr. Brapenstine. I beg your pardon, sir?

Senator Kenwepy. W%en you first heard about the surveillance,
when thegr were going to have the surveillance, did you ask them to
call it off ¢

Mr. BripenstiNe. No, sir; Senator, I don’t recall even reading this
part st that time,

COST OF INVESTIGATION

Senator Kennepy. Mr. Chairman, could I ask how much did this
all cost General Motors?

Mr. Bripenstine. Off of the top of my head about $6,700.

Senator Kexwepy. $6,700?

Mr. BripENsTINE. Yes, sir.

]Senrétor Hagris. Was 1t this investigation alone or what about the
others?

Mr. Bripenstrwe. I think the bill up there in Connecticut was $120
or something in that area.

Senator Harris. $1204%

Mr. BrIDENSTINE. $120, sir.

Senator Riercorr. The committee will stand in recess until 2. At
that time we will have Mr. Nader and I hope Mr. Nader will be here
at 2.

(Whercupon, at 1:05 p.m., the committee recessed to reconvene at
2 p.m., the same day.)

AFTERNOON SESSION

Sena_tor_ Rirrcorr. The committee will be in order. The chances are
that within the next half hour we may be voting, so when the bells
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ring we will suspend for a vote and then immediately return to résume
the hearings. _ '

Mr. Nader, will you please take the witness stand? Mr. Nader, I
assume, in keeping with the rules of the committee, you have no objec-
tion to taking the oath. ' '

Mr. Naoer. No, sir. : o

Senator Risicorr. You do solemnly swear that the testimony you
shall give before the Senate subcommittee shall be the truth, the whole
truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God. ° o

Mr. Naner, I do. ‘ : o

Senator Riptcorr. You may proceed, Mr. Nader.

TESTIMONY OF RALPH NADER, AUTHOR

Mr. Naper. Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, I owe you
a deep apology for being late this morning. I ought to explain it
briefly to you and to anyone else in this room. T usually take no more
than 12 minutes to come down from my residence to the Capitol by cab.
In this instance I gave myself 20 minutes, “And I waited and waited
and waited and walted to get a cab, and as my frustration mounted, I
almost felt like going out and buying a Chevrolet. But that is the
simple reason I am late. ‘

T am grateful for this opportunity to comment briefly on the issues
before you and the allegations of General Motors with respect to my
declarations concerning the hazards of their automobiles.

I do not intend to present the details pursuant to General Motors’
probings, on false pretexts given by their agents, into wholly irrele-
vant aspects of my personal life. I think that has been elaborated
already. It isnot easy for me to convey in words what I had to endure
and what my family has had to endure, as anyone subjected to such
an exposure can appreciate. However I certainly stand ready to reply
to questions which the subcommittee may wish to ask.

This is not the first, nor the last, time when issues transcending in
imgortance the particular individual find a focus for serious treatment
and resolution through an individual case. This happens frequently
in the courts, of course, and it is a refreshing reminder of the unique
organization of our Federal Government that it can happen also
judiciously, though less formally, before legislative committees.

In the few minutes available, T want to make several observations
about the importance of dealing with or limiting the kinds of pene-
trations into individual lives as engaged in by General Motors in this
case. I also wish to reply to General Motors’ statement of March 9,
1966—a peculiarly convulsive premidnight announcement purporting
to expain their investigation.

OTIIERS RELUCTANT TO SPEAX OUT ON SAFLTY

During the course of gathering materials and information for my
book, “Unsafe nt Any Speed,” I was encountering continually a pro-
found reluctance, in not a few cases it could be called fear, to speak
out publicly by those who knew the details of neglect, indifference
unjustified secrecy and suppression of engineering innovation con-
cerning the design of safer automobiles by the manufacturers. Such




